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Part |

Corporate Information

Item 1. Information on Company and Its Subsidiaries and Affiliates

1. Selected Financial Data

Six months Six months Three months  Three months
ended ended ended ended Year ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30, March 31,
2017 2018 2017 2018 2018

Totalrevenue (Mil yen) 930,315 879,366 462,389 448,381 1,972,158
Net revenue (Mil yen) 712,316 554,919 351,493 282,922 1,496,969
Income before income taxes (Milyen) 160,482 14,110 83,039 467 328,158
Net income (loss) attributable to Nomura

Holdings, Inc. (“NHI”) shareholders (Milyen) 108,706 (6,010) 51,850 (11,233) 219,343
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to NHI

shareholders (Milyen) 110,639 59,719 56,347 17,687 126,335
Totalequity (Milyen) 2,892,407 2,846,010 — — 2,799,824
Totalassets (Milyen) 43,853,140 45,360,339 — — 40,343,947
Net income (loss) attributable to NHI

shareholders per share—basic (Yen) 30.79 L.77) 14.70 (331) 63.13
Net income (loss) attributable to NHI

shareholders per share—diluted (Yen) 30.20 (1.78) 14.45 (3.32) 61.88
Total NHI shareholders’ equity as a percentage

of totalassets (%) 6.5 6.2 — — 6.8
Cash flows fromoperating activities (Mil yen) (312,078) 108,876 — — (445,690)
Cash flows frominvestingactivities (Milyen) 74,726 28,442 — — (56,172)
Cash flows fromfinancing activities (Milyen) 358,977 414,547 — — 373,168
Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and

restricted cashequivalents at end of period

(Milyen) 2,667,756 2,975,859 — — 2,354,868

w N

The selected financial data of Nomura Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) and other entities in which it has a controlling financial
interest (collectively referredto as “Nomura”, “we”, “our”, or “us”) are stated in accordance with theaccounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

Taxable transactions do not include consumption taxes and local consumption taxes.

As the consolidated financial statements have been prepared, selected financial data on the Company are notdisclosed.

Due to the changes in ouraccounting policy which Nomura adopted on April 1, 2018, certain reclassifications of previously
reported amounts have been made to conformto the current year presentation. Please referto Item4. Financial Information, 1.
Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 1. “Basis of Accounting” for further details.

In accordance with Accounting Standard Update (“ASU”) 2016-18 “Restricted Cash” which Nomura adopted on April 1, 2018,
certain reclassification of amounts previously reported as Cash, cashequivalents, restricted cashand restricted cash equivalents
and Cash flows from operating activities for the sixmonths ended September 30, 2017 and for the yearended March 31, 2018
have beenmade to conformto the current year presentation.

2. Business Overview

There were no significantchanges tothe businesses ofthe Companyand its 1,247 consolidated subsidiaries for the sixmonths

ended September 30, 2018.

There were 12 affiliated companies which were accounted for by the equity method as of September 30, 2018.



Item 2. Operating and Financial Review
1. Risk Factors

Significant changes in our Risk Factors which were described on the annual securities report are stated below. The titles below
correspond to the titles of “Part | Corporate Information—Item?2. Operating and Financial Review—2. Risk Factors”in the annual
securitiesreport.

The discussion below contains future matters that are based on the assessments made as of the date of submission ofthis report
(November 14, 2018), unless noted separately.

Our business issubject tosubstantial legal, regulatory and reputational risks
Extensive regulationofour businesses limits our activities and may subjectus to significantpenalties and losses

The financial services industry is subject to extensive regulation. Weare subjectto increasing regulation by governmentaland
self-regulatory organizations in Japan and in virtually all other jurisdictions in which we operate, and suchgovernmental and
regulatory scrutiny may increase as our operations expand or as laws change. In addition, while requlatory complexities increase,
possibilities of extra-territorial application ofa regulation in one jurisdiction to business activities outside of such jurisdiction may ako
increase. These regulations are broadly designedto ensure the stability of financial systems and the integrity of the financial markets
and financial institutions, andto protect clients and other third parties who deal with us, and often limit our activities and/or affect our
profitability, throughnetcapital, client protection and market conduct requirements. In addition, on top of traditional finance-related
legislation, the scopeof laws and regulations applying to, and/or impacting on, our operations may become wider depending on the
situation of the wider international political and economic environmentor policy approaches taken by governmental authorities in
respect of regulatory applicationor law enforcement. In particular, the number of investigations and proceedings againstthe financial
services industry by governmental and self-regulatory organizations has increased substantially and the consequences of such
investigations and proceedings have become more severe in recentyears, and we are subject to face the risk of such investigations and
proceedings. Forexample, the U.S. Department of Justice (the “D0OJ”") conducted an investigation regarding residential mortgage-
backed securities securitized by some of our U.S. subsidiaries prior to 2009. On October 15, 2018, the U.S. subsidiaries settled the
investigation with the DOJ and agreed to pay USD 480 million. Although we havepolicies in place to prevent violations of such laws
and regulations, we may not always be able to prevent violations, andwe could be fined, prohibited fromengaging in some of our
businessactivities, ordered to improve our internal governance procedures or be subject torevocation of our licenseto conduct
business. Our reputation could also suffer fromthe adverse publicity that any administrative or judicial sanction againstus may create,
which may negatively affect our business opportunities and ability to secure human resources. Asaresult of any such sanction, we
may lose business opportunities fora period of time, even afterthe sanction is lifted, if and to the extent that our clients, especially
public institutions, decide not to engage us for their financial transactions. In addition, certain market participants may refrain from
investing in or entering into transactions with us if we engagein business activities in regions subjectto international sanctions, even
if ouractivities donot constitute violations of sanctions laws and regulations.



2. Operating, Financialand Cash Flow Analyses by Management
(1) Operating Results

Nomura reported netrevenue of ¥554.9 billion, non-interest expenses of ¥540.8 billion, income before income taxes of
¥14.1 billion, and net loss attributable to NHI shareholders of ¥6.0 billion for the sixmonths ended September 30, 2018.

The breakdown of net revenue and non-interest expenses on the consolidated statements of income are as follows:

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30

2017 2018
Commissions ¥ 176,292 ¥ 154,239
Brokerage commissions 118,279 105,141
Commissions for distribution of investmenttrust 44,123 33,413
Other 13,890 15,685
Fees frominvestmentbanking 49,790 43,078
Underwriting and distribution 23,075 24,243
M&A /financialadvisory fees 16,576 12,888
Other 10,139 5,947
Asset management and portfolio service fees 119,555 125,721
Asset management fees 110,738 117,619
Other 8,817 8,102
Net gain on trading 208,858 147,639
Gain (loss) on private equity investments 29 874
Net interest 58,005 33,846
Gain (loss) on investments in equity securities 3,122 988
Other 96,665 48,534
Net revenue ¥ 712316 ¥ 554,919

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30

2017 2018
Compensationand benefits ¥ 258284 ¥ 253,500
Commissions and floor brokerage 49,017 40,514
Information processingand communications 91,832 81,476
Occupancy and related depreciation 34,265 32,840
Business developmentexpenses 16,232 18,233
Other 102,204 114,246

Non-interest expenses ¥ 551,834 ¥ 540,809




Business SegmentInformation
Results by business segment are noted below.
Reconciliations of Net revenue and Income (loss) before income taxes onsegment results of operations and the consolidated

statements ofincome are set forthin Item4. Financial Information, 1. Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 15. “Segment and
geographic information.”

Net revenue
Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30
2017 2018

Retail ¥ 203,470 ¥ 178543
Asset Management 63,515 50,770
Wholesale 338,279 284,950
Other (Incl. elimination) 104,317 39,720

Total ¥ 709,581 ¥ 553983

Non-interest expenses

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30

2017 2018

Retail ¥ 153,031 ¥ 146,403
Asset Management 29,477 31,574
Wholesale 295,943 287,459
Other (Incl. elimination) 73,383 75,373
Total ¥ 551834 ¥ 540,809

Income (loss) before income taxes

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30

2017 2018
Retail ¥ 50439 ¥ 32,140
Asset Management 34,038 19,196
Wholesale 42,336 (2,509)
Other (Incl. elimination) 30,934 (35,653)
Total ¥ 157,747 ¥ 13,174

Retail

Net revenue was ¥178.5billion primarily due to deterioration of retail investors’ sentiment. Non-interest expenses were
¥146.4 billion and income before income taxes was ¥32.1 billion. Retail client assets were ¥122 8trillion as of September 30, 2018, a
¥5.1 trillion increase fromMarch 31, 2018.

Asset Management

Net revenue was ¥50.8 billion. Non-interestexpenses were ¥31.6 billion and income before income taxes was ¥19.2 billion.
Assets under managementwere ¥52.8trillion as of September 30, 2018, a¥2.8 trillion increase fromMarch 31, 2018, primarily dueto
market appreciation andnetinflowinto funds such asETF.



Wholesale
Net revenue was ¥284.9 billion. Non-interestexpenses were ¥287.5 billion and loss before income taxes was ¥2.5billion.
The breakdown of net revenue for Wholesale is as follows:

Millions of yen

Six_months ended September 30

2017 2018
Global Markets ¥ 285590 ¥ 235976
Investment Banking 52,689 48,974
Net revenue ¥ 338,279 ¥ 284,950

Global Markets net revenuewas ¥236.0 billion. Fixed Income net revenue decreased from¥169.2 billion in the previousyearto
¥127.2 billion because of uncertain markets andturmoil in emerging markets which led to atoughenvironmentforthe trading
business. Equities netrevenue decreased from¥116.4 billion in the previous yearto ¥108.7 billion due to adecrease in tradingvolume
in the cash markets. Investment banking net revenue was ¥49.0 billion.

Nomura established Client Financing and Solutions (“CFS”) in April, 2018. In CFS, Global Markets and Investment Banking
co-workand revenue generated from CFS is allocated to Global Markets and Investment Bankingin a certain manner. Accordingly,
we reclassified a part of net revenue which previously belongedto Global Markets to Investment Banking.

Other Operating Results

Otheroperating results include net gain (loss) related to economic hedging transactions, realized gain (loss) oninvestmentsin
equity securities held for operating purposes, equity in earnings of affiliates, corporate items, and other financial adjustments. Other
operatingresults for the sixmonths ended September 30, 2018 include losses of ¥0.8 billion from changes in the fair value of
derivative liabilities attributable to the change in its own creditworthiness and losses of ¥0.2 billion from changes in counterparty
credit spread. Net revenuewas ¥39.7 billion, non-interest expenses were ¥75.4 billion and loss before income taxes was ¥35.7 billion
for the sixmonths ended September 30, 2018.

Cyber Security Incident

One of our foreign subsidiaries recently experienced a cyber incidentthatresulted in the unauthorized access to certain of its
systems including client information. We may suffer financial loss through reputational damage, legal liability and enforcement
actions against us, and expectto incurincreased costs for our operations generally, resulting fromand in connection with the
remediation ofthis incident andto strengthen and enhance cyber security within other Nomura group companies.

Geographic Information

Please referto Item 4. Financial Information, 1. Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 16. “Segmentand geographic
information” for net revenueand income (loss) before income taxes by geographic allocation.

Cash Flow Information
Please referto “(6) Liquidity and Capital Resources.”



(2) Assetsand Liabilities Associated with Investmentand Financial Services Business
1) BExposure to Certain Financial Instruments and Counterparties
Market conditions continue to impact numerous products to which we have certain exposures. We also have exposures to
Special PurposeEntities (“SPEs”) and others in the normal course of business.
Leveraged Finance

We provide loans to clients in connection with leveraged buy-outs and leveraged buy-ins. As this type of financing is usually
initially provided through acommitment, we have both funded and unfunded exposures on thesetransactions.

The following table sets forthourexposure to leveraged finance by geographic location of the target company as of
September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen
September 30, 2018
Funded Unfunded Total

Europe ¥11,527 ¥ 51,769 ¥ 63,296
Americas 17,052 189,391 206,443
Asiaand Oceania 656 553 1,209
Total ¥29,235 ¥241,713 ¥270,948

Special Purpose Entities

Our involvementwith theseentities includes structuring, underwriting, as well as, subject to prevailing market conditions,
distributing andselling debt instruments and beneficial interests issued by these entities. In the normal course of securitizationand
equity derivativeactivities business, we also act as a transferor of financial assets to, and underwriter, distributor and seller of
repackaged financial instruments issued by these entities. We retain, purchaseand sell variable interests in SPEs in connectionwith
our market-making, investingand structuring activities. Our other types of involvementwith SPEs include guarantee agreements and
derivative contracts.

Forfurtherdiscussion on Nomura’s involvementwith variable interest entities (“VIES”), see Item4. Financial Information, 1.
Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 7. “Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities.”

2) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

A significant amount of our financial instruments are carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized through the
consolidated statements of income or the consolidated statements of comprehensive income on a recurring basis. Use of fair value is
eitherspecifically required under U.S. GAAP or we make an election to use fair value for certain eligible items under the fairvalue
option.

Other financial assets andfinancial liabilities are carried at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, where the primary measurement
basis is not fair value. Fair value is only used in specific circumstances after initial recognition, suchas to measure impairment.

In accordance with Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, all financial
instruments measured at fair value have been categorized into a three-level hierarchy based on thetransparency of inputs usedto
establish fair value.



Level 3 financialassets as a proportion of total financial assets, carried at fair value on a recurring basis was 4% as of
September 30, 2018 as listed below:

Billions of yen
September 30, 2018

Counterparty
and
Cash Collateral
Level 1  Level 2 Level 3 Netting Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
(Excluding derivative assets) ¥7937 ¥ 9,019 ¥ 596 ¥ —  ¥17552
Derivative assets 15 15911 158 (15,035) 1,049
Total ¥7952 ¥24930 ¥ 754 ¥ (15,035) ¥18,601

Please referto Item 4. Financial Information, 1. Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 2. “Fair value measurements” for
further information.

(3) Trading Activities
Assets and liabilities fortrading purposes

Please referto Item 4. Financial Information, 1. Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 2. “Fair value measurements”and
Note 3. “Derivative instruments and hedging activities” regarding the balances of assets and liabilities for trading purposes.

Risk management oftrading activity
We adoptValue at Risk (“VVaR”) for measurementof market risk arising fromtrading activity.
1) Assumptionson VaR
*  Confidence Level:99%
e Holding period: One day

«  Considerationof price movement amongtheproducts

2) Records ofVaR

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018  September 30, 2018

Equity ¥ 12 ¥ 2.1
Interestrate 31 29
Foreign exchange 3.2 2.2
Subtotal 75 7.2
Diversification benefit (1.1) 2.7)
VaR ¥ 6.4 ¥ 45

Billions of yen
Six months ended September 30, 2018
Maximum®  Minimum®  Average®

VaR ¥ 6.1 ¥ 31 ¥ 44

(1) Representsthemaximum, average and minimum VaR based onalldaily calculations over the six-month period.



(4) Deferred Tax Assets Information
Detailsofdeferred tax assetsand liabilities
The following table presents details of deferred taxassets and liabilities reported within Other assets—Other and Other
liabilities, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen
September 30, 2018

Deferredtax assets

Depreciation, amortizationand valuation of fixed assets ¥ 20,401
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates 28,078
Valuation of financial instruments 71,272
Accruedpensionand severance costs 27,424
Otheraccrued expenses and provisions 50,156
Operating losses 379,899
Other 3,320
Gross deferred taxassets 580,550
Less—Valuation allowance (435,580)
Totaldeferred taxassets 144,970
Deferredtax liabilities
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates 146,213
Valuation of financial instruments 45,339
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries 1,857
Valuation of fixed assets 8,554
Other 2,212
Totaldeferred taxliabilities 204,175
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥ (59,205)

Calculationmethod ofdeferredtax assets

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, we recognize deferredtaxassets to the extent we believe thatit is more likely than not thata
benefit will be realized. A valuation allowance is provided for taxbenefits available to us, which are notdeemed more likely than not
to be realized.



(5) Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
1) Risk Management

Nomura defines risks as (i) the potential erosion of Nomura’s capital base dueto unexpected losses arising fromrisks to which
its business operations are exposed, such as market risk, credit risk, operational riskand modelrrisk, (i) liquidity risk, the potential
lack ofaccess tofunds or higher costof funding thannormal levels dueto a deterioration in Nomura’s creditworthiness or
deterioration in market conditions, and (iii) business risk, the potential failure of revenues to cover costs due toa deteriorationin the
earnings environment or a deterioration in the efficiency or effectiveness of its business operations.

A fundamental principle established by Nomura is that allemployees shall regard themselves as principals of risk management
and appropriately manage these risks. Nomura seeks to promote a culture of proactive risk management throughout all levels of the
organization and to limit risks to the confines of its risk appetite. The risk management framework that Nomura uses to manage these
risks consists of its risk appetite, risk managementgovernance and oversight, the management of financial resources, the management
of all risk classes, and processes to measure and control risks.

2) Global Risk Management Structure

The Board of Directors has established the “Structure for Ensuring Appropriate Business of Nomura Holdings, Inc.” as the
Company’s basic principle andsetup a framework for managing the risk of loss based onthis. In addition, they are continuously
making efforts to improve, strengthenand build up our risk management capabilities under this framework. Moreover, the Group
Integrated Risk Management Committee (“GIRMC”), upon delegation fromthe Executive ManagementBoard (“EMB”), has
established the Risk ManagementPolicy, describing Nomura’s overall risk management framework including the fundamental risk
management principles followed by Nomura.

Market Risk Management

Market riskis the risk of loss arising fromfluctuations in the value of financial assets and liabilities (including off-balance sheet
items) due to fluctuations in market factors (interestrates, foreign exchange rates, prices of securities and others). Effective
management of market risk requires the ability to analyze acomplexand evolving portfolio in a constantly changing global market
environment, identify problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action is taken in a timely manner.

Nomura uses a variety of statistical risk measurement tools to assess and monitor market risk on an ongoingbasis, including, but
not limited to, VaR, Stressed VaR (*SVaR”) and Incremental Risk Charge (“IRC”). In addition, Nomura uses sensitivity analysis and
stresstestingto measure andanalyze its market risk. Sensitivities are measures used to showthe potential changes toa portfolio due to
standard moves in market risk factors. They are specific to each asset class and cannot usually be aggregated across risk factors. Stress
testing enables theanalysis of portfolio risks or tail risks, including non-linear behaviors and can be aggregated across risk factors at
any level ofthe group hierarchy, fromgroup level to business division, units or desk levels. Market risk is monitored againsta set of
approved limits, with daily reports and other management information provided to the business units and senior management.

Credit Risk Management

Creditrisk is the risk of loss arising froman obligor’s default, insolvency oradministrative proceeding which results in the
obligor’s failure to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms. This includes both on and off-balance sheet
exposures. Itis also the risk of loss arising through a credit valuationadjustment (“CVA”) associated with deteriorationin the
creditworthiness ofa counterparty.

Nomura manages credit riskon a global basisandon an individual Nomura legal entity basis.

The measurement, monitoringand managementof credit riskat Nomura are governed by a set of global policies and procedures.
Credit Risk Management (“CRM?”), a global function within the Risk Management Division, is responsible for the implementation and
maintenance of these policies and procedures. These policies are authorized by the GIRMCand/or Global Risk Strategic Committee
(*GRSC™), prescribe the basic principles of credit risk management and set delegated authority which enables CRM personnelto set
Credit limits.

Credit risk is managed by CRM together with various global and regional risk committees. This ensures transparency of
material credit risks and compliance with established credit limits, the approval of material extensions of credit and the escalation of
risk concentrations to appropriate senior management.



CRM operates asa credit risk control function within the Risk Management Division, reporting to the Chief Risk Officer. The
process for managing credit riskat Nomura includes:

. Evaluation of likelihood thata counterparty defaults on its payments and obligations;

. Assignment ofinternal credit ratings to all active counterparties;

. Approval ofextensions of credit and establishment of credit limits;

. Measurement, monitoringand managementof Nomura’s currentand potential future credit exposures;
. Setting credit terms in legal documentation;

. Use of appropriate credit risk mitigants including netting, collateraland hedging.

Forregulatory capital calculation purposes, Nomura has been applying the Foundation Internal Rating Based Approach in
calculating credit risk weighted asset since the end of March 2011. The Standardized Approachis appliedto certain business units or
assettypes, which are considered immaterial to the calculation of credit risk weighted assets.

The exposure calculation modelused for counterparty credit risk management has also beenused for the Internal Model Method
based exposure calculation for regulatory capital reporting purposes since the end of December 2012.

Operational Risk Management

Operationalriskis the risk of loss resulting frominadequate or failed internal processes, people, and systems or fromexternal
events. It excludes strategic risk (the risk of loss as a result of poor strategic business decisions), butincludes the risk of breach of
legaland regulatory requirements, and the risk of damage to Nomura’s reputation if caused by an operational risk.

Nomura adoptstheindustry standard “Three Lines of Defence” for the managementof operational risk, comprising the
following elements:

1)  1stLine of Defence: The business which owns and manages its risks

2)  2nd Line of Defence: The Operational Risk Management (“ORM”) function, which co-ordinates Nomura’s operational
risk framework and its implementation, and provides challenge to the 1st Line of Defence

3)  3rd Line of Defence: Internal Audit, who provideindependentassurance

An Operational Risk Management Framework has been established in order to allow Nomura to identify, assess, manage,
monitorand report onoperational risk. The GIRMC, with delegated authority fromthe EMB has formal oversightover the
management of operational risk.

Nomura uses the Standardized Approach for calculating regulatory capital for operational risk. This involves using a three-year
average of grossincome allocated to business lines, which is multiplied by a fixed percentage (“Beta Factor”) determined by the
Financial Services Agency of Japan (“FSA”), to establish the amount of required operational risk capital.

Model Risk Management

Nomura uses risk models for regulatory and economic capital calculations and valuation models for pricing and sensitivity
calculations of positions. Model risk is the risk of loss arising frommodel errors orincorrect or inappropriate model application with
regard to valuation models andrisk models. Errors can occurat any point frommodelassumptions through to implementation. In
addition, the quality of model outputs depends on the quality of model parameters andany inputdata. Even a fundamentally sound
model producingaccurate outputs consistent with the design objective of the model may exhibit high modelrisk if it is misapplied or
misused. To address these risks, Nomura has established its model risk appetite.

Nomura has documented policies and procedures in place, approved by the GIRMCand/or GRSC, which define the processand
validation requirements for implementing changes to valuation and risk models. Before these models are put into official use, the
Model Validation Group (“MVG”) is responsible for validating their integrity and comprehensiveness independently fromthose who
design andbuild them. Allmodels are also subject toan annual re-approval process by MVGto ensure they remain suitable. In
addition, a Model Performance Monitoring process has been established to identify and assess specific events, thatcan indicatethata
Modelis not performing as it should or is potentially unsuitable andto determine whatactions (for example, additional validation
work) might be necessary. For changes with an impact above certain materiality thresholds, model approvalis required.
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(6) Liquidity and Capital Resources
Funding and Liquidity Management
Overview

We define liquidity risk as the risk of loss arising fromdifficulty in securing the necessary funding or froma significantly higher
cost of funding thannormal levels dueto deterioration of the Nomura Group’s creditworthiness or deterioration in market conditions.
This risk could arise from Nomura-specific or market-wide events suchas inability to access the secured or unsecured debt markets, a
deteriorationin our credit ratings, a failure to manage unplanned changes in funding requirements, a failure to liquidate assets quickly
and with minimal loss in value, or changes in regulatory capital restrictions which may preventthe free flow of funds between
different groupentities. Our global liquidity risk management policy is based on liquidity risk appetite formulated by the Executive
ManagementBoard (“EMB”). Nomura’s liquidity risk management, under market-wide stress and in addition, under Nomura-specific
stress, seeks to ensure enough continuous liquidity to meet all funding requirements and unsecured debtobligations across one year
and 30-day periods, respectively, without raising funds through unsecured funding or through the liquidation of assets. We are
required to meet regulatory notice on the liquidity coverage ratio issued by the FSA.

We have in place a number of liquidity risk managementframeworks that enable usto achieve our primary liquidity objective.
These frameworks include (1) Centralized Control of Residual Cash and Maintenance of Liquidity Portfolio; (2) Utilization of
Unencumbered Assets as Part of Our Liquidity Portfolio; (3) Appropriate Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources and
Maturities Commensurate with the Composition of Assets; (4) Management of Credit Lines to Nomura Group Entities;

(5) Implementation of Liquidity Stress Tests; and (6) Contingency Funding Plan.

Our EMB has the authority to make decisions concerning group liquidity management. The Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) has
the operational authority and responsibility over our liquidity management based ondecisions made by the EMB.

1. Centralized Control of Residual Cash and Maintenance of Liquidity Portfolio.

We centrally control residual cash held at Nomura Group entities for effective liquidity utilization purposes. As forthe usage of
funds, the CFO decides the maximum amount of available funds, provided without postingany collateral, for allocation within
Nomura and the EMB allocates the funds to each business division. Global Treasury monitors usage by businesses and reports to the
EMB.

In orderto enable us to transfer funds smoothly between group entities, we limit the issuance of securities by regulated broker-
dealers orbankingentities within the Nomura Group and seek to raise unsecured funding primarily through the Company or through
unregulated subsidiaries. The primary benefits of this strategy include cost minimization, wider investor name recognitionand greater
flexibility in providing fundingto various subsidiaries across the Nomura Group.

To meet any potential liquidity requirement, we maintain a liquidity portfolio, managed by Global Treasury apart fromother
assets, in the formof cash and highly liquid, unencumbered securities that may be sold or pledged to provide liquidity. As of
September 30, 2018, our liquidity portfolio was ¥4,953.4 billion which sufficiently met liquidity requirements under the stress
scenarios.

2. Utilization of Unencumbered Assets as Partof Our Liquidity Portfolio.

In addition toour liquidity portfolio, we had unencumbered assets comprisingmainly of unpledged trading assets thatcan be
used as anadditional source of secured funding. Global Treasury monitors other unencumbered assets and can, under a liquidity stress
eventwhenthe contingency funding plan has beeninvoked, monetize and utilize the cash generated asaresult. Theaggregate of our
liquidity portfolio and other unencumbered assets was sufficientagainst our total unsecured debtmaturing within one year.

3. Appropriate Fundingand Diversification of Funding Sources and Maturities Commensurate with the Composition of Assets

We seekto maintain asurplus of long-termdebt and equity above the cash capital requirements of our assets. Wealso seek to
achieve diversification of our fundingby market, instrumenttype, investors, currency, and staggered maturities in order to reduce
unsecured refinancing risk.

We diversify funding by issuing various types of debt instruments—these include both structured loans and structured notes
with returns linked to interestrates, currencies, equities, commodities, or related indices. We issue structured loans and structured
notes in orderto increase the diversity of our debt instruments. We typically hedge thereturns we are obliged to pay with derivatives
and/ortheunderlying assets to obtain funding equivalentto our unsecured long-termdebt.
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3.1 Short-Term Unsecured Debt

Our short-termunsecured debtconsists of short-termbank borrowings (including long-termbank borrowings maturing
within one year), other loans, commercial paper, deposit at banking entities, certificates of deposit and debtsecurities
maturing within one year. Deposits at banking entities and certificates of deposit comprise customer deposits and certificates
of deposit of ourbanking subsidiaries. Short-termunsecured debtincludes the currentportion of long-termunsecured debt.

The following table presents an analysis of our short-termunsecured debt by type of financial liability as of March 31,
2018 and September 30, 2018.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018

Short-termbank borrowings ¥ 1436 ¥ 51.1
Otherloans 176.2 2238
Commercial paper 179.3 380.0
Deposits at banking entities 925.8 943.6
Certificates of deposit 111 111
Debt securities maturingwithin oneyear 671.0 545.4
Totalshort-termunsecured debt ¥ 2,107.0 ¥ 2,155.0

3.2 Long-Term Unsecured Debt

We meet our long-termcapital requirements andalsoachieve both cost-effective fundingandan appropriate maturity
profile by routinely fundingthroughlong-termdebtand diversifying across various maturities and currencies.

Our long-termunsecured debtincludes senior and subordinated debtissued through U.S. registered shelf offerings and
ourU.S. registered medium-termnote programs, our Euro medium-termnote programs, registered shelf offerings in Japan
and various other debt programs.

As aglobally competitive financial services groupin Japan, we haveaccess to multiple global markets and major
funding centers. The Company, Nomura Securities Co. Ltd., Nomura Europe Finance N.V., Nomura Bank International plc,
and Nomura International Funding Pte. Ltd. are the main group entities thatborrow externally, issue debtinstruments and
engage in other fundingactivities. By raising fundsto match the currencies and liquidities of our assets or by using foreign
exchange swaps as necessary, we pursue optimization of our funding structures.

We use awide range of products and currencies toensure that our funding is efficient and well diversified across
markets and investor types. Our unsecured senior debt is mostly issued without financial covenants, suchas covenants related
to adverse changes in our credit ratings, cash flows, results of operations or financial ratios, which could trigger an increase
in our cost offinancing or acceleraterepaymentofthe debt.

The following table presentsan analysis of our long-termunsecured debtby type of financial liability as of March 31,
2018 and September 30, 2018.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018

Long-termdeposits at banking entities ¥ 2145 ¥ 227.9
Long-termbankborrowings 2,567.6 2,792.9
Otherloans 118.6 94.3
Debt securities® 2,318.2 3,511.2
Totallong-termunsecured debt ¥ 52189 ¥ 6,626.3

(1) Bxcludes long-termdebt securities issued by consolidated special purpose entities and similar entities that meet the
definition of variable interest entities under ASC 810 “Consolidation” and secured financing transactions recognized
within Long-termborrowings as a result of transfers of financial assets that are accounted for as financings rather than
sales in accordance with ASC 860 “Transfer and Servicing.”
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3.3 Maturity Profile

We also seekto maintain an average maturity for our plain vanilla debt securities and borrowings greater than orequal
to three years. A significant amountofour structured loans and structured notes are linked to interestrates, currencies,
equities, commodities, or related indices. These maturities are evaluated based on internal models and monitored by Global
Treasury. Where there is a possibility thatthese may be called priorto their scheduled maturity date, maturities are based on
ourinternal stress option adjusted model. The model values the embedded optionality under stress market conditions in order
to determine when the debtsecurities or borrowings are likely to be called.

3.4 Secured Funding

We typically fund ourtrading activities through secured borrowings, repurchase agreements and Japanese “Gensaki
Repo” transactions. Webelieve such funding activities in the secured markets are more cost-efficientand less credit-rating
sensitive than financing in the unsecured market. Our secured funding capabilities depend on the quality of the underlying
collateraland market conditions. While we have shorter termsecured financing for highly liquid assets, we seek longer terrs
for less liquid assets. We alsoseek to lower the refinancing risks of secured funding by transacting with a diverse group of
global counterparties and delivering various types of securities collateral. In addition, we reserve an appropriate level of
liquidity portfolio for the refinancing risks of secured funding maturing in the short termfor less liquid assets. For more
detail of secured borrowings and repurchase agreements, see Note 5 “Collateralized transactions” in our consolidated
financial statements.

4. Management of Credit Linesto Nomura Group Entities

We maintain and expand credit lines to Nomura Group entities fromother financial institutions to secure stable funding. We
ensure that the maturity dates of borrowing agreements are distributed evenly throughoutthe year in orderto preventexcessive
maturities in any given period.

5. Implementation of Liquidity Stress Tests

We maintain our liquidity portfolio and monitor the sufficiency of our liquidity based onan internal model which simulates

changes in cash outflow under specified stress scenarios to comply with our above mentioned liquidity management policy.

We assess the liquidity requirements of the Nomura Group under various stress scenarios with differing levels of severity over
multiple time horizons. We evaluate these requirements under Nomura-specific and broad market-wide events, including potential
credit rating downgrades at the Company and subsidiary levels. Wecall this riskanalysis our Maximum Cumulative Outflow
(*MCO”) framework.

The MCO framework is designed to incorporate the primary liquidity risks for Nomura and models the relevantfuture cash
flows in the following two primary scenarios:

e Stressed scenario—Tomaintain adequate liquidity during a severe market-wide liquidity event without raising funds
through unsecured financing or through the liquidation of assets fora year; and

e Acute stress scenario—To maintain adequate liquidity during a severe market-wide liquidity event coupled with credit
concerns regarding Nomura’s liquidity position, without raising funds through unsecured funding or through the
liquidation ofassets for 30 days.

We assume that Nomura will not be able to liquidate assets or adjustits business model during thetime horizons usedin each of
these scenarios. The MCO framework therefore defines the amountof liquidity required to be heldin orderto meet our expected
liquidity needsin astressevent to a levelwe believe appropriate based on our liquidity risk appetite.

As of September 30, 2018, our liquidity portfolio exceeded netcash outflows under the stress scenarios described above.

We constantly evaluate and modify our liquidity risk assumptions based onregulatory and market changes. The modelwe use in
orderto simulate the impact of stress scenarios includes the following assumptions:

¢ Noliquidation ofassets;

« Noability to issue additional unsecured funding;

¢ Upcoming maturities of unsecured debt (maturities less than one year);
e Potentialbuybacks of our outstanding debt;
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¢ Loss ofsecured funding lines particularly for less liquid assets;

¢ Fluctuationoffunding needs under normal business circumstances;

e Cashdepositsand free collateral roll-offin astress event;

«  Wideningofhaircuts onoutstanding repo funding;

e Additional collateralization requirements of clearing banks and depositories;
»  Drawdown on loan commitments;

* Loss ofliquidity frommarket losses;

» Assuming atwo-notch downgrade of our credit ratings, the aggregate fair value of assets that we would be requiredto
postas additional collateral in connectionwith our derivative contracts; and

» Legal and regulatory requirements thatcan restrict the flow of funds between entities in the Nomura Group.

6. Contingency Funding Plan

We have developed a detailed contingency funding plan to integrate liquidity risk controlinto our comprehensive risk
management strategy and to enhance the quantitativeaspects of our liquidity risk control procedures. As a part of our Contingency
Funding Plan (“CFP”), we have developedan approach foranalyzingand quantifying the impact of any liquidity crisis. This allows us
to estimate the likely impact of both Nomura-specific and market-wide events; and specifies the immediate action to betaken to
mitigate any risk. The CFP lists details of key internaland external parties to be contacted andthe processes by which information is
to be disseminated. This has been developed at a legal entity level in order to capture specific cashrequirements at the local level—it
assumes that our parent company does not have access to cash that may be trapped at a subsidiary level due to regulatory, legal or tax
constraints. We periodically testthe effectiveness of our funding plans for different Nomura-specific and market-wide events. We also
have access to central banks including, but not exclusively, the Bank of Japan, which provide financing against various types of
securities. Theseoperations are accessed in the normal course of businessand are an important tool in mitigating contingentrisk from
market disruptions.

Liquidity Regulatory Framework

In 2008, the Basel Committee published “Principles for Sound Liquidity Risk Management and Supervision.” To complement
these principles, the Committee has further strengthened its liquidity framework by developing two minimum standards for funding
liquidity. These standards have been developed to achieve two separate but complementary objectives.

Thefirst objective is to promote short-termresilience of a financial institution’s liquidity risk profile by ensuring that it has
sufficient high-quality liquid assets to survive a significantstress scenario lasting for 30 days. The Committee developed the Liquidity
Coverage Ratio (“LCR”)to achieve thisobjective.

The secondobjectiveis to promoteresilienceovera longertime horizon by creatingadditional incentives for financial
institutions to fund their activities with more stable sources of funding on an ongoing basis. The Net Stable Funding Ratio (“NSFR”)
has atime horizon of one yearand has been developed to provide a sustainable maturity structure of assets and liabilities.

These two standards are comprised mainly of specific parameters which are internationally “harmonized” with prescribed values.
Certain parameters, however, contain elements of national discretionto reflect jurisdiction-specific conditions.

In Japan, the regulatory notice onthe LCR, based on the international agreementissued by the Basel Committee with necessary
nationalrevisions, was published by Financial Services Agency (on October 31, 2014). The notices have been implementedsince the
end of March 2015 with phased-in minimumstandards. Averageof Nomura’s LCRs for the three months ended September 30, 2018
was 191.1%, and Nomura was compliant with requirements of the above notices. As forthe NSFR, it is not yet implemented in Japan.

Cash Flows

Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cashand restricted cash equivalents’ balance as of September 30, 2017 and as of
September 30, 2018 were ¥2,667.8 billion and ¥2,975.9 billion, respectively. Cash flows fromoperating activities for the sixmonths
ended September 30, 2017 outflows of¥312.1 billion due primarily to a decrease in Securities purchased under agreements to resell,
net ofsecuritiessoldunder agreements to repurchaseand for the comparable period in 2018 were inflows 0f¥108.9 billion due
primarily to an increasein Securities borrowed, net of securities loaned. Cash flows frominvesting activities for the sixmonths ended
September 30,2017 were inflows of ¥74.7 billion due primarily to adecrease in Other, netandforthe comparable periodin 2018
were inflows of ¥28.4 billion due primarily to a decreasein non-trading debt securities, net. Cash flows fromfinancingactivities for
the sixmonths ended September 30,2017 were inflows 0f¥359.0 billion due primarily to an increasein Long-termborrowings and
for the comparable period in 2018 were inflows 0f¥414.5 billion due primarily to an increasein Long-termborrowings.
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Balance Sheet andFinancial Leverage

Totalassetsas of September 30, 2018, were ¥45,360.3 billion, an increase of¥5,016.4 billion compared with ¥40,343.9 billion
as of March 31, 2018, primarily due to an increasein Securities purchased under agreements to resell. Total liabilities as of
September 30, 2018, were ¥42,514.3 billion, an increase 0f¥4,970.2 billion compared with ¥37,544.1 billion as of March 31, 2018,
primarily due to anincrease in Securities sold under agreements to repurchase. NHI shareholders’ equity as of September 30, 2018,
was ¥2,800.8 billion, an increase of ¥51.5billion compared with ¥2,749.3 billion as of March 31, 2018, primarily due to anincrease in
Accumulated other comprehensive income.

Due to the changes in ouraccounting policy which Nomura adopted on April 1, 2018, certain reclassifications of previously
reported amounts have been made to conformto the current year presentation. Please refer to Item4. Financial Information, 1.
Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 1. “Basis of Accounting” for further details.

We seekto maintain sufficient capital at all times to withstand losses due to extreme market movements. The EMB is
responsible forimplementing and enforcing capital policies. This includes the determination of our balance sheet size and required
capital levels. We continuously review our equity capital base to ensure that it can support the economic riskinherent in our business.
There are also regulatory requirements for minimum capital of entities thatoperatein regulated securities or banking businesses.

As leverageratios are commonly used by other financial institutions similar to us, we voluntarily providea Leverage ratio and
Adjusted leverage ratio primarily for benchmarking purposes so thatusers of our annual report cancompare our leverage againstother
financial institutions. Adjusted leverageratio is a non-GAAP financial measure that Nomura considers tobe a useful supplemental
measure of leverage.

The following table sets forth NHI shareholders’ equity, total assets, adjusted assets and leverage ratios:

Billions of yen, except ratios
March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018

NHI shareholders’ equity ¥ 2,749.3 ¥ 2,800.8
Totalassets 40,343.9 45,360.3
Adjustedassets® 24,106.2 25,437 .9
Leverage ratio® 14.7 x 16.2 x
Adjusted leverage ratio® 8.8 x 9.1 x

(1) Representstotalassets less Securities purchased under agreements to resell and Securities borrowed. Adjusted assets is anon-
GAAP financial measure and is calculated as follows:

Billions of yen

March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018
Totalassets ¥ 40,343.9 ¥ 45,360.3
Less:
Securities purchased under agreements to resell
9,853.9 15,412.9
Securities borrowed 6,383.8 4,509.6
Adjustedassets ¥  24106.2 ¥ 25,437.9

(2) Equals totalassets divided by NHI shareholders’ equity.
(3) Equals adjustedassetsdivided by NHI shareholders’ equity.

Totalassets increased by 12.4% reflecting primarily an increase in Securities purchased under agreements to resell. NHI
shareholders’ equity increased by 1.9% primarily due to an increase in Accumulated other comprehensiveincome. Asaresult, our
leverage ratio rosefrom14.7 times as of March 31, 2018 to 16.2 times as of September 30, 2018.

Adjustedassets increased primarily due to an increase in Trading assets. Asaresult, our adjusted leverage ratio rose from8.8
times as of March 31, 2018 to0 9.1 times as of September 30, 2018.
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Consolidated Regulatory Capital Requirements

The FSA established the “Guideline for Financial Conglomerates Supervision” (“Financial Conglomerates Guideline™) in June
2005 and set outthe rules on consolidated regulatory capital. We started monitoring our consolidated capital adequacy ratio in
accordancewith the Financial Conglomerates Guideline from April 2005.

The Company has been assigned by the FSA as a Final Designated Parent Company who must calculate a consolidated capital
adequacy ratio according to the Capital Adequacy Noticeon Final Designated Parent Company in April 2011. Since then, we have
been calculating our consolidated capital adequacy ratio accordingto the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent
Company. The Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company has beenrevisedto be in line with Basel 2.5 and Basel
Il since then. We havecalculated a Basel I1l-based consolidated capital adequacy ratio fromthe end of March 2013. Basel 2.5
includes significant changein calculation method of market riskand Basel Il includes redefinition of capital items for the purpose of
requiring higher quality of capitaland expansion of the scope of credit risk-weighted assets calculation.

In accordance with Article 2 of the Capital Adequacy Notice onFinal Designated Parent Company, our consolidated capital
adequacyratio is currently calculated based on theamounts of common equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital (sumofcommon equity
Tier 1 capitaland additional Tier 1 capital), total capital (sumof Tier 1 capitaland Tier 2 capital), credit risk-weighted assets, market
risk and operational risk. As of September 30, 2018, our common equity Tier 1 capital ratio (common equity Tier 1 capital divided by
risk-weighted assets) was 17.00%, Tier 1 capital ratio (Tier 1 capital divided by risk-weighted assets) was 18.11% and consolidated
capital adequacy ratio (total capital divided by risk-weighted assets) was 18.52% and we were in compliance with the requirement for
each ratio set outin the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company (required level as of September 30, 2018 was
6.79% for common equity Tier 1 capitalratio, 8.29% for Tier 1 capitalratio and 10.29% for consolidated capital adequacy ratio).

The following table presents the Company’s consolidated capital adequacy ratios as of September 30, 2018.

Billions of yen, except ratios
September 30, 2018

Common equity Tier 1 capital ¥ 2,547.8
Tier 1 capital 2,713.9
Total capital 2,775.0
Risk-Weighted Assets

Credit risk-weighted assets 7,923.1
Market riskequivalentassets 4,525.4
Operational riskequivalentassets 2,532.8
Total risk-weighted assets ¥ 14,981.3
Consolidated Capital Adequacy Ratios

Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio 17.00%
Tier 1 capitalratio 18.11%
Consolidated capital adequacy ratio 18.52%

Consolidated Leverage Ratio Requirements

In March 2015, the FSA set out requirements for the calculation and disclosure of a consolidated leverageratio, through
amendmentsto revising “Specification of items which a final designated parentcompany should disclose on documents to showthe
status of its sound management” (2010 FSA Regulatory Notice No. 132; “Notice on Pillar 3 Disclosure”) and the publication of
“Consolidated Leverage Ratio prescribed by Commissioner of Financial Services Agency in accordance with Article 3, paragraph 1 of
Pillar 3 Notice” (2015 FSA Regulatory Notice No. 11; “Notice on Consolidated Leverage Ratio”). Westarted calculatingand
disclosing a consolidated leverageratio fromMarch 31, 2015 in accordance with the Notice on Pillar 3 Disclosureand Notice on
Consolidated Leverage Ratio. Managementreceives and reviews this consolidated leverage ratio onaregular basis. As of
September 30, 2018, ourconsolidated leverage ratio was 4.45%.

(7) Current Challenges

There is no significantchange to our current challenges nor new challenges for the sixmonths ended September 30, 2018 and
untilthe submission date of this report.

3. Significant Contracts
Notapplicable.
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Item 3. Company Information
1. Share Capital Information
(1) Total Number of Shares
A. Number of Authorized Share Capital

Authorizd Share Capital

Type (shares)
Common stock 6,000,000,000
Class 1 preferred stock 200,000,000
Class 2 preferred stock 200,000,000
Class 3 preferred stock 200,000,000
Class 4 preferred stock 200,000,000
Total 6,000,000,000

The “Authorized Share Capital” is stated by the type of stockandthe “Total” is the number of authorized share capital as referred in
the Articles of Incorporation.

B. Issued Shares

Number of Number of
Issued Shares as of Issued Shares as of

Type September 30, 2018 November 14, 2018 Trading Markets Details
Common stock 3,643,562,601 3,643,562,601 Tokyo Stock Exchange® 1 unitis 100 shares

Nagoya Stock Exchange®

Singapore Exchange

New York Stock Exchange

Total 3,643,562,601 3,643,562,601 — —

(1) Shares thatmay have increased fromexercise of stock options between November 1, 2018 and the submission date (November
14, 2018) are not included in the number of issued shares as of the submission date.
(2) Listedonthe First Sectionofeach stockexchange.

(2) Stock Acquisition Rights
A. Stockoption
Notapplicable in this quarter.

B. Otherstockacquisition rights
Notapplicable in this quarter.

(3) BExercise of Moving Strike Bonds with Subscription Warrant
None

(4) Changesin Issued Shares, Shareholders’ Equity, etc.

Millions of yen

Increase/Decrease
of Shareholders’ Shareholders’ Increase/Decrease of
Increase/Decrease of Total Equity— Equity— Additional Additional
Date Issued Shares Issued Shares Common stock Common stock capital reserve capital reserve
September 30, 2018 — 3,643,562,601 — 594,493 — 559,676
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(5) Major Shareholders

As of September 30, 2018

Shares Held  Percentage of

Stock without votingright

Stock with limited votingright (T reasury stocks,
etc.)

Stock with limited voting right (Others)

Stock with full votingright (T reasury stocks, etc.)

Stock with full votingright (Others)
Shares less than 1 unit

Total Shares Issued
Voting Rights of Total Shareholders

(thousand  Issued Shares
Name Address shares) (%)
The Master Trust Bank of Japan Ltd. (Trust Account) 2-11-3, Hamamatsu-cho, Minato-ku, T okyo, Japan 164,188 4.85
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account) 1-8-11, Harumi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, Japan 160,636 4.75
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 5) 1-8-11, Harumi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, Japan 68,356 2.02
JP Morgan Chase Bank 385151 25 Bank Street, Canary Wharf, London, E14 5JP,
United Kingdom 61,455 1.82
State Street Bank West Client-T reaty 505234 1776 Heritage Drive, North Quincy, Massachusetts
02171, U.SA. 54,935 1.62
Northern Trust Co. (AVFC) Re Silchester International
Investors International Value Equity Trust 50 Bank Street Canary Wharf London E14 5NT, UK 54,140 1.60
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 1) 1-8-11, Harumi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, Japan 48,045 1.42
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 2) 1-8-11, Harumi, Chuo-ku, T okyo, Japan 47,313 1.40
SSBTC Client Omnibus Account One Lincoln Street. Boston MA USA 02111 47,050 1.39
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 7) 1-8-11, Harumi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, Japan 45,493 1.34
Total 751611 22.22
(1) The Company has260,740 thousand shares of treasury stock asof September 30, 2018 which are not included in the above table.
(2)  Figures for Shares Held are rounded down to the nearest thousand.
(6) Voting Rights
A. Outstanding Shares
As of September 30, 2018
Number of Shares Number of Votes Description

(Treasury Stocks)

Common stock 260,740,900 — —
(Crossholding Stocks)

Common stock 1,005,000 — —
Common stock 3,380,245,200 33,802,452 —

Common stock 1,571,501 — Shares less than 1 unit

(100 shares)

3,643,562,601 — —
— 33,802,452 —

2,000 shares held by Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc. are included in “Stock with full votingright (Others).” 89 shares of treasury stocksare

included in “Shares less than 1 unit.”
B. Treasury Stocks

As of September 30, 2018

Directly Indirectly Percentage of
held held Issued Shares

Name Address shares shares Total (%)
(Treasury Stocks)
Nomura Holdings, Inc. 1-9-1, Nihonbashi, Chuo-ku,

Tokyo, Japan 260,740,900 — 260,740,900 7.16
(Crossholding Stocks)
Nomura Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 1-26-2, Nishishinjuku,

Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo, Japan 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 0.03
Nomura Japan Corporation. 2-1-3 Nihonbashihoridomecho,

Chuo-ku, Tokyo, Japan 5,000 — 5,000 0.00
Total 261,745,900 — 261,745,900 7.18

18




Item 4. Financial Information

1

2

Preparation Method of Consolidated Financial Statements

@)

@

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles, procedures, and
presentations which are required in order to issue American Depositary Shares, i.e., U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, pursuant to Article 95 of “Regulations Concerningthe Terminology, Forms and Preparation Methods of
Quarterly Consolidated Financial Statements” (Cabinet Office Ordinance No. 64, 2007).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by making necessary adjustments to the financial statements of
each consolidated company which were prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in each
country. Such adjustments have been made to comply with the principles noted in (1) above.

Quarterly Review Certificate

Under Article 193-2 Section 1 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC performed
a quarterly review of the consolidated financial statements for the sixand three months ended September 30, 2018.

<Note>

AlthoughErnst & Young ShinNihon LLC reported that they applied limited procedures in accordance with professional
standards in Japan onthe interimconsolidated financial statements, prepared in Japanese for the sixand three months
ended September 30, 2018, they have not performed any such limited procedures nor havethey performed an audit on the
English translated version of the consolidated financial statements for the above-mentioned periods which are included in
this report on Form6-K.
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1. Consolidated Financial Statements
(1) Consolidated Balance Sheets (UNAUDITED)

Millions of yen

March 31, September 30,
Notes 2018 2018
ASSETS
Cash and cash deposits:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 2,354,639 ¥ 2,975,414
Time deposits 315,445 194,827
Deposits with stock exchanges and other segregated cash 288,962 294,180
Total cash and cash deposits 2,959,046 3,464,421
Loans and receivables:
Loans receivable (including ¥554,137 million and ¥601,864 million measured

at fair value by applyingthe fair value optionas of March 31, 2018 and

September 30, 2018, respectively) *2,8 2,462,503 2,308,099
Receivables fromcustomers (including ¥13 million and ¥8,634 million

measured at fair value by applying the fair value optionas of March 31,

2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively) *2,4 442,343 600,758
Receivables fromother than customers 973,867 677,956
Allowance for doubtful accounts *8 (3,514) (3,964)

Totalloans andreceivables 3,875,199 3,582,849
Collateralized agreements:
Securities purchased under agreements to resell (including

¥1,186,096 million and ¥800,535 million measured at fair value by

applying thefair value optionas of March 31, 2018 and September 30,

2018, respectively) *2 9,853,898 15,412,852
Securities borrowed 6,383,845 4,509,602

Total collateralized agreements 16,237,743 19,922,454
Trading assets and private equity investments:
Trading assets (including securities pledged as collateral of

¥5,486,551 million and ¥5,350,002 million as of March 31, 2018 and

September 30, 2018, respectively; including¥7,047 million and

¥7,984 million measured at fair value by applying the fair value optionas

of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively) *2,3 14,962,690 16,084,405
Private equity investments (including ¥4,416 million and ¥4,772 million

measured at fair value by applying the fair value optionas of March 31,

2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively) *2 17,466 18,055

Totaltrading assets and private equity investments 14,980,156 16,102,460
Otherassets:
Office buildings, land, equipmentand facilities (netofaccumulated

depreciationand amortization of ¥397,834 million and ¥423,552 million

as of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively) 338,984 323,938
Non-trading debt securities *2 485,891 451,875
Investments in equity securities *2 150,760 150,820
Investments in and advances to affiliated companies 408,034 418,330
Other (including ¥176,029 million and ¥179,039 million measured at fair

value by applying the fair value option as of March 31, 2018 and

September 30, 2018, respectively) *2,10 908,134 943,192

Total otherassets 2,291,803 2,288,155
Totalassets ¥ 40,343,947 ¥ 45,360,339
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(1) Consolidated Balance Sheets—(Continued) (UNAUDITED)

Millions of yen

March 31, September 30,
Notes 2018 2018
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Short-termborrowings (including ¥372,188 million and ¥408,344 million measured
at fair value by applyingthe fair value optionas of March 31, 2018 and
September 30, 2018, respectively) *2 ¥ 743,497 ¥ 980,269
Payables and deposits:
Payables to customers *4 1,176,773 1,318,876
Payables toother than customers 1,239,540 1,422,757
Depositsreceivedat banks *2 1,151,342 1,182,640
Total payables and deposits 3,567,655 3,924,273
Collateralized financing:
Securities soldunderagreements to repurchase (including ¥435,905 million
and ¥218,154 million measured at fair value by applying the fair value
option as of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively) *2 14,759,010 18,645,764
Securities loaned (including¥133,375million and ¥136,454 million
measured at fair value by applying the fair value optionas of March 31,
2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively) *2 1,524,363 1,371,260
Othersecuredborrowings 413,621 420,362
Total collateralized financing 16,696,994 20,437,386
Trading liabilities *2,3 8,202,936 8,600,314
Other liabilities (including ¥25,482 million and ¥18,788 million measured at fair
value by applying the fairvalue option as of March 31, 2018 and September 30,
2018, respectively) *2,10 950,534 877,846
Long-termborrowings (including¥2,857,835 million and ¥3,140,801 million
measured at fair value by applying the fair value optionas of March 31, 2018
and September 30, 2018, respectively) *2 7,382,507 7,694,241
Total liabilities 37,544,123 42,514,329
Commitments and contingencies *15
Equity:
Nomura Holdings, Inc. (“NHI”) shareholders’ equity:
Common stock
No parvalue share
Authorized—~6,000,000,000 shares as of March 31, 2018 and
September 30, 2018
Issued—3,643,562,601 shares as of March 31, 2018 and September 30,
2018
Outstanding—3,392,937,486 shares as of March 31,2018 and
3,382,481,612 sharesas of September 30, 2018 594,493 594,493
Additional paid-in capital 675,280 681,058
Retained earnings 1,696,890 1,681,445
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome *14 (59,356) 6,373
Total NHI shareholders’ equity before treasury stock 2,907,307 2,963,369
Common stock held in treasury, at cost—250,625,115 shares as of March 31, 2018
and 261,080,989 shares as of September 30, 2018 (157,987) (162,592)
Total NHI shareholders’ equity 2,749,320 2,800,777
Noncontrolling interests 50,504 45,233
Totalequity 2,799,824 2,846,010
Totalliabilities and equity ¥ 40,343,947 ¥ 45,360,339
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(1) Consolidated Balance Sheets—(Continued) (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents the classification of consolidated variable interestentities’ (“\VIEs ) assets and liabilities included
in the consolidated balance sheets above. The assets of a consolidated VIE may only be used to settle obligations of that VIE.

Creditors do nottypically have any recourse to Nomura beyondthe assets held in the VIEs. See Note 7 “Securitizations and Variable
Interest Entities” for further information.

Billions of yen
March 31, September 30,

2018 2018
Cash and cash deposits ¥ 23 ¥ 18
Trading assets and private equity investments 1,186 1,259
Otherassets 91 7
Totalassets ¥ 1,300 ¥ 1,354
Trading liabilities ¥ 22 ¥ 21
Other liabilities 2 2
Borrowings 953 953
Total liabilities ¥ 977 ¥ 976

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(2) Consolidated Statements of Income (UNAUDITED)

Revenue:
Commissions
Fees frominvestmentbanking
Asset management and portfolio service fees
Net gain on trading
Gain on private equity investments
Interest and dividends
Gain on investments in equity securities
Other

Totalrevenue
Interest expense
Net revenue
Non-interest expenses:
Compensationand benefits
Commissions and floor brokerage
Information processingand communications
Occupancyand related depreciation
Business developmentexpenses
Other

Totalnon-interestexpenses
Income before income taxes
Income taxexpense

Net income (loss)
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders

Per share of common stock:
Basic—

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders per share
Diluted—

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders per share

Millions of yen

Six months ended September 30

Notes 2017 2018
*4 ¥ 176,292 ¥ 154,239
*4 49,790 43,078
*4 119,555 125,721
*2,3 208,858 147,639
29 874
276,004 358,293
3,122 988
*4 96,665 48,534
930,315 879,366
217,999 324,447
712,316 554,919
258,284 253,500
*4 49,017 40,514
91,832 81,476
34,265 32,840
16,232 18,233
102,204 114,246
551,834 540,809
160,482 14,110
*13 48,828 16,633
¥ 111654 ¥ (2,523)
2,948 3,487
¥ 108,706 ¥ (6,010)

Yen

Six months ended September 30

Notes 2017 2018

*11

¥ 30.79 ¥ (1.77)
¥ 30.20 ¥ (1.78)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Revenue:
Commissions
Fees frominvestmentbanking

Asset management and portfolio servicefees

Net gain on trading
Gain (loss) on private equity investments
Interest and dividends

Gain (loss)on investments in equity securities

Other

Totalrevenue
Interest expense
Net revenue
Non-interest expenses:
Compensationand benefits
Commissions and floor brokerage

Information processingand communications

Occupancyand related depreciation
Business developmentexpenses
Other

Totalnon-interestexpenses

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Less: Net income attributable tononcontrolling interests
Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders

Per share of common stock:
Basic—

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders per share

Diluted—

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders per share

Millions of yen

Three months ended September 30

Notes 2017 2018
*4 ¥ 85324 ¥ 74,783
*4 27,083 19,119
*4 61,212 62,740
*2,3 88,391 75,752
(330) 321
141,612 188,703
3,060 (1,104)
*4 56,037 28,067
462,389 448,381
110,896 165,459
351,493 282,922
122,035 125,800
*4 25,242 19,579
47,263 40,515
17,209 16,464
7,823 9,337
48,882 70,760
268,454 282,455
83,039 467
*13 29,423 9,703
¥ 53616 ¥ (9,236)
1,766 1,997

¥ 51,850 ¥ (11,233)

Yen

Three months ended
September 30

Notes 2017 2018
*11
¥ 1470 ¥ (3.31)
¥ 1445 ¥ (3.32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(3) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (UNAUDITED)

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30
2017 2018
¥ 111,654 ¥ (2,523)

Net income (loss)
Othercomprehensiveincome:
Cumulative translation adjustments:

Cumulative translation adjustments 10,636 64,297
Deferred income taxes (801) (1,966)
Total 9,835 62,331
Defined benefit pensionplans:
Pension liability adjustment 381 2,064
Deferred income taxes (18) (807)
Total 363 1,257
Non-tradingsecurities:
Net unrealized gain on non-trading securities 1,487 —
Deferred income taxes (179) —
Total 1,308 —
Own credit adjustments:
Own credit adjustments: (10,670) 4,720
Deferred income taxes 1,331 (1,380)
Total (9,339) 3,340
Total other comprehensive income 2,167 66,928
Comprehensive income ¥ 113,821 ¥ 64,405
3,182 4,686

Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income attributable to NHI shareholders ¥

110,639 ¥ 59,719

Millions of yen
Three months ended September 30
2017 2018

¥ 53616 ¥ (9,236)

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensiveincome:
Cumulative translation adjustments:

Cumulative translationadjustments 7,550 31,941
Deferred income taxes (480) (2,218)
Total 7,070 29,723
Defined benefit pensionplans:
Pension liability adjustment 2,090 1,018
Deferred income taxes (121) (481)
Total 1,969 537
Non-trading securities:
Net unrealized gain (loss) on non-trading securities (678) —
Deferred income taxes 295 —
Total (383) —
Own credit adjustments:
Own credit adjustments: (4,593) (532)
Deferred income taxes 120 (358)
Total (4,473) (890)
Total other comprehensive income 4,183 29,370
Comprehensive income ¥ 57,799 ¥ 20,134
1,452 2,447

Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to NHI shareholders ¥ 56,347 ¥ 17,687

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(4) Consolidated Statements of Changesin Equity (UNAUDITED)

Common stock
Balance at beginning of year

Balance at end of period
Additional paid-in capital

Balance at beginning of year

Stock-based compensation awards

Balance at end of period

Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of year
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle®
Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders
Cash dividends®
Gain (loss) on sales of treasury stock

Balance at end of period

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Cumulative translation adjustments
Balance at beginning of year
Net change during the period

Balance at end of period
Defined benefit pension plans

Balance at beginning of year
Pension liability adjustment

Balance at end of period
Non-trading securities
Balance at beginning of year
Net unrealized gain on non-tradingsecurities
Balance at end of period
Own credit adjustments

Balance at beginning of year
Own credit adjustments

Balance at end of period
Balance at end of period

Common stock heldin treasury
Balance at beginning of year
Repurchases of common stock
Sales of common stock
Common stock issued to employees
Other net change in treasury stock

Balance at end of period
Total NHI shareholders’ equity
Balance at end of period

Noncontrollinginterests
Balance at beginning of year
Cash dividends
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Accumulated other comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Purchase / sale of subsidiary shares, net
Other net change in noncontrollinginterests

Balance at end of period

Total equity
Balance at end of period

Millions of yen

Sixmonths ended September 30

2017 2018
504493 ¥ 594493
594,493 594,493
681,329 675,280

(3,883) 5,778
677,446 681,058
1,663,234 1,696,890
— 1,564
108,706 (6,010)
(31,375) (10,147)
(3,698) (852)
1,736,867 1,681,445
47,767 (15,596)
9,834 61,132
57,601 45,536
(41,020) (47,837)
363 1,257
(40,657) (46,580)
20,344 —
1,075 —
21,419 —
6,561 4,077
(9,339) 3,340
(2,778) 7,417
35,585 6,373
(182,792) (157,987)
(39,305) (9,933)
0 0
13,356 5,328
562 —
(208,179) (162,592)
2,836,212 2,800,777
53,875 50,504
(1,898) (2,235)
2,948 3,487
234 1,199
180 415
856 (8,137)
56,195 45,233
2,892,407 ¥ 2,846,010

1) Representsthe adjustment to initially apply Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers.”

2) Dividends per share Six monthsended September 30,2017 ¥ 9.00
Six months ended September 30,2018 ¥ 3.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Three monthsended September 30,2017 ¥ 9.00
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(5) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (UNAUDITED)

Millions of yen
Sixmonths ended September 30

2017 2018
Cash flowsfrom operating activities:
Net income (loss) ¥ 111654 ¥ (2,523)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operatingactivities:
Depreciation andamortization 35,940 28,725
Gain on investmentsin equity securities (3,122) (988)
Deferred income taxes 11,673 13,266
Changes in operatingassetsand liabilities:
Time deposits 1,539 125,764
Depositswith stock exchangesand other segregated cash® (20,167) 10,864
Tradingassets and private equity investments® (1,088,549) (550,706)
Trading liabilities® 312,184 132,477
Securities purchased under agreementsto resell, net of securities sold under agreementsto
repurchase (1,155,894) (2,037,613)
Securities borrowed, net of securities loaned 1,407,536 1,743,470
Other secured borrowings 40,404 1,471
Loansand receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts® (149,153) 453972
Payables® 196,468 267,740
Bonus accrual (65,486) (76,482
Accrued income taxes, net 15,156 (7,291)
Other, net 37,739 6,730
Net cash provided by (used in) operatingactivities® (312,078) 108,876
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for purchases of office buildings, land, equipment and facilities (92,239) (139,702)
Proceeds from sales of office buildings, land, equipment and facilities 75,375 143,245
Paymentsfor purchases of investments in equity securities (61) —
Proceeds from sales of investmentsin equity securities 466 183
Decrease (increase) in loansreceivable at banks, net 277 (14,137)
Decrease in non-trading debt securities, net 49,119 38,103
Other, net 41,789 750
Net cash provided by investingactivities 74,726 28,442
Cash flowsfrom financing activities:
Increase in long-term borrowings 1,318,432 1,065,772
Decrease in long-term borrowings (1,007,078) (846,050)
Increase in short-term borrowings, net 85,473 216,403
Increase in deposits receivedat banks, net 39,845 25,507
Proceeds from sales of common stock heldin treasury 431 174
Paymentsfor repurchases of common stock held in treasury (39,305) (9,933)
Payments for cash dividends (38,821) (37,326)
Net cash provided by financingactivities 358977 414547
Effect of exchange rate changeson cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents® 9,065 69,126
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents® 130,690 620,991
Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents at beginning of year® 2,537,066 2,354,868
Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents at end of period® ¥ 2,667,756 ¥ 2,975859

Supplemental information:
Cash paid during the period for—
Interest 220,023 ¥ 311,046
Income tax payments, net ¥ 21,999 ¥ 10,659

+#

(1) Due tochangesin accountingpolicy which Nomura adoptedon April 1, 2018, certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported
amounts have been made to conform to the current year presentation. See Item 4. Financial Information, 1. Consolidated Financial Statements,
Note 1. “Basis of Accounting” for further details.

(2)  Inaccordance with ASU 2016-18 “Restricted Cash” which Nomura adopted on April 1, 2018, certain reclassification of amounts previously
reportedas cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents for the six months ended September 30, 2017 have been
made to conform to the current year presentation.
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The following table presentsa reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents as reported
within the consolidated balance sheetsto the total of the same suchamounts shownin the statements of cash flows above. Restricted
cash and restricted cash equivalents are amounts where access, withdrawal or usage by Nomura is substantively prohibited by a third

party entity outside of the Nomura group.

Cash and cash equivalents reported in Cash and cashequivalents

Restricted cashand restricted cash equivalents reported in Deposits with stock exchanges and other
segregatedcash

Totalcash, cashequivalent, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents

Millions of yen

Six months ended
September 30

2017 2018

¥2,667,593  ¥2,975,414

¥ 163 ¥ 445

¥2,667,756  ¥2,975,859

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (UNAUDITED)
1. Basisofaccounting:

In December 2001, Nomura Holdings, Inc. (“the Company”) filed a registration statement, in accordance with the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) in orderto list its American Depositary
Shares (“ADS”) on the New York Stock Exchange. Since then, the Company has hadan obligationto file an annual report on Form
20-F with the SEC in accordance with the Securities Exchange Actof1934.

Therefore, the Company and other entities in which it has a controlling financial interest (collectively “Nomura”) prepares
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting principles, procedures and presentations which are required in
orderto issue ADS, i.e., U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”), pursuant to Article 95 of “Regulations
Concerningthe Terminology, Forms and Preparation Methods of Quarterly Consolidated Financial Statements” (Cabinet Office
Ordinance No. 64, 2007).

The following paragraphs describe the major differences between U.S. GAAP applied by Nomura andaccounting principles
generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”) forthe sixand three months ended September 30, 2018. Where theeffect ofthese
major differences are significantto Income before incometaxes, Nomura discloses as (higher) or (lower) belowthe amount by which
Income before income taxes based on U.S. GAAP was higher or lower than Japanese GAAP, respectively.

Scope of consolidation—

Under U.S. GAAP, the scope of consolidationis mainly determined by the ownership ofa majority ofthe voting interests in an
entity or by identifying the primary beneficiary of variable interest entities. Under Japanese GAAP, the scope of consolidation is
determined by a “financial controlling model”, which takes intoaccountthe ownership level of voting interests in an entity and other
factors.

Unrealizedgains and losses oninvestments inequity securities—

Under U.S. GAAP applicable to broker-dealers, minority investments in equity securities are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in earnings. Under Japanese GAAP, theseinvestments are also measured at fair value, but unrealized
gains and losses, netofapplicable income taxes, are reported in other comprehensive income. Income before income taxes prepared
under U.S. GAAP, therefore, was ¥2,735million (higher)and ¥936 million (higher) forthe sixmonths ended September 30, 2017 and
2018, respectively and¥2,716 million (higher)and ¥1,111 million (lower) for the three months ended September 30, 2017 and 2018,
respectively.

Unrealizedgains and losses on non-trading debt and equity securities—

Under U.S. GAAP applicable to broker-dealers, non-trading securities are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in earnings. Under Japanese GAAP, thesesecurities are also measured at fair value, but unrealized gains and losses, net of
applicable income taxes, are reported in other comprehensive income. Income before income taxes prepared under U.S. GAAP,
therefore, was ¥351 million (higher) and ¥2,108 million (lower) for the sixmonths ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively,
and ¥192 million (higher)and ¥1,297 million (lower) forthe three months ended September 30,2017 and 2018, respectively fornon-
trading debtsecurities. Income before income taxes prepared under U.S. GAAP was ¥1,739 million (higher)and ¥587 million (lower)
for the sixmonths ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively,and¥1,139 million (higher)and ¥993 million (lower) for the
three months ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively for non-trading equity securities.

Retirementand sewerance benefits—

Under U.S. GAAP, gains or losses resulting fromeither experience that is different froman actuarialassumptionorachange in
assumptionis amortized overtheaverageremaining service period of employees whena net gain or loss at thebeginning oftheyear
exceeds the “Corridor” which is definedas 10% of the larger of projected benefit obligation or the fair value of plan assets. Under
Japanese GAAP, these gains or losses are amortized over a certain period regardless of the Corridor.
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Amortization of goodwill and equity method goodwill—

Under U.S. GAAP, goodwillis not amortized and is tested for impairment periodically. Under Japanese GAAP, goodwill is
amortized over certain periods of less than 20 years usingthestraight-line method. Therefore, under U.S. GAAP, Income before
income taxes was ¥3,481 million (higher) and ¥3,462 million (higher) forthe sixmonths ended September 30, 2017 and 2018,
respectively,and ¥1,682 million (higher)and ¥1,740 million (higher) forthe three months ended September 30,2017 and 2018,
respectively.

Changes in the fair value of derivative contracts—

Under U.S. GAAP, all derivative contracts, including derivative contracts that have been designated as hedges of specific assets
or specific liabilities, are carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized either in earnings or other comprehensive income.
Under Japanese GAAP, derivative contracts thathave been entered into for hedging purposes are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value, net ofapplicable income taxes, recognized in other comprehensive income.

Fair value for financial assets andfinancial liabilities—

Under U.S. GAAP, the fair value option may be elected for eligible financial assets and financial liabilities which would
otherwise be carried on a basis other thanfairvalue (“the fair value option”). Where the fair value optionis elected, the financial asset
or liability is carried at fair value with changes in fair value are recognized in earnings. Under Japanese GAAP, the fair value option s
not permitted. Therefore, under U.S. GAAP, Income before income taxes was ¥11,915million (higher)and ¥1,101 million (lower) for
the sixmonths ended September 30,2017 and 2018, respectivelyand ¥11,433 million (higher) and ¥2,642 million (higher) forthe
three months ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively. In addition, non-marketable equity securities whichare carried at fair
value under U.S. GAAP applicable to broker-dealers are carried at cost less impairment loss under Japanese GAAP.

Offsetting of amounts related to certain contracts—

Under U.S. GAAP, an entity thatis party to a master nettingarrangement is permitted to offset fair value amounts recognized
for theright to reclaimcash collateral (a receivable) or the obligation to return cash collateral (a payable) against fair value amounts
recognized for derivative instruments that have been offsetunder the same master nettingarrangement. Under Japanese GAAP,
offsetting of such amounts is not permitted.

Stock issuance costs—

Under U.S. GAAP, stock issuance costs are deducted fromcapital. Under Japanese GAAP, stock issuance costs are either
immediately expensedor capitalized as a deferred assetand amortized over periods of up to three years using thestraight-line method.

Accounting for change in controlling interestinaconsolidated subsidiary’s shares—

Under U.S. GAAP, when a parent’s ownership interestdecreases as a result of sales ofa subsidiary’s common shares by the
parent and such subsidiary becomes an equity method investee, the parent’s remaining investment in the former subsidiary is
measured at fair value as ofthe dateof loss ofa controlling interestand a related valuation gain or loss is recognized in earnings.
UnderJapanese GAAP, the remaining investmenton the parent’s consolidated balance sheetis calculatedas thesumofthe carrying
amount of investmentin the equity method investeerecorded in the parent’s stand-alone balance sheet as adjusted for the share of net
income or losses and otheradjustments frominitial acquisitionthroughto thedate of loss of a controlling interestmultiplied by the
ratio of the remaining shareholding percentage againstthe holding percentage prior to loss of control.
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New accounting pronouncements recently adopted—

No new accounting pronouncementsrelevant to Nomura were adopted during the three months ended September 30, 2018.

The following table presentsasummary of new accounting pronouncementsrelevantto Nomura which have been adopted during the three

months ended June 30, 2018:

Pronouncement

ASU 2014-09,

“Revenue from Contracts with
Customers™®

ASU 2016-15,

“Classification of Certain Cash
Receipts and Cash Payments”

and ASU 2016-18, “Restricted
Cash”

ASU 2017-07,

“Improving the Presentation of
Net Periodic Pension Cost and
Net Periodic Postretirement
Benefit Cost”

Actual adoption Effect on these
date and method consolidated
Summary of newguidance of adoption statements
Replaces existing revenue recognition guidance in ASC 605 Modified ¥1,564 million

“Revenue Recognition” and certain industry-specific revenue retrospective
recognition guidance with a new prescriptive model for adoption from
recognition of revenue for services providedto customers. April 1,2018.

Introduces specific guidance for the treatment of variable
consideration, non-cash consideration, significant financing
arrangementsand amounts payable to the customer.

Revises existingguidance for principal-versus-agency
determination.

Requires revenue recognition and measurement principlesto
be applied to sales of nonfinancial and in substance
nonfinancial assetsto noncustomers.

Specifies the accounting for coststo obtain or fulfill a
customer contract.

Requires extensive new footnote disclosures around nature
and type of revenue from services provided to customers.

Amends the classification of certain cash receiptsand cash
paymentsin the statement of cash flows.

Full retrospective
adoption from

. . . . April 1,2018.
Requires movementsin restricted cash and restricted cash pril 1,2018

equivalents to be presentedas part of cash and cash
equivalents in the statement of cash flows.

Requires new disclosures on the nature and amount of
restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents.

Clarifies the service cost component of net periodic pension  Full retrospective
cost to be reportedin the same income statement lineitemas adoption from
compensation costsarising from other services. April 1,2018.

Clarifies only the service cost component is eligible for
capitalization asan asset when applicable.

adjustment to Retained
earnings, ¥517 million
adjustment to Payables
to otherthan customers,
¥1,750 million
adjustment to Other
long-term assets, and
¥703 millionto
Deferred tax assets due
to change in timing of
recognition of revenues
from sales of certain
investment funds upon
adoption on April 1,
2018. Other transitional
changes were not
significant.®

¥445 million of
restricted cash and
restricted cash
equivalents are now
presentedwith cash and
cash equivalents in the
statements of cash flows
during the half year
ended September 30,
2018 andsimilar
reclassifications have
been made in
comparative periods
presented. See the
reconciliation table
provided with the
statements of cash flows
for further details.

¥541 million
reclassification from
Compensation and
benefits to Other
expenses. Impactson
comparative periods
presentedwere
immaterial.

(1)  Assubsequently amended by ASU 2015-14 “Revenue from Contractswith Customers—Deferral of the Effective Date”, ASU 2016 -08
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers—Principal versus Agent Considerations™, ASU 2016-10 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers—Identifying Performance Obligationsand Licensing” and certain other Accounting Standard Updates.

(2)  See Note4 “Revenue from services provided to customers” for new disclosures of revenues from services have been made and for further
details of the impact of adoption of the newguidance.
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In addition, Nomura changed itsaccountingpolicy for derivative transactionsasfollows.

Nomura collectsand remits cash margin between institutional investorsand central clearinghouses in its execution and clearing services of
exchange-traded derivative transactions. Cash margin remittedto central clearinghouses was reflected on Nomura’s consolidated balance sheets.
However, with effect from April 1, 2018, revisiting nature of the transactions, Nomura has revised itsaccounting policy for when such balances are
recognized on Nomura’s consolidated group balance sheet and as a result, certain cash margin amountsas well as an equivalent amount reflectingthe
obligation to return such amountsto clientsare no longer recognized on the balance sheet if certain criteria are met. Nomura has restated previously
reportedamounts of Receivables from other than customers decreased by ¥237.0 billion and Payablesto other than customers decreased by
¥237.0 hillion, respectively, to conformto the current presentation.

Daily variation margin for certain derivative transactionstraded in Japan was reflected on Nomura’s consolidated balance sheets. However,
from April 1, 2018, Nomura changed itsaccounting policy as a result of amendment of the rules of a specific central clearing house and daily
variation margin and related derivative assets and liabilities are no longer recognized on the balance sheet. Nomura has restated previously reported
amounts of Trading assets decreased by ¥4.9 hillion, Receivablesfrom other than customers decreased by ¥5.5 billion and Trading liabilities
decreased by ¥10.4 billion respectively to conformto the current presentation.

Future accounting developments—

The following table presentsasummary of new authoritative accounting pronouncements relevant to Nomura which will be adoptedon or
after April 1, 2019 and which may have a material impact on these financial statements:

Expected adoption Effect on these
date and method consolidated
Pronouncement Summary of newguidance of adoption statements
ASU 2016-02, ¢ Replaces ASC 840 “Leases”, the current guidance on lease Modified Currently evaluating the
“Leases”® accounting, and revised the definition of a lease. retrospective potential impact
adoption from however agross up of

* Requires all lessees to recognize a right of use asset and

. oo April 1,2019.@®  Nomura’s balance sheet
corresponding lease liability on balance sheet. pritS, u

is expected on adoption
e Lessor accountingis largely unchanged from current date and in subsequent
guidance. reporting periods.

« Simplifies the accountingfor sale leaseback and “build-to-
suit” leases.

* Requires extensive new qualitative and quantitative footnote
disclosures on lease arrangements.

ASU 2016-13, ¢ Introducesa new model for recognition and measurement of  Modified Currently evaluating the
“Measurement of Credit Losses credit losses against certain financial instruments such as retrospective potential impact but an
on Financial Instruments™ loans, debt securities and receivables which are not carriedat adoption from overall increase in
fair value with changes in fair value recognized through April 1,2020.9 allowances for credit
earnings. The model also applies to off balance sheet credit losses are expectedto
exposures such as written loan commitments, standby letters be recognized which
of credit and issued financial guarantees not accountedfor as will impact earnings in
insurance, which are not carriedat fair value through subsequent reporting
earnings. periods.

¢ Thenewmodel based on lifetime current expected credit
losses (CECL) measurement, to be recognized at the time an
in-scope instrument isoriginated, acquired or issued.

¢ Replaces existing incurred credit losses model under current
GAAP.

¢ Requires enhanced qualitative and quantitative disclosures
around credit risk, the methodology used to estimate and
monitor expected credit losses and changes in estimates of
expected credit losses.

(1)  Assubsequently amended by ASU 2018-01 *“Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition to Topic 842, ASU 2018-10 “Codification
Improvementsto Topic 842, Leases”, and ASU 2018-11 “Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements.”

(2) Nomura plansto use certain practical expedients permitted by ASC 842 including adoptingthe new requirements through a cumulative-effect
adjustment to retained earnings on adoption date.

(3)  Unless Nomura early adopts which is considered unlikely as of the date of these consolidated financial statements.
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2. Fair value measurements:
The fair value of financial instruments

A significant amount of Nomura’s financial instruments are measured at fair value. Financial assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis are reported in the consolidated balance sheets within Trading assets and private equity investments, Loans and
receivables, Collateralized agreements and Other assets. Financial liabilities measured at fairvalue on a recurring basis are reported
within Tradingliabilities, Short-term borrowings, Payables and deposits, Collateralized financing, Long-term borrowings and Other
liabilities.

Otherfinancial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, wherethe primary
measurement basis is notfair value but where fair value is usedin specific circumstances after initial recognition, such as to measure
impairment.

In all cases, fairvalue is determined in accordance with ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” (*ASC 820”)
which defines fair value as theamountthat would be exchanged to sella financial assetor transfer a financial liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurementdate. It assumes that thetransaction occurs in the principal market forthe
relevant financial assets or financial liabilities, orin the absence ofa principal market, the most advantageous market.

Fair value is usually determined onan individual financial instrumentbasis consistent with the unit of account of the financial
instrument. However, certain financial instruments managed on a portfolio basis are valued as a portfolio, namely based on the price
that would be received tosellanet long position (i.e., a net financial asset) or transfera net short position (i.e., a net financial liability)
consistentwith how market participants would price thenet risk exposure at the measurement date.

Financial assets measured at fair value also include investments in certain funds where, as a practical expedient, fair value is
determined on thebasis of net asset value pershare (“NAVpershare™) ifthe NAVpershare is calculatedin accordancewith certain
industry standard principles.

Increases and decreases in the fair value ofassets and liabilities will significantly impact Nomura’s position, performance,
liquidity and capital resources. As explained below, valuation techniques applied contain inherentuncertainties and Nomura is unable
to predict the accurate impact of future developments in the market. Where appropriate, Nomura uses economic hedging strategiesto
mitigate its risk, althoughthese hedges are also subject to unpredictable movements in the market.

Valuation methodology for financial instruments carriedat fair value on a recurringbasis

The fair value of financial instruments is based on quoted market prices including market indices, broker or dealer quotations or
an estimation by management of the expected exit price under currentmarket conditions. Various financial instruments, including
cash instruments and over-the-counter (“OTC”) contracts, have bid and offer prices that are observable in the market. Theseare
measured at the pointwithin the bid-offer rangewhich bestrepresents Nomura’s estimate of fair value. Where quoted market prices or
broker or dealer quotations are not available, prices for similar instruments or valuation pricing models are considered in the
determination of fair value.

Where quoted prices are available in active markets, no valuation adjustments are taken to modify the fair value ofassets or
liabilities marked using such prices. Other instruments may be measured using valuation techniques, such as valuation pricing models
incorporating observable valuation inputs, unobservable parameters ora combination of both. Valuation pricing models use valuation
inputs whichwould be considered by market participants in valuing similar financial instruments.

Valuation pricing models andtheir underlying assumptions impact the amount and timing of unrealized and realized gainsand
lossesrecognized, andthe use of different valuation pricing models or underlyingassumptions could produce different financial
results. Valuationuncertainty results froma variety of factors, including the valuation technique or model selected, the quantitative
assumptions used within the valuation model, the inputs intothe model, as well as other factors. Valuationadjustments are used to
reflect the assessmentofthis uncertainty. Common valuation adjustments include model reserves, credit adjustments, close-out
adjustments, and other appropriate instrument-specific adjustments, such as those to reflect transfer or sale restrictions.
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The levelof adjustments is largely judgmental and is based on an assessmentofthe factors that managementbelieve other
market participants would usein determining the fair value of similar financial instruments. The type of adjustments taken, the
methodology for the calculation of theseadjustments, and the valuation inputs for these calculations are reassessed periodically to
reflect current market practice andthe availability of new information.

Forexample, the fair value of certain financial instruments includes adjustments for credit risk; both with regards to
counterparty credit risk on positions held and Nomura’s own creditworthiness on positions issued. Credit risk on financial assets is
significantly mitigated by credit enhancements suchas collateraland netting arrangements. Any net credit exposure is measured using
available and applicable valuation inputs for the relevant counterparty. The same approach is usedto measure the credit exposure on
Nomura’s financial liabilities as is used to measure counterparty credit riskon Nomura’s financial assets.

Such valuation pricing models are calibrated to the market on a regular basis and inputs used are adjusted for current market
conditionsandrisks. The Global Model Validation Group (*“MVG”) within Nomura’s Risk Management Departmentreviews pricing
models and assesses modelappropriateness and consistency independently ofthe frontoffice. The model reviews consideranumber
of factors about a model’s suitability for valuationandsensitivity ofa particular product. Valuation models are calibrated to the
market on a periodic basis by comparisonto observable market pricing, comparison with alternative models and analysis of risk
profiles.

As explained above, any changes in fixed income, equity, foreign exchange and commodity markets can impact Nomura’s
estimates of fair value in the future, potentially affectingtrading gains and losses. Where financial contracts have longer maturity
dates, Nomura’s estimates of fair value may involve greater subjectivity due tothe lack of transparent market data.

Fair value hierarchy

All financialinstruments measured at fair value, including those measured at fair value using the fair value option, have been
categorized intoa three-level hierarchy (“fair value hierarchy”) based onthe transparency of valuationinputs used by Nomurato
estimate fairvalue. A financial instrumentis classified in the fair value hierarchy based onthe lowest level of input thatis significant
to the fair value measurement ofthe financial instrument. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are definedas follows, with
Level 1 representing themost transparentinputs and Level 3representing the leasttransparentinputs:

Level 1:

Observable valuation inputs thatreflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical financial instruments traded in active markets at
the measurementdate.

Level 2:

Valuation inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are either directly or indirectly observable for the
financial instrument.

Level 3:
Unobservable valuation inputs which reflect Nomura assumptions and specific data.

The availability of valuation inputs observable in the market varies by product and can be affected by a variety of factors.
Significant factorsinclude, butare not restricted to the prevalence of similar products in the market, especially for customized
products, how established the productis in the market, for example, whether it is a new productoris relatively mature, and the
reliability of information providedin the market which would depend, forexample, on the frequency andvolume of current data. A
period of significantchange in the market may reduce the availability of observable data. Under such circumstances, financial
instruments may be reclassified into a lower levelin the fair value hierarchy.

Significant judgments used in determining the classification of financial instruments include the nature ofthe market in which
the product would be traded, the underlyingrisks, thetype and liquidity of market data inputs and the nature of observed transactions
for similar instruments.

Where valuationmodels includethe use of valuation inputs which are less observable or unobservable in the market, significant
management judgmentis used in establishing fair value. The valuations for Level 3 financial instruments, therefore, involvea greater
degree of judgmentthanthosevaluations for Level 1 or Level 2 financial instruments.

Certain criteria management useto determine whethera market is active or inactive include the number of transactions, the

frequencythat pricing is updated by other market participants, the variability of price quotes among market participants, andthe
amount of publicly available information.
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Assets:

The following tables present the amounts of Nomura’s financial instruments measured at fair value ona recurring basis as of March 31, 2018 and
September 30,2018 withinthe fairvalue hierarchy.

Trading assets and private equity investments®
Equities®
Private equity investments®
Japanese government securities
Japanese agency and municipal securities
Foreign government, agency and municipal securities
Bank and corporate debt securities and loans for trading purposes
Commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”)
Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”)
Real estate-backed securities
Collateralized debt obligations (“ CDOs”) and other®
Investment trust funds and other
Total trading assets and private equity investments
Derivative assets®®
Equity contracts
Interest rate contracts
Credit contracts
Foreign exchange contracts

Commodity contracts
Netting

Total derivative assets

Subtotal

Total

Loans and receivables®
Collateralized agreements®
Other assets
Non-trading debt securities
Other@®

Liabilities:

Trading liabilities
Equities
Japanese government securities
Japanese agency and municipal securities
Foreign government, agency and municipal securities
Bank and corporate debt securities
Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”)
Collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”) and other®
Investment trust funds and other

Total trading liabilities

Derivative liabilities®®®
Equity contracts
Interest rate contracts
Credit contracts
Foreign exchange contracts
Commodity contracts
Netting

Total derivative liabilities

Subtotal

Total

Short-term borrowings®
Payables and deposits®
Collateralized financing™
Long-term borrowings®@0a
Other liabilities®

Billions of yen

March 31, 2018

Counterparty
and Cash
Collateral Balance as of
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting® March 31, 2018
¥ 1,741 ¥ 907 ¥ 21 ¥ — ¥ 2,669
— 3 3 — 6
2,205 — — — 2,205
— 188 1 — 189
2,980 1,234 6 — 4,220
— 1,186 139 — 1,325
— 2 2 — 4
— 2,803 0 — 2,803
— — 63 — 63
— 62 24 — 86
271 67 1 — 339
7,197 6,452 260 — 13,909
2 973 36 — 1,011
16 8,009 71 — 8,096
0 498 17 — 515
0 5,447 48 — 5,495
1 0 — — 1
— — — (14,094) (14,094)
19 14,927 172 (14,094) 1,024
¥ 7,216 ¥ 21,379 ¥ 432 ¥ (14,094) ¥ 14,933
— 484 70 — 554
— 1,181 5 — 1,186
133 353 — — 486
463 15 169 — 647
¥ 7,812 ¥ 23412 ¥ 676 ¥ (14,094) ¥ 17,806
¥ 1,146 ¥ 191 ¥ 1 ¥ — ¥ 1,338
2,263 — — — 2,263
— 1 — — 1
2,786 590 — — 3,376
— 391 0 — 391
— 1 — — 1
— 3 0 — 3
71 25 0 — 96
6,266 1,202 1 — 7,469
1 1,080 37 — 1,118
9 7,427 124 — 7,560
0 410 15 — 425
0 5,066 21 — 5,087
1 0 — — 1
_ — — (13,457) (13,457)
1 13,983 197 (13,457) 734
¥ 6,277 ¥ 15,185 ¥ 198 ¥ (13,457) ¥ 8,203
— 355 17 — 372
— 0 (Y] — (Y]
— 566 3 — 569
18 2,403 429 — 2,850
293 33 1 — 327
¥ 6,588 ¥ 18,542 ¥ 647 ¥ (13,457) ¥ 12,320
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Billions of yen
September 30, 2018

Counterparty
and Cash
Collateral Balance as of
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting® September 30, 2018
Assets:
Tradingassets and private equity investments®
Equities® ¥ 1669 ¥ 891 ¥ 20 ¥ — ¥ 2,580
Private equity investments® — 3 10 — 13
Japanese government securities 2,085 — — — 2,085
Japanese agency and municipal securities — 122 1 — 123
Foreign government, agency and municipal securities 3,109 1,389 3 — 4,501
Bank and corporate debt securities and loans for trading purposes — 1,117 154 — 1,271
Commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”) — 2 1 — 3
Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”) — 3,732 7 — 3,739
Real estate-backed securities — 2 91 — 93
Collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”) and other® — 51 30 — 81
Investment trust fundsandother 463 66 1 — 530
Total trading assetsand private equity investments 7,326 7,375 318 — 15,019
Derivative assets®
Equity contracts 0 1,116 43 — 1,159
Interest rate contracts 13 7,548 46 — 7,607
Credit contracts 1 564 24 — 589
Foreign exchange contracts — 6,683 45 — 6,728
Commodity contracts 1 0 — — 1
Netting — — — (15,035) (15,035)
Total derivative assets 15 15,911 158 (15,035) 1,049
Subtotal ¥ 7,341 ¥23,286 ¥ 476 ¥ (15,035) ¥ 16,068
Loansand receivables® — 523 87 — 610
Collateralized agreements®” — 790 11 — 801
Other assets
Non-trading debt securities 135 317 — — 452
Other@® 476 14 180 — 670
Total ¥ 7,952 ¥24930 ¥ 754 ¥ (15,035) ¥ 18,601
Liabilities:
Trading liabilities
Equities ¥ 1,37 ¥ 193 ¥ 0 ¥ — ¥ 1,569
Japanese government securities 1,801 — — — 1,801
Japanese agency and municipal securities — 2 — — 2
Foreign government, agency and municipal securities 3,078 811 — — 3,889
Bank and corporate debt securities — 433 1 — 434
Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”) — 6 — — 6
Collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”) and other® — 0 — — 0
Investment trust fundsandother 68 0 0 — 68
Total trading liabilities 6,323 1,445 1 — 7,769
Derivative liabilities®
Equity contracts 2 1,206 56 — 1,264
Interest rate contracts 7 6,969 99 — 7,075
Credit contracts 1 471 26 — 498
Foreign exchange contracts 2 6,452 20 — 6,474
Commodity contracts 1 0 0 — 1
Netting — — — (14,481) (14,481)
Total derivative liabilities 13 15,098 201 (14,481) 831
Subtotal ¥ 6,336 ¥16,543 ¥ 202 ¥ (14481) ¥ 8,600
Short-term borrowings® — 366 42 — 408
Payables and deposits® — 0 1) — 1)
Collateralized financing™ — 352 3 — 355
Long-term borrowings®oty 13 2,660 461 — 3,134
Other liabilities® 308 31 0 — 339
Total ¥ 6,657 ¥19,952 ¥ 707 ¥ (14481) ¥ 12,835
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(1)
)

©)
4
©)

(6)

®)
©)

(10)
(11)

(12)
(13)

Represents theamount offset under counterparty netting of derivative assets and liabilities as well as cash collateral netting
against net derivatives.

Certain investments that are measured at fair value using netasset value per share as a practical expedient havenot been
classified in the fairvalue hierarchy. As of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, the fair values ofthese investments which
areincluded in Trading assets and private equity investments were ¥47 billion and ¥35billion, respectively. As of March 31,
2018 and September 30, 2018, the fair values ofthese investments which are included in Other assets—Others were ¥2 billion
and ¥2billion, respectively.

Includes equity investments that would have beenaccounted for under the equity method had Nomura notchosento elect the
fair value option.

Includes collateralized loan obligations (“CLOs ) and asset-backed securities (“ABS”) such as those secured on credit card
loans, autoloans andstudentloans.

Each derivative classification includes derivatives with multiple risk underlyings. Forexample, interest rate contracts include
complex derivatives referencing interest rate risk as well as foreign exchange risk or other factors such as prepaymentrates.
Credit contracts include credit default swaps as well as derivatives referencing corporate and government debtsecurities.
Includes loans for which the fair value option has beenelected.

Includes collateralized agreements or collateralized financing for which the fair value option has beenelected.

Includes structured notes for which the fair value option has beenelected.

Includes embedded derivatives bifurcated fromdeposits received at banks. If unrealized gains are greater than unrealized losses,
deposits are reduced by theexcessamount.

Includes embedded derivatives bifurcated fromissued structured notes. If unrealized gains are greater thanunrealized losses,
borrowings are reduced by the excessamount.

Includes liabilities recognized fromsecured financing transactions that are accounted for as financings rather thansales. Nonura
elected the fair value option for these liabilities.

Includes loan commitments for which the fair value option has beenelected.

Due to the changes in our accounting policy which Nomura adopted on April 1, 2018, certain reclassifications of previously
reported amounts have been made to conformto the current year presentation. Please referto Note 1. “Basis ofaccounting” for
further details.
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Valuation techniquesby major class of financial instrument

The valuation techniques used by Nomura to estimate fair value for major classes of financial instruments, together with the significant
inputs which determine classification in the fair value hierarchy, are as follows.

Equities and equity securities reported within Other assets—Equities and equity securities reported within Other assets include direct
holdings of both listed and unlisted equity securities, and fund investments. The fair value of listed equity securities is determined using
quoted prices for identical securities from active markets where available. These valuations should be in line with market practice and
therefore can be based on bid prices or mid-market prices. Nomura determines whether the market is active depending on the sufficiency and
frequency of trading activity. Where these securities are classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, no valuation adjustments are made to
fair value. Listed equity securities traded in inactive markets are also generally valued using the exchange price and are classified in Level 2.
Whilst rare in practice, Nomura may apply adiscount or liquidity adjustment to the exchange price of a listed equity security traded in an
inactive market if the exchange price is not considered to be an appropriate representation of fair value. These adjustments are determined by
individual security and are not determined or influenced by thesize of holding. The amount of such adjustments made to listed equity
securities traded in inactive markets was ¥nil as of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively. The fair value of unlisted equity
securities is determined using the same methodology as private equity investments described below and are usually classified in Level 3
because significant valuation inputs such as liquidity discounts and credit spreads are unobservable. As a practical expedient, fund
investments which do not have a readily determinable fair value are generally valued using NAV per share where available. Publicly traded
mutual funds which are valued using a daily NAV per share are classified in Level 1. Fund investments where Nomura has the ability to
redeem its investment with the investee at NAV per share as of the balance sheet date or within the near termare classified in Level 2. Fund
investments where Nomura does not have the ability to redeem in the near term or does not know when it can redeem are classified in Level 3.

Private equity investments—T he determination of fair value of unlisted private equity investments requires significant management
judgment because the investments, by their nature, have little or no price transparency. Private equity investments are initially carried at cost
as an approximation of fair value. Adjustments to carrying value are made if there is third-party evidence of a change in value. Adjustments
are also made, in the absence of third-party transactions, if it is determined that the expected exit price of the investment is different from
carrying value. In reaching that determination, Nomuraprimarily uses either a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) or market multip le valuation
technique. A DCF valuation technique incorporates estimated future cash flows to be generated from the underlying investee, as adjusted for
an appropriate growth rate discounted at a weighted average cost of capital (“WACC”). M arket multip le valuation techniques include
comparables such as Enterprise Value/earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EV/EBITDA?”) ratios, Price/Earnings
(“PE™) ratios, Price/Book ratios, Price/Embedded Value ratios and other multiples based on relationships between numbers reported in the
financial statements of the investee and the price of comparable companies. A liquidity discount may also be applied to either a DCF or
market multip le valuation to reflect the specific characteristics of the investee. The liquidity discount includes considerations for various
uncertainties in the model and inputs to valuation. Where possible these valuations are compared with the operating cash flows and financial
performance of the investee or properties relative to budgets or projections, price/earnings data for similar quoted companies, trends within
sectors and/or regions and any specific rights or terms associated with the investment, such as conversion features and liquidation preferences.
Private equity investments are generally classified in Level 3 since the valuation inputs such as those mentioned above are usually
unobservable.

Government, agency and municipal securities—T he fair value of Japanese and other G7 government securities is primarily determined
using quoted market prices, executable broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources. These securities are traded in active
markets and therefore are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Non-G7 government securities, agency securities and
municipal securities are valued using similar pricing sources but are generally classified in Level 2 as they are traded in inactive markets.
Certain non-G7 securities may be classified in Level 1 because they are traded in active markets. Certain securities may be classified in
Level 3 because they are traded infrequently and there is not sufficient information from comparable securities to classify them in Level 2.
Theseare valued using DCF valuation techniques which include significant unobservable inputs such as credit spreads of the issuer.

Bank and corporate debt securities—T he fair value of bank and corporate debt securities is primarily determined using DCF valuation
techniques but also using broker or dealer quotations and recent market transactions of identical or similar debt securities, if available.
Consideration is given tothe nature of the broker and dealer quotations, namely whether these are indicative or executable, the number of
available quotations and how these quotations compare to any available recent market activity or alternative pricing sources. T he significant
valuation inputs used for DCF valuations are yield curves, asset swap spreads, recovery rates and credit spreads of the issuer. Bank and
corporate debt securities are generally classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy because these valuation inputs are usually observable or
market-corroborated. Certain bank and corporate debt securities will be classified in Level 3 because they are traded infrequently and there is
insufficient information from comparable securities to classify themin Level 2, or credit spreads or recovery rates of the issuer used in DCF
valuations are unobservable.

Commercial mortgage-backed securities (““CMBS’”) and Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS’’)—T he fair value of CMBS
and RMBSis primarily determined using DCF valuation techniques but also using broker or dealer quotations and recent market transactions
of identical or similar securities, if available. Consideration is given to the nature of the broker and dealer quotations, namely whether these
are indicative or executable, the number of available quotations and how these quotations compare to any available recent market activity or
alternative pricing sources. The significant valuation inputs include yields, prepay ment rates, default probabilities and loss severities. CM BS
and RM BSsecurities are generally classified in Level 2 because these valuation inputs are observable or market-corroborated. Certain CMBS
and RM BSpositions will be classified in Level 3 because they are traded infrequently and there is insufficient information from comparable
securities to classify them in Level 2, or one or more of the significant valuation inputs used in DCF valuations are unobservable.

38



Real estate-backed securities—The fair value of real estate-backed securities is determined using broker or dealer quotations,
recent market transactions or by reference to a comparable market index. Considerationis givento the nature ofthe broker and dealer
quotations, namely whether theseare indicative orexecutable, the number ofavailable quotations and how these quotations compare
to any available recent market activity or alternative pricing sources. Whereall significant inputs are observable, the securities will be
classified in Level 2. For certain securities, no direct pricing sources or comparable securities or indices may be available. These
securities are valued using DCF or valuation techniques and are classified in Level 3 as the valuation includes significant
unobservable valuation inputs suchas yields or loss severities.

Collateralized debtobligations (“CDOs’”) and other—The fair value of CDOs is primarily determined using DCF valuation
techniques but alsousing broker or dealer quotations and recent market transactions of identical or similar securities, ifavailable.
Considerationis given tothe nature ofthe brokerand dealer quotations, namely whether these are indicative or executable, the nurmber
of available quotations and howthese quotations compare to any available recent market activity or alternative pricing sources. The
significant valuation inputs used include market spread data for each credit rating, yields, prepayment rates, default probabilities and
loss severities. CDOs are generally classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy because these valuation inputs are observable or
market-corroborated. CDOs will be classified in Level 3 where one or more of the significant valuation inputs used in the DCF
valuations are unobservable.

Investmenttrustfunds and other—The fair value of investment trust funds is primarily determined using NAVpershare.
Publicly traded funds which are valued using a daily NAV pershare are classified in Level 1 ofthe fair value hierarchy. For funds that
are not publicly traded but Nomura has theability to redeemits investment with the investee at NAV per share onthe balance sheet
date orwithin the near term, the investments are classified in Level 2. Investments where Nomura does not have the ability to redeem
in the neartermordoes not knowwhen it can redeemare classified in Level 3. The fair value of certain other investments reported
within Investmenttrustfunds and other is determined using DCF valuationtechniques. These investments are classified in Level 3 as
the valuationincludes significant unobservable valuation inputs such as credit spreads of issuerand correlation.

Derivatives—Equity contracts—Nomura enters into both exchange-traded and OTC equity derivative transactions such as index
and equity options, equity basket options and indexand equity swaps. Where these derivatives are traded in active markets and the
exchange price is representative of fair value, the fair value of exchange-traded equity derivatives is determined using an unadjusted
exchange price and classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Thefair value of exchange-traded equity derivatives whichare
traded in inactive markets or where theexchange price is not representative of fair value is determined using a model price and are
classified in Level 2. The fair value of OTC equity derivatives is determined through optionmodels such as Black-Scholes and Monte
Carlo simulation. The significantvaluationinputs used include equity prices, dividend yields, volatilities and correlations. Valuation
adjustments are alsomade to model valuations in order to reflect counterparty credit risk on derivative assetsand Nomura‘s own
creditworthiness onderivative liabilities. OTCequity derivatives are generally classified in Level 2 because all significant valuation
inputs and adjustments are observable or market-corroborated. Certain less liquid vanilla or more complex equity derivativesare
classified in Level 3 where dividend yield, volatility or correlation valuation inputs are significant and unobservable.

Derivatives—Interest rate contracts—Nomuraenters into both exchange-tradedand OTC interestrate derivativetransactions
such as interestrate swaps, currency swaps, interest rate options, forward rate agreements, swaptions, capsand floors. Where these
derivativesare traded in active markets andthe exchange price is representative of fair value, the fair value of exchange-traded interest
rate derivatives is determined using an unadjusted exchange price and classified in Level 1 ofthe fair value hierarchy. Thefairvalue
of exchange-traded interestrate derivatives which are traded in inactive markets or where theexchange price is notrepresentative of
fair value is determined using a model price and are classified in Level 2. The fair value of OTC interestrate derivatives is determined
through DCF valuation techniques as well as option models such as Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo simulation. The significant
valuation inputs used include interestrates, forward foreignexchange (“FX”) rates, volatilities and correlations. Valuation ad justments
are also made to modelvaluations in orderto reflect counterparty credit risk on derivative assets and Nomura‘s own creditworthiness
on derivative liabilities. OTC interest rate derivatives are generally classified in Level 2 becauseall significant valuationinputs and
adjustments are observable or market-corroborated. Certain less liquid vanillaor more complex OTC interest rate derivatives are
classified in Level 3 where interest rate, volatility or correlation valuation inputs are significantand unobservable.

Derivatives—Credit contracts—Nomura enters into OTC credit derivative transactions suchas credit default swaps and credit
options on single names, indices or baskets of assets. The fair value of OTC credit derivatives is determined through DCF valuation
techniques aswellas option models such as Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo simulation. The significant valuation inputs used include
interest rates, credit spreads, recovery rates, default probabilities, volatilities and correlations. Valuation adjustments are also made to
modelvaluations in order to reflect counterparty credit risk on derivative assetsand Nomura’s own creditworthiness on derivative
liabilities. OTC credit derivatives are generally classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy becauseall significant valuationinputs
and adjustments are observable or market-corroborated. Certain less liquid vanilla or more complex OTC credit derivatives are
classified in Level 3 where credit spread, recovery rate, volatility or correlation valuation inputs are significant and unobservable.
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Derivatives—Foreignexchange contracts—Nomura enters into both exchange-tradedand OTC foreign exchange derivative
transactions such as foreign exchange forwards and currency options. The fair value of exchange-traded foreign exchange derivatives
which are traded in inactive markets or where theexchange price is notrepresentative of fair value is determined using a model price
and are classified in Level 2. The fair value of OTC foreign exchangederivatives is determined through DCF valuation techniques as
well as option models such as Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo simulation. The significant valuation inputs used include interest rates,
forward FX rates, spot FXrates and volatilities. Valuation adjustments are also made to model valuations in order to reflect
counterparty credit risk on derivativeassets and Nomura’s own creditworthiness on derivative liabilities. OTC foreign exchange
derivatives are generally classified in Level 2 because all significantvaluationinputs and adjustments are observable or market-
corroborated. Certain foreignexchange derivatives are classified in Level 3 where interest rates, volatility or correlation valuation
inputs are significant and unobservable.

Nomuraincludes valuation adjustments in its estimation of fair value of certain OTC derivatives relating to funding costs
associated with these transactions to be consistentwith how market participants in the principal market for these derivatives would
determine fair value.

Loans—The fair value of loans carried at fair value either as trading assets or through election of the fair value option is
primarily determined using DCF valuationtechnigques as quoted prices are typically not available. The significant valuationinputs
used are similarto those used in the valuation of corporate debt securities described above. Loans are generally classified in Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy because all significant valuation inputs are observable. Certain loans, however, are classified in Level 3
because they are traded infrequently and there is notsufficientinformation fromcomparable securities to classify themin Level 2 or
credit spreads of the issuer used in DCF valuations are significant and unobservable.

Collateralized agreements and Collateralized financing—The primary types of collateralized agreement and financing
transactions carried at fair value are reverse repurchaseand repurchase agreements elected for the fair value option. The fair value of
these financial instruments is primarily determined using DCF valuation techniques. The significant valuation inputs usedinclude
interest rates and collateral funding spreads such as general collateral or special rates. Reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements
are generally classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy because these valuation inputs are usually observable.

Non-trading debt securities—These are debt securities held by certain non-trading subsidiaries in the group andare valued and
classified in the fair value hierarchy using the same valuation techniques used for other debtsecurities classified as Government,
agency and municipal securities and Bank and corporate debtsecurities described above.

Short-termand long-termborrowings (“Structured notes’”)—Structured notes are debtsecurities issued by Nomuraorby
consolidated variable interest entities (“VIEs”) which contain embedded features that alter thereturnto the investor fromsimply
receiving afixed or floating rate of interest to a return thatdepends upon some other variables, suchas an equity orequity index,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating ofa third party ora more complex interest rate (i.e.,an embedded derivative).

The fair value of structured notes is determined usinga quoted price in an active market for the identical liability if available,
and where not available, using a mixture of valuation techniques that use the quoted price of the identical liability when traded as an
asset, quoted prices for similar liabilities, similar liabilities when traded as assets, oran internal modelwhich combines DCF valuation
techniques and option pricingmodels, depending on the nature of the embedded features within the structured note. Where an internal
modelis used, Nomura estimates the fair value of both the underlying debt instrument and the embedded derivative components. The
significant valuation inputs used to estimate the fair value of the debt instrumentcomponent include yield curves, prepayment rates,
default probabilities and loss severities. The significant valuation inputs used to estimate the fair value of the embedded derivative
component are thesame as those used for the relevant type of freestanding OTC derivative discussed above. A valuationadjustment is
also made to the entire structured note in order to reflect Nomura’s own creditworthiness. This adjustmentis determined based on
recent observable secondary market transactions and executable broker quotes involving Nomura debtinstruments and is therefore
typically treated as a Level 2 valuation input. Structured notes are generally classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy asall
significant valuation inputs and adjustments are observable. Where any unobservable inputs are significant, such as yields,
prepaymentrates, default probabilities, loss severities, volatilities and correlations used to estimatethe fairvalue of the embedded
derivative component, structured notes are classified in Level 3.

Long-termborrowings (““Secured financing transactions’”)—Secured financing transactions are liabilities recognizedwhen a
transfer ofa financial asset does not meet the criteria for salesaccountingunder ASC 860 “Transfer and Servicing” (“ASC860”) and
therefore the transaction is accounted foras a secured borrowing. These liabilities are valued using the same valuation techniques that
are applied to the transferred financial assets which remain on the consolidated balance sheets and are therefore classified in the same
levelin the fair value hierarchy asthe transferred financial assets. These liabilities do notprovide general recourse to Nomura and
therefore no adjustment is made to reflect Nomura’s own creditworthiness.
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Valuation processes

In orderto ensure the appropriateness of any fair value measurement of a financial instrumentused within these consolidated
financial statements, including those classified in Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy, Nomura operates a governance framework
which mandates determination or validation of a fair value measurement by control and support functions independent of the trading
businesses assuming the risk of the financial instrument. Such functions within Nomura with direct responsibility for either defining,
implementing or maintaining valuation policies and procedures are as follows:

e TheProduct Control Valuations Group (“PCVG”) within Nomura’s Finance Departmenthas primary responsibility for
determining and implementing valuation policies and procedures in connection with determination of fair value
measurements. In particular, this group willensure that valuation policies are documented for each type of financial
instrument in accordance with U.S. GAAP. While it is the responsibility of market makers and investmentprofessionals in
ourtrading businesses to price our financial instruments, the PCVG are responsible for independently verifyingor
validating these prices. In the eventofa difference in opinion orwhere the estimate of fair value requires significant
judgment, the valuation used within these consolidated financial statements is reviewed by senior managers independent
of the trading businesses. The PCVG group reportstothe Global Head of Product Controland ultimately to the Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO™);

¢ The Accounting Policy Group within Nomura’s Finance Departmentdefines the group’s accounting policies and
procedures in accordance with U.S. GAAP, including those associated with determination of fair value under ASC 820
and otherrelevantU.S. GAAP pronouncements. This group reports to the Global Head of Accounting Policy and
ultimately to the CFO; and

¢ The MVG within Nomura’s Risk Management Department validates the appropriateness and consistency of pricing
models usedto determine fair value measurements independently of thosewho designandbuild themodels. This group
reports to the Chief Risk Officer.

The fundamental components of this governance framework over valuation processes within Nomura particularly as it relates to
Level 3 financialinstruments are the procedures in place for independentprice verification, pricing model validationand revenue
substantiation.

Independent price verification processes

The key objective ofthe independent price verification processes within Nomura is to verify the appropriateness of fair value
measurements applied toall financial instruments within Nomura. In applying these control processes, observable inputs are used
whenever possible and whenunobservable inputs are necessary, the processes seek to ensure the valuation technique and inputs are
appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied.

The independent price verification processes aimto verify the fair value of all positions to external levels on aregular basis. The
process willinvolve obtaining data suchas trades, marks and prices frominternaland external sources and examining the impact of
marking the internal positions at theexternal prices. Margin disputes within the collateral processwill also be investigated to
determine if there is any impact on valuations.

Where third-party pricing information sourced frombrokers, dealers and consensus pricing services is used as part of the price
verification process, considerationis givenas to whether that information reflects actual recent market transactions or prices at which
transactions involving identical or similar financialinstruments are currently executable. If such transactions or prices are not
available, the financial instrumentwill generally be classified in Level 3.

Where there is a lack of observable market information aroundthe inputs used in a fair value measurement, thenthe PCVG and
the MVG will assess theinputs used for reasonableness considering available information including comparable products, surfaces,
curves and pasttrades. Additional valuation adjustments may be taken forthe uncertainty in the inputs used, such as correlationand
where appropriate trading desks may be askedto executetradesto evidence market levels.
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Model review and validation

Formore complex financial instruments pricing models are usedto determine fair value measurements. The MVGperforms an
independentmodel approval process which incorporates a review of the model assumptions across a diverse set of parameters.
Considerations include:

e Scope ofthe model (different financial instruments may require different but consistentpricing approaches);
¢ Mathematical and financial assumptions;

«  Fullor partialindependent benchmarking along with boundary and stability tests, numerical convergence, calibration
quality and stability;

¢ Modelintegrationwithin Nomura’s trading andrisk systems;
* Calculation of risk numbers and risk reporting; and

» Hedging strategies/practical use ofthe model.

New models are reviewed andapproved by the MVG. The frequency of subsequent MVG reviews (“Model Re-approvals™)is at
least annually.

Revenuesubstantiation

Nomura’s Product Control functionalsoensures adherence to Nomura’s valuation policies through daily and periodic analytical
review of net revenues. This process involves substantiating revenueamounts through explanations and attribution of revenue sources
based onthe underlying factors such as interest rates, credit spreads, volatilities, foreign exchangerates etc. In combinationwith the
independent price verification processes, this daily, weekly, monthly and quarterly review substantiates the revenues made while
helping to identify and resolve potential booking, pricing or risk quantification issues.

Lewel 3 financial instruments

As describedabove, the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities is dependent on certain significantvaluation inputs
which are unobservable. Common characteristics of an inactive market include a low number of transactions of the financial
instrument, stale or non-current price quotes, price quotes thatvary substantially either over time oramong market makers, non-
executable broker quotes or little publicly released information.

If corroborative evidenceis not available to value Level 3 financial instruments, fair value may be measured using other
equivalentproducts in the market. The level of correlation betweenthe specific Level 3financial instrument andtheavailable
benchmark instrumentis consideredas an unobservable valuation input. Other techniques for determining an appropriate value for
unobservable input may consider information suchas consensus pricing data among certain market participants, historical trends,
extrapolation fromobservable market data and other information Nomura would expect market participants to use in valuing similar
instruments.

Use ofreasonably possible alternative valuation input assumptions to value Level 3financial instruments will significantly
influence fair value determination. Ultimately, the uncertainties described above about input assumptions imply that the fair value of
Level 3 financial instruments is a judgmental estimate. The specific valuation for each instrumentis based on management’s judgment
of prevailing market conditions, in accordance with Nomura’s established valuation policies and procedures.
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Quantitative and qualitative information regarding significant unobservable inputs

The following tables present quantitative and qualitative information about the significant unobservable valuation inputs used by
Nomura to measure the fair value of financial instruments classified in Level 3 as of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018. These
financialinstruments will also typically include observable valuation inputs (i.e. Level 1 or Level 2 valuation inputs) which are not
included in the table andare also often hedged using financial instruments which are classified in Level 1 or Level 2 ofthe fair value
hierarchy. Changes in each ofthese significant unobservable valuation inputs used by Nomura will impact upon the fairvalue
measurement of the financial instrument. The following tables also therefore qualitatively summarize the sensitivity of the fair value
measurement for eachtype of financialinstrumentas a result of an increase in each unobservable valuation input and summarize the
interrelationship between significant unobservable valuation inputs where more than one is used to measure fair value.

March 31, 2018

Impact of
increases in
Fair significant
value in Significant unobservable Interrelationships
) ) billions Valuation  unobservable Range of Weighted valuation between valuation
Financial Instrument of yen technique valuation input valuation inputs® Average® inputs®® inputs®
Assets:
Trading assets and private equity
investments
Equities ¥ 21 DCF Liquidity discounts 275-75.0% 68.3% Lower fair value Not applicable
Foreign government, agency and 6 DCF Credit spreads 00-6.7% 0.8% Lower fair value Not applicable
municipal securities
Bank and corporate debt 139 DCF Credit spreads 0.1-19.6%0.0- 4.1% Lower fair value No predictable
securities and loans for Recovery rates 98.0% 74.7% Higher fair value interrelationship
trading purposes
Commercial mortgage- backed 2 DCF Yields 6.6 —8.9% 7.7% Lower fair value Not applicable
securities (“ CMBS”)
Real estate-backed securities 63 DCF Yields 6.2-23.9% 16.3% Lower fair value No predictable
Loss severities 0.0-70.8% 8.1% Lower fair value interrelationship
Collateralized debt obligations 24 DCF Yields 6.0 -24.0% 13.1% Lower fair value Change in default
(“ CDOs”) and other Prepayment rates 20.0% 20.0% Lower fair value  probabilities typically
Default probabilities 1.0-2.0% 2.0% Lower fair value accompanied by
Loss severities 40.0 - 100.0% 91.6% Lower fair value directionally similar

change in loss severities
and opposite change in
prepayment rates
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March 31, 2018

Impact of

increases in

Fair significant
value in Significant unobservable Interrelationships
billions  Valuation unobservable Range of Weighted valuation between valuation

Financial Instrument of yen  technique valuation input  valuation inputs®  Average® inputs®® inputs®

Derivatives, net:

Equity contracts 1) Option Dividend yield 00-115% — Higher fair value No predictable
models Volatilities 7.3-64.0% — Higher fair value interrelationship

Correlations (0.84)-0.95 — Higher fair value
Interest rate contracts (53) DCF/ Interest rates 0.2-3.0% — Higher fair value No predictable
Option Volatilities 11.2-157% — Higher fair value interrelationship

models Volatilities 28.0-71.2bp — Higher fair value

Correlations (0.67)—0.98 — Higher fair value
Credit contracts 2 DCF/ Credit spreads 00-122.1% — Higher fair value No predictable
Option Recovery rates 0.0-90.0% — Higher fair value interrelationship

models Volatilities 35.0-83.0% — Higher fair value

Correlations 0.34-0.82 — Higher fair value
Foreign exchange 27 DCF/ Interest rates 02-26% — Higher fair value No predictable
contracts Option Volatilities 24-237% — Higher fair value interrelationship

models Volatilities 237.0-280.0 bp — Higher fair value

Correlations (0.25)-0.80 —  Higher fair value

Loans and receivables 70 DCF Credit spreads 00-9.5% 4.0% Lower fair value Not applicable

Collateralized agreements 5 DCF Repo rate 3.5% 3.5% Lower fair value Not applicable

Other assets

Other® 169 DCF WACC 11.4% 11.4% Lower fair value No predictable
Growth rates 2.5% 2.5% Higher fair value interrelationship
Liquidity discounts 10.0% 10.0% Lower fair value
Market EV/EBITDA ratios 33-78x 5.7 x Higherfair value  Generally changes in
multiples PE ratios 75-126.4x 23.0 x Higher fair value multiples resultsin a
Price/Book ratios 00-2.2x 0.6 x Higher fair value  corresponding similar
Liquidity discounts 10.0 - 30.0% 29.0% Lower fair value directional changeina
fair value measurement,
assuming earnings
levels remain constant.

Liabilities:

Short-termborrowings 17 DCF/ Volatilities 7.3-50.9% — Higher fair value No predictable
Option Correlations (0.84)-0.95 — Higher fair value interrelationship
models

Collateralized financing 3 DCF Repo rate 3.5% 3.5% Lower fair value Not applicable

Long-termborrowings 429 DCF/ Volatilities 7.3-50.9% — Higher fair value No predictable
Option Volatilities 33.5-62.3bp — Higher fair value interrelationship
models Correlations (0.84)-0.98 — Higher fair value




September 30,2018

Fair Impact of increases
value in insignificant Interrelationships
) . billions Valuation Significant Range of Weighted unobservable between valuation
Financial Instrument of yen technique unobservable input valuation inputs® Average® valuation inputs®® inputs®
Assets:
Trading assets and private equity
investments
Equities ¥ 20 DCF Liquidity discounts 75.0% 75.0% Lower fair value Not applicable
Foreign government, agency 3 DCF Credit spreads 0.0-7.7% 0.9% Lower fair value Not applicable
and municipal securities
Bank and corporate debt 154 DCF Credit spreads 03-132% 4.5% Lower fair value No predictable
securities and loans for Recovery rates 0.0-99.1% 90.0% Higher fair value interrelationship
trading purposes
Residential mortgage-backed 7 DCF Yields 0.0-36.4% 3.6% Lower fair value No predictable
securities (“ RMBS”) Prepayment rates 6.5-15.0% 7.3% Lower fair value interrelationship
Loss severities 10.6 - 100.0% 74.7% Lower fair value
Real estate-backed securities 91 DCF Yields 6.8-22.6% 13.7% Lower fair value No predictable
Loss severities 0.0 -55.0% 8.1% Lower fair value interrelationship
Collateralized debt 30 DCF Yields 6.0 -20.0% 13.0% Lower fair value Change in default
obligations (‘CDOs”) and Prepayment rates 20.0% 20.0% Lower fair value probabilities typically
other Default probabilities 1.0-2.0% 2.0% Lower fair value accompanied by
Loss severities 40.0 -100.0% 89.0% Lower fair value directionally similar

change in loss severities
and opposite change in

prepayment rates
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September 30, 2018

Impact of
increases in
Fair significant
value in Significant unobservable Interrelationships
) ) billions Valuation  unobservable Range of Weighted valuation between valuation

Financial Instrument of yen technique input valuation inputs®  Average® inputs®® inputs®

Derivatives, net:

Equity contracts ¥ (13) Option Dividend yield 0.0-8.9% — Higher fair value No predictable
models Volatilities 12.1-70.0% — Higher fair value interrelationship

Correlations (0.80)-0.98 — Higher fair value
Interest rate contracts (53) DCF/ Interest rates 0.3-3.0% — Higher fair value No predictable
Option Volatilities 112-151% — Higher fair value interrelationship

models Volatilities 27.8-70.6 bp — Higher fair value

Correlations (1.00)-1.00 — Higher fair value
Credit contracts 2) DCF/ Credit spreads 0.0-188.5% — Higher fair value No predictable
Option Recovery rates 0.0-100.5% — Higher fair value interrelationship

models Volatilities 16.2-83.0% — Higher fair value

Correlations 0.30-0.96 — Higher fair value
Foreign exchange contracts 25 Option Interest rates 0.3-2.8% — Higher fair value No predictable
models Volatilities 1.8-29.5% — Higher fair value interrelationship

Volatilities 310.0 - 356.0 bp — Higher fair value

Correlations (0.25)-0.80 — Higher fair value

Loans and receivables 87 DCF Credit spreads 0.0-10.9% 4.0% Lower fair value Not applicable

Collateralized agreements 11 DCF Repo rate 35-4.9% 4.2% Lower fair value Not applicable

Other assets

Other® 180 DCF WACC 11.2% 11.2% Lower fair value No predictable
Growth rates 2.5% 2.5% Higher fair value interrelationship
Liquidity discounts 10.0% 10.0% Lower fair value
Market EV/EBITDA ratios 42-144x 7.9 x Higher fair value Generally changes in
multiples PE Ratios 99-31.1x 17.4 x Higher fair value multiples results in a
Price/Book ratios 04-25x 0.7 x Higher fair value  corresponding similar
Liquidity discounts 10.0 - 50.0% 30.7% Lower fair value directional change in afair
value measurement,
assuming earnings levels
remain constant.

Liabilities:

Short-term borrowings 42 DCF/ Volatilities 12.9-58.7% — Higher fair value No predictable
Option Correlations (0.75)-0.95 — Higher fair value interrelationship
models

Collateralized financing 3 DCF Repo rate 35% 3.5% Lower fair value Not applicable

Long-termborrowings 461 DCF/ Volatilities 11.2-58.7% — Higher fair value No predictable
Option Volatilities 33.8-68.9 bp — Higher fair value interrelationship
models Correlations (1.00)-0.98 — Higher fair value

(1)

Range information is providedin percentages, coefficients and multiples and represents the highestand lowest level significant

unobservable valuationinputusedto valuethattype of financial instrument. A wide dispersionin the range does not necessarily
reflect increased uncertainty or subjectivity in the valuation inputand is typically just a consequence of the different
characteristics of the financial instruments themselves.

)
©)

of the financial instrument.

Weighted average information for non-derivative instruments is calculated by weighting each valuation inputby thefairvalue

The above table only considers the impact of an increase in each significantunobservable valuation input onthe fair value

measurement of the financial instrument. However, a decrease in the significantunobservable valuation input would have the
oppositeeffect on the fair value measurement of the financial instrument. Forexample, if an increase in a significant
unobservable valuationinputwould result in a lower fair value measurement, a decrease in the significantunobservable

valuation inputwould result in a higher fair value measurement.
The impact ofan increase in the significantunobservable input on the fair value measurementfora derivative assumes Nomura

4

is long risk to the input e.g., long volatility. Where Nomura is short such risk, the impact of an increase would have a converse
effect on the fairvalue measurement of the derivative.

©)

unobservable valuationinputis used to determine the fair value measurement of the financial instrument.

(6)

consolidated balance sheets.
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Qualitative discussion of the ranges of significant unobservable inputs

The following comments present qualitative discussionabout the significantunobservable valuation inputs used by Nomura for
financial instruments classified in Level 3.

Derivatives—Equity contracts—The significant unobservable inputs are dividend yield, volatilities and correlations. The range
of dividendyields varies as some companies do not pay any dividends, forexample due to a lack of profits oras a policy during a
growth period, and hence have a zero dividendyield while others may pay highdividends forexample to return money to investors.
Therange of volatilities is wide as the volatilities of shorter-dated equity derivatives orthose based on single equity securities can be
higherthan those of longer-dated instruments or those based on indices. Correlations representthe relationships betweenone inputand
another (“pairs”) and caneither be positive or negativeamounts. Therange of correlations moves frompositive to negative because
the movement of some pairs is very closely relatedand in the same direction causing highly positive correlations while others
generally move in opposite directions causing highly negative correlations with pairs that have differing relationships throughoutthe
range.

Derivatives—Interest rate contracts—T he significant unobservable inputs are interest rates, volatilities and correlations. The
range of interestrates is due to interestrates in different countries/currencies being at differentlevels with some countries having
extremely low levels and others beingat levels thatwhile still relatively loware less so. Therangeofvolatilities is wide as volatilities
can be higherwhen interest rates are at extremely low levels, and also because volatilities of shorter-dated interest rate derivatives are
typically higherthan those of longer-dated instruments. The range of correlations moves frompositive to negative becausethe
movement of some pairs is very closely related and in the same direction causing highly positive correlations while others generally
move in oppositedirections causing highly negative correlations with pairs thathave differing relationships through therange. All
significant unobservable inputs are spread across theranges.

Derivatives—Credit contracts—Thesignificantunobservable inputs are credit spreads, recovery rates, volatilities and
correlations. The range of credit spreads reflects the different risk of default presentwithin the portfolio. At the lowend ofthe range,
underlying reference names have a very limited risk of default whereas at the highend of the range, underlying reference names have
a much greater risk of default. The rangeofrecovery rates varies primarily due to the seniority of the underlying exposure with senior
exposures havingahigherrecovery thansubordinated exposures. The range of volatilities is wide as the volatilities of shorter-dated
credit contracts are typically higher than those of longer-dated instruments. The correlation rangeis positive since credit spread moves
are generally in the same direction. Highly positive correlations are those forwhich the movement is very closely relatedand in the
same direction, with correlation falling as the relationship becomes less strong.

Derivatives—Foreignexchange contracts—The significant unobservable inputs are interest rates, volatilities and correlations.
Therange of interest rates is dueto interest rates in different countries/currencies being at different levels with some countries having
extremely low levels and others beingat levels thatwhile still relatively loware less so. Therangeof volatilities is mainly due to the
lower end ofthe range arising fromcurrencies thattrade in narrow ranges e.g. versus the U.S. Dollar while the higherend comes from
currencies with a greater range of movement such as emerging market currencies. The range of correlations moves frompositive to
negative because the movementofsome pairs is very closely related and in the same direction causing highly positive correlations
while others generally move in oppositedirections causing highly negative correlations with pairs thathavediffering relationships
throughtherange.

Short-termborrowings and Long-term borrowings—The significantunobservable inputs are yields, prepayment rates, default
probabilities, loss severities, volatilities and correlations. The range of volatilities is wide as the volatilities of shorter-dated
instruments are typically higher thanthose in longer-dated instruments. The range of correlations moves frompositive tonegative
because the movement ofsome pairs is very closely relatedand in the same direction causing highly positive correlations while others
generally move in opposite directions causing highly negative correlations with pairs that have differing relationships throughthe
range.
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Mowvements in Lewel 3 financial instruments

The following tables present gains and losses as well as increases and decreases of financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis which Nomura classified
in Level 3 for the sixand three months ended September 30,2017 and 2018. Financial instruments classified in Level 3 are often hedged with instruments within Level 1 or
Level 2 ofthe fair value hierarchy. The gains or losses presented below do not reflect the offsetting gains or losses for these hedginginstruments. Level 3financial instruments are
also measured using both observable and unobservable valuation inputs. Fair value changes presented below, therefore, reflect realized and unrealized gains and losses resulting
from movements in both observable and unobservable valuationinputs.

Forthe six months ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, gains and losses relatedto Level 3assets and liabilities did not have a material impact on Nomura’s liquidity and
capital resources management.

Billions of yen
Six months ended September 30, 2017

Beginning Total gains
balance as of (losses) Balance as of
six months Total gains recognizd in six months
ended (losses) other Foreign Transfers Transfers ended
September 30, recognizd comprehensive Purchases / Sales / exchange into out of September 30,
2017 in revenue® income issues® redemptions® Settlements movements Level 3¢ Level 3® 2017
Assets:
Trading assetsand private
equity investments
Equities ¥ 4 ¥ 1 ¥ — ¥ 17 ¥ 6) ¥ — ¥ 0 ¥ 1 ¥ (2 ¥ 45
Private equity investments 13 1 — 0 9 — 1 0 @ 5
Japanese agencyand
municipal securities 1 0 — — 0 — — — — 1

Foreign government,

agency and municipal

securities 3 1 — 32 (33) — 0 4 @) 6
Bank and corporate debt

securitiesand loans for

trading purposes 108 5 — 50 (41) — 1 9 4) 128
Commercial mortgage-

backed securities

(“CMBS”) 1 0 — 4 ) — 0 — @) 1
Residential mortgage-

backed securities

(“RMBS™) 0 0 — 1 (@) — 1 — — 1
Real estate-backed
securities 41 0 — 22 (26) — 0 — — 37

Collateralized debt

obligations (“CDQOs™)

and other 27 (6) — 25 (28) — 0 4 (4) 18
Investment trust funds and

other 0 0 — 1 0 — 0 0 0 1




Totaltrading assets and private
equity investments
Derivatives, net®
Equity contracts
Interest rate contracts
Credit contracts
Foreign exchangecontracts

Totalderivatives, net
Subtotal

Loans and receivables
Collateralized agreements
Otherassets
Other
Total
Liabilities:
Trading liabilities
Equities
Bank and corporate debt
securities
Collateralized debt
obligations (“CDQs”)
and other
Investment trust funds and
other

Totaltrading liabilities
Short-termborrowings
Payables and deposits
Collateralized financing
Long-termborrowings
Other liabilities

Total

228 2 — 152 (146) — 3 18 (14) 243
(6) () — — — @) @) 5 5 1)
(22) 8 — — — 10 0 1 (28) (31)
(10) 3 — — — 1 1 @) 0 ()
23 @) — — — ®) 0 0 1 19
(15) 8 — — — 5 0 4 (22) (20)
213 10 — 152 (146) 5 3 22 (36) 223
66 1 — 8 (35) — 0 0 — 40
S 0 — — — — 0 — — 5
163 14 0 0 1) — 1 1 0 178
447 25 0 160 (182) 5 4 23 (36) 446
1 0 — 0 0 — 0 1 1) 1

0 0 — — 0 — 0 0 0 0

1 0 — 2 ) — 0 — — 1

0 — — — — — 0 —

0 — ) — 0 1 1) 2

70 1) 0 69 (38) — 1 1 (12) 93
0 0 — 0 0 — 0 — — 0

3 — — — — — 0 — — 3
410 (17) 1) 129 (55) — 0 27 (72) 457
1 1 — 0 0 — 0 0 0 0
486 17) (1) 200 (95) — 1 29 (84) 555
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Assets:

Trading assetsand private
equity investments
Equities
Private equity investments
Japanese agencyand

municipal securities

Foreign government,
agency and municipal
securities

Bank and corporate debt
securitiesand loans for
trading purposes

Commercial mortgage-
backed securities
(“CMBS™)

Residential mortgage-
backed securities
(“RMBS™)

Real estate-backed
securities

Collateralized debt
obligations (“CDQOs™)
and other

Investment trust fundsand
other

Totaltrading assets and private
equity investments

Derivatives, net®
Equity contracts
Interest rate contracts
Credit contracts
Foreign exchangecontracts
Commodity contracts

Total derivatives, net

Subtotal

Loans and receivables

Billions of yen

Six months ended September 30, 2018

Beginning Total gains
balance as of (losses) Balance as of
six months Total gains recognizd in six months
ended (losses) other Foreign Transfers Transfers ended
September 30, recognizd comprehensive Purchases / Sales / exchange into out of September 30,
2018 in revenue® income issues® redemptions® Settlements movements Level 3@ Level 3® 2018
¥ 21 ¥ 0 ¥ — ¥ 2 ¥ 6 ¥ — ¥ 1 ¥ 3 ¥ (1) ¥ 20
3 0 — 7 0 — 0 — — 10
1 0 — — 0 — — — — 1
6 0 — 7 (10) — 0 0 0 3
139 4 — 50 (30) — 7 16 (32) 154
2 0 — 1 ©) — — 0 — 1
0 0 — 7 0 — 0 — — 7
63 0 — 90 (66) — 4 — — 91
24 1 — 29 (29) — 2 5 @) 30
1 0 — 3 ?) — 0 — — 1
260 5 — 196 (146) — 14 24 (35) 318
1) (10) — — — (4) @) (©) 6 (13)
(53) (12) — — — (10) 1 6 14 (53)
2 ) — — — @) 0 0 @) )
27 (6) — — — 1 2 — 1 25
— 0 — — — — 0 — — 0
(25) (29) — — — (14) 2 3 20 (43)
¥ 235 ¥ (24) ¥ — ¥ 1% ¥ (146) ¥  (14) ¥ 16 ¥ 27 ¥ (I15) ¥ 275
70 0 — 18 (11) — 5 5 — 87



Collateralized agreements
Otherassets
Other

Total
Liabilities:
Trading liabilities
Equities
Bank and corporate debt
securities
Collateralized debt
obligations (“CDOs”)
and other
Investment trust fundsand
other

Totaltrading liabilities

Short-termborrowings
Payables and deposits
Collateralized financing
Long-termborrowings
Other liabilities

Total

5 0 — — — 0 6 — 11
169 1 2 0 — 8 0 — 180
479 (23) 216 (157) ¥  (14) 29 38 (15) 553

1 0 19 (0) ¥ — 0 0 0 0

0 0 1 0 — 0 — 0 1

0 — — 0 — 0 — — —

0 — 0 0 — 0 0 0 0

1 0 20 0) ¥ — 0 0 0 1

17 1) 28 o) — 1 16 (12) 42

) 0 0 0 — — — — Q)

3 — — Q) — 1 — — 3
429 3) 100 (46) — 0 25 (49) 461

1 0 0 Q) — 0 0 — 0
450 (4) 148 aw ¥ — 2 41 (61) 506
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Billions of yen
Three months ended September 30, 2017

Beginning Total gains
balance as of (losses) Balance as of
three months Total gains recognizd in three months
ended (losses) other Foreign Transfers Transfers ended
September 30, recognizd comprehensive Purchases / Sales / exchange into out of September 30,
2017 in revenue® income issues® redemptions® Settlements  movements Level 3 Level 3 2017
Assets:
Trading assetsand private
equity investments
Equities ¥ 4 ¥ 1 ¥ — ¥ 16 ¥ G) ¥ — ¥ 0 ¥ 1 ¥ (@ ¥ 45
Private equity investments 10 0 — — (5) — 1 — @) 5
Japanese agencyand
municipal securities 1 0 — — 0 — — — — 1
Foreign government, agency
and municipal securities 5 0 — 5 (5) — 0 1 0 6

Bank and corporate debt

securitiesand loans for

trading purposes 116 3 — 35 (25) — 1 0 2 128
Commercial mortgage-

backed securities

(“CMBS”) 5 0 — — 2 — 0 — 2 1
Residential mortgage-

backed securities

(“RMBS”) 0 0 —_ 1 0 —_ 0 - —_ 1
Real estate-backed
securities 40 0 — 10 (13) — 0 — — 37

Collateralized debt
obligations (“CDQOs™)

and other 20 3) — 9 9) — 0 2 Q) 18
Investment trust funds and
other 0 0 — 1 0 — 0 0 0 1
Totaltrading assetsand private
equity investments 231 1 — 7 (64) — 2 4 (8) 243
Derivatives, net®
Equity contracts 2 ) — — — ®)) 0 0 1 ®
Interest rate contracts (11) 6 — — — (1) 0 1 (26) (31)
Credit contracts 6) 1 — — 0 0 2 0 )
Foreign exchange contracts 20 3 — — — 4 0 — 0 19
Total derivatives, net 5 9 — — (8) 0 (1) (25) (20)
Subtotal ¥ 236 ¥ 10 ¥ — ¥ 77 ¥ 64) ¥ 8 ¥ 2 ¥ 3 ¥ (3B ¥ 223
Loans and receivables 42 0 — 2 4 — 0 0 — 40
Collateralized agreements 5 0 — — — — 0 — — 5

Otherassets



Other

Total
Liabilities:
Trading liabilities
Equities
Bank and corporate debt
securities
Collateralized debt
obligations (“CDQs”)
and other
Investment trust funds and
other

Totaltrading liabilities
Short-termborrowings
Payables and deposits
Collateralized financing

Long-termborrowings
Other liabilities

Total

166 11 0 0 — 1 0 — 178
449 21 79 (68) (8) 3 3 (33) 446
1 ) 0 0 — 0 0 ) 1

0 0 — — — 0 — 0 0

0 0 1 0 — 0 — — 1

0 0 0 — — — — 0 —

1 Q) 1 0 — 0 0 Q) 2
97 0 16 (14) — 0 1 @) 93
0 0 0 0 — — — — 0

3 — — — — 0 — — 3
445 @) 69 (29) — 0 14 (49) 457
0 0 0 0 — 0 0 — 0
546 8) 86 (43) — 0 15 (57) 555
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Assets:

Trading assetsand private
equity investments
Equities
Private equity investments
Japanese agencyand

municipal securities

Foreign government,
agency and municipal
securities

Bank and corporate debt
securitiesand loans for
trading purposes

Commercial mortgage-
backed securities
(“CMBS”)

Residential mortgage-
backed securities
(“RMBS™)

Real estate-backed
securities

Collateralized debt
obligations (“CDQs”)
and other

Investment trust fundsand
other

Totaltrading assets and private
equity investments

Derivatives, net®
Equity contracts
Interest rate contracts
Credit contracts
Foreign exchangecontracts
Commodity contracts

Totalderivatives, net
Subtotal
Loans and receivables

Billions of yen

Three months ended September 30, 2018

Beginning Total gains
balance as of (losses) Balance as of
three months Total gains recognizd in three months
ended (losses) other Foreign Transfers Transfers ended
September 30, recognizd comprehensive  Purchases / Sales / exchange out of September 30,
2018 in revenue® income issues® redemptions® Settlements movements Level 3 Level 3 2018
¥ 21 ¥ 0 ¥ — ¥ 1 ¥ ©) — ¥ 0 2 ¥ (1) ¥ 20
9 0 — 1 0 — 0 — — 10
1 0 — — 0 — — — — 1
5 0 — 2 @) — 0 0 0 3
142 2 — 21 (6) — 4 8 (17) 154
3 0 — — ) — — 0 — 1
1 0 — 6 0 — 0 — — 7
63 0 — 46 (20) — 2 — — 91
22 2 — 20 (18) — 1 3 0 30
1 0 — 3 ©) — 0 — — 1
268 4 — 100 (56) — 7 13 (18) 318
(©) (8) — — — 1 @) (4) 2 (13)
(64) ®)) — — — 4 0 6 4 (53)
3 3) — — — @) 0 0 @) @
24 ©) — — — 1 1 — 1 25
0 0 — — — — 0 — — 0
(40) (16) — — — 5 0 2 6 (43)
¥ 228 ¥ (12) ¥ — ¥ 100 ¥ (56) 5 ¥ 7 15 ¥ (12) ¥ 275
87 1 — 9 (12) — 2 — — 87



Collateralized agreements 5 0 — — 0 6 — 11
Otherassets
Other 177 0 0 0 3 0 — 180
Total ¥ 497 ¥ (11) ¥ ¥ 109 ¥ (68) ¥ ¥ 12 ¥ 21 ¥  (12) ¥ 553
Liabilities:
Trading liabilities
Equities ¥ 1 ¥ 0 ¥ ¥ 9 ¥ (10) ¥ ¥ 0 ¥ 0 ¥ 0 ¥ 0
Bank and corporate debt
securities 0 0 1 0 0 — 0 1
Collateralized debt
obligations (“CDOs”)
and other — — — — — — — —
Investment trust fundsand
other — — 0 0 0 0 — 0
Totaltrading liabilities ¥ 1 ¥ 0 ¥ ¥ 10 ¥ (10) ¥ ¥ 0 ¥ 0 ¥ 0 ¥ 1
Short-termborrowings 33 0 16 (5) 0 8 (10) 42
Payables and deposits 0 0 0 Q) — — — (1)
Collateralized financing 3 — — @ 1 — — 3
Long-termborrowings 461 2 61 (30) 0 11 (39) 461
Other liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 — 0
Total ¥ 498 ¥ 2 ¥ ¥ 87 ¥ (47) ¥ ¥ 1 ¥ 19 ¥ (49) ¥ 506

(1) Includesgainsandlosses reported primarily within Net gainon trading, Gainon private equity investments, and alsowithin Gain on investments in equity securities,
Revenue—Other and Non-interest expenses—Other, Interest and dividends and Interestexpense in the consolidated statements ofincome.

(2) Amountsreported in Purchases/ issues includeincreases in trading liabilities while Sales/ redemptions include decreases in trading liabilities.

(3) [Iffinancialinstruments move fromLevel 3 to another Levelormove fromanother Levelto Level 3, the amount reported in Transfersinto Level 3 and Transfers outof
Level 3 is the fair value as of the beginning of the quarter during which the movement occurs. Therefore if financial instruments move fromanother Levelto Level 3, all
gains/ (losses) duringthequarterare included in the table and if financial instruments move fromLevel 3 to another Level, allgains/ (losses) during the year are excluded
fromthetable.

(4) Eachderivative classificationincludes derivatives with multiple risk underlyings. Forexample, interest rate contracts include complexderivatives referencing interestrate

risk as well as foreign exchange risk or other factors such as prepaymentrates. Credit contracts include credit default swaps as well as derivatives referencing corporate and

government debtsecurities.
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Unrealizedgains and losses recognizedfor Lewel 3 financial instruments

The following table presents theamounts of unrealized gains (losses) for the sixand three months ended September 30, 2017
and 2018, relating to those financial instruments which Nomura classified in Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy andthat were still

held by Nomura at the relevantconsolidated balance sheet date.

Assets:
Trading assets and private equity investments

Equities
Private equity investments
Japanese agency and municipal securities
Foreign government, agency and municipal securities
Bank and corporate debt securities and loans for trading purposes
Commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”)
Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”)
Real estate-backed securities
Collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”)and other
Investment trust funds and other

Totaltrading assets and private equity investments
Derivatives, net?

Equity contracts

Interest rate contracts

Credit contracts

Foreign exchangecontracts

Commodity contracts

Total derivatives, net
Subtotal

Loans and receivables
Collateralized agreements
Otherassets

Other

Total
Liabilities:
Trading liabilities
Equities
Bank and corporate debt securities
Collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”) and other
Totaltrading liabilities
Short-termborrowings
Payables and deposits
Long-termborrowings
Other liabilities

Total
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Billions of yen

Six_months ended September 30

2017 2018

Unrealizd gains / (losses)®

1 ¥ )
1 0
0 0
0 0
2 0
0 0
0 0
0 1
() )
0 0
@ ®)
0 (15)
D (15)
2 )
) (6)

— 0
1) @37)
(2 ¥ (42)
0 1
0 0
13 1
11 ¥ (40)
0 ¥ 0
0 0
0 N
0 ¥ 0
1) 0
0 0
1) 5
0 0
@) ¥ 5




Assets:
Trading assets and private equity investments
Equities
Private equity investments
Japanese agency and municipal securities

Foreign government, agency and municipal securities
Bank and corporate debt securitiesand loans for trading purposes

Commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”)
Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”)
Real estate-backed securities

Collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”)and other
Investment trust fundsand other

Totaltrading assets and private equity investments
Derivatives, net®

Equity contracts

Interest rate contracts

Credit contracts

Foreign exchangecontracts

Commodity contracts

Total derivatives, net
Subtotal

Loans and receivables
Collateralized agreements
Otherassets

Other

Total
Liabilities:
Trading liabilities
Equities
Bank and corporate debt securities
Collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”) and other

Totaltrading liabilities

Short-termborrowings
Payables and deposits
Long-termborrowings
Other liabilities

Total

(1) Includesgainsandlossesreportedwithin Netgain ontrading, Gain onprivate equity investments, and alsowithin Gain on

Billions of yen

Three months ended September 30

2017

2018

Unrealizd gains / (losses)®

¥ 1¥ @
0 0
0 0
0 0
2 0
0 0
0 0
0 1
@ 0
0 0
1 0
0 ®)
5 ©)
0 )
3 )
— 0
8 (15)
¥ 9 ¥ (15)
0 0
0 0
9 0
¥ 18 ¥ (15)
¥ 0¥ 0
0 0
0 N
¥ 0¥ 0
0 0
0 0
@) 7
0 0
¥ (1) ¥ 7

investments in equity securities, Revenue—Other and Non-interest expenses—Other, Interest and dividends and Interestexpense

in the consolidated statements of income.

(2) Eachderivative classificationincludes derivatives with multiple risk underlyings. Forexample, interest rate contracts include

complexderivatives referencing interest rate risk as well as foreign exchange risk or other factors suchas prepaymentrates.

Credit contracts include credit default swaps as well as derivatives referencing corporate and government debtsecurities.



Transfers between lewels of the fair value hierarchy

Nomura assumes that all transfers of financial instruments fromone level to another level within the fair value hierarchy occur
atthe beginning ofthe relevant quarter in which the transfer takes place. Amounts reported below therefore represent the fair value of
the financial instruments at thebeginning of the relevant quarter whenthe transfer was made.

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

During the sixmonths ended September 30,2017, a total of ¥32 billion of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferred fromLevel 1 to Level 2. This comprised primarily ¥29 billion of equities reported within Trading assets and private equity
investments—Equities which were transferred because the observable markets in which these instruments were traded became inactive.
During the same period, thetotalamountof financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) which were transferred fromLevel 1
to Level 2 was not significant.

During the sixmonths ended September 30,2018, a total of ¥16 billion of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferred fromLevel 1 to Level 2. During the same period, the totalamount of financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities)
which were transferred fromLevel 1 to Level 2 was not significant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2017, the totalamount of financial assets (excluding derivativeassets) and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) which were transferred fromLevel 1 to Level 2 was not significant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2018, the totalamount of financial assets (excluding derivativeassets) and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) which were transferred fromLevel 1 to Level 2 was not significant.

During the sixmonths ended September 30, 2017, a total of ¥98 billion of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferred fromLevel 2 to Level 1. This comprised primarily ¥86 billion of equities reported within Trading assets and private equity
investments—Equities which were transferred because the observable markets in which theseinstruments were traded became active.
During the same period, a total of ¥124 billion of financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) were transferred fromLevel 2 to
Level 1. This comprised primarily ¥121 billion of short sales of equities reported within Trading liabilities which were transferred
because the observable markets in which these instruments were traded became active.

During the sixmonths ended September 30, 2018, a total of ¥30 billion of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferred fromLevel 2 to Level 1. This comprised primarily ¥22 billion of equities reported within Trading assets and private equity
investments—Equities which were transferred because the observable markets in which theseinstruments were traded became active.
During the same period, atotal of ¥15 billion of financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) were transferred fromLevel 2 to
Level 1. This comprised primarily ¥14 billion of short sales of equities reported within Trading liabilities which were transferred
because the observable markets in which these instruments were traded became active.

During the three months ended September 30, 2017, the totalamount of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) which were transferred fromLevel 2 to Level 1 was not significant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2018, the totalamount of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) which were transferred fromLevel 2 to Level 1 was not significant.

Transfersout of Level 3

During the sixmonths ended September 30,2017, a total of ¥14 billion of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferred outof Level 3. During the same period, a total of ¥84 billion of financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) were
transferred outof Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥72billion of Long-termborrowings, principally structured notes, and ¥11 billion
of Short-termborrowings, which were transferred because certain volatility and correlation valuation inputs became observable or less
significant.

During the sixmonths ended September 30, 2017, the totalamountof¥22billion of net derivative assets were transferred out of

Level 3. This comprised ¥28billion of net interestrate derivative assets which were transferred because certain interestrate, volatility
and correlationvaluation inputs became observable or less significant.
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During the sixmonths ended September 30, 2018, a total of ¥35 billion of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferred outof Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥32 billion of Bank and corporate debt securities and loans for trading purposes,
principally debt securities, which were transferred because certain credit spread and recovery rate valuation inputs became observable
or less significant. During thesame period, a total of ¥61 billion of financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) were
transferred outof Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥49 billion of Long-termborrowings, principally structured notes, and¥12 billion
of Short-termborrowings, which were transferred because certain volatility and correlation valuation inputs became observable or less
significant.

During the sixmonths ended September 30, 2018, the totalamountof¥20billion of net derivative liabilities were transferred
out of Level 3. This comprised¥14 billion of net interest rate derivative liabilities which were transferred because certain interestrate,
volatility and correlation valuation inputs became observable or less significant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2017, the totalamount of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) which
were transferred out of Level 3was not significant. Duringthe same period, a total of ¥57 billion of financial liabilities (excluding
derivative liabilities) were transferred out of Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥49 billion of Long-term borrowings, principally
structured notes, which were transferred because certain volatility and correlation valuation inputs became observable or less
significant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2017, the totalamount of¥25billion of net derivative assets were transferred out
of Level 3. This comprised ¥26 billion of net interest rate derivative assets which were transferred because certain interest rate,
volatility and correlation valuation inputs became observable or less significant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2018, atotalof¥18 billion of financialassets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferred outof Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥17 billion of Bank and corporatedebt securitiesand loans for trading purposes,
principally debt securities, which were transferred because certain credit spread and recovery rate valuation inputs became observable
or less significant. During thesame period, a total of ¥49 billion of financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) were
transferred outof Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥39 billion of Long-term borrowings, principally structured notes, and¥10billion
of Short-termborrowings, which were transferred because certain volatility and correlation valuation inputs became observable or less
significant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2018, the totalamount of net derivative liabilities which were transferred out of
Level 3 was not significant.

Transfersinto Level 3

During the sixmonths ended September 30,2017, a total of ¥19 billion of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferredinto Level 3. The amount of gains and losses which were recognized in the quarter whenthe transfers into Level 3
occurred was not significant. During thesame period, a total of ¥29billion of financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) were
transferredinto Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥27 billion of Long-termborrowings, principally structured notes, which were
transferred because certain volatility and correlation valuation inputs became unobservable or more significant. The amount of gains
and losses on these transfers reported in Long-term borrowings which were recognized in the quarter whenthetransferinto Level 3
occurred was not significant.

During the sixmonths ended September 30,2017, the totalamountof net derivative assets whichwere transferredinto Level 3

was not significant. The amount of gains and losses which were recognized in the period when the transfer into Level 3occurred was
also not significant.
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During the sixmonths ended September 30, 2018, a total of ¥35 billion of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferredinto Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥16 billion of Bank and corporate debt securities and loans for trading purposes,
principally debt securities, which were transferred because certain credit spread and recovery rate valuation inputs became
unobservable or more significant. The amountofgains and losses onthese transfers reported in Bank and corporate debtsecurities
and loans for trading purposes which were recognized in the quarter whenthetransfer into Level 3occurred was not significant.
During the same period, a total of ¥41 billion of financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) were transferredinto Level 3.
This comprised primarily ¥25billion of Long-termborrowings, principally structured notes, and¥16 billion of Short-termborrowings
which were transferred because certain volatility and correlation valuation inputs became unobservable or more significant. The
amount of gains and losses onthesetransfers reported in Long-termborrowings and Short-term borrowings which were recognized in
the quarterwhenthe transfer into Level 3occurred was not significant.

During the sixmonths ended September30, 2018, the totalamountof net derivativeassets which were transferredinto Level 3
was not significant. The amount of gains and losses which were recognized in the period when the transfer into Level 3occurred was
also not significant.

During the three months ended September30, 2017, the total amount of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) which were
transferredinto Level 3was not significant. During thesame period, a total of ¥15billion of financial liabilities (excluding derivative
liabilities) were transferred into Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥14 billion of Long-termborrowings, principally structured notes,
which were transferred because certain volatility and correlation valuation inputs became unobservable or more significant. The
amount of gains and losses onthesetransfers reportedin Long-termborrowings which were recognized in the quarter when the
transferinto Level 3occurred was notsignificant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2017, the totalamount of net derivative liabilities which were transferred into
Level 3 was not significant. The amount of gains and losses which were recognized in the period when the transferinto Level 3
occurred was also not significant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2018, a total of ¥19 billion of financial assets (excluding derivative assets) were
transferredinto Level 3. The amount of gains and losses which were recognized in the quarter whenthe transfersinto Level 3
occurred was not significant. During thesame period, a total of ¥19billion of financial liabilities (excluding derivative liabilities) were
transferredinto Level 3. This comprised primarily ¥11 billion of Long-termborrowings, principally structured notes, which were
transferred because certain volatility and correlation valuation inputs became unobservable or more significant. The amount of gains
and losses on these transfers reported in Long-term borrowings which were recognized in the quarter whenthetransferinto Level 3
occurred was not significant.

During the three months ended September 30, 2018, the totalamount of net derivative assets which were transferred into
Level 3 was not significant. The amount of gains and losses which were recognized in the period when the transferinto Level 3
occurred was also not significant.
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Investments ininvestment funds that calculate NAV per share

In the normal course of business, Nomura invests in non-consolidated funds which meet the definition of investment companies
or are similar in nature andwhich donot havereadily determinable fair values. For certain of these investments, Nomura uses NAV
pershare as the basis forvaluationas a practical expedient. Some of these investments are redeemable at differentamounts fromNAV
pershare.

The following tables present informationon these investments where NAV pershare is calculated or disclosed as of March 31,
2018 and September 30, 2018. Investments are presented by major category relevantto thenature of Nomura’s business and risks.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018

Unfunded Redemption frequency
Fair value commitments®  (if currently eligible)®  Redemption notice®

Hedge funds ¥ 25 ¥ — Monthly Same day-90 days
Venture capital funds 1 2 — —
Private equity funds 22 11 — —
Real estate funds 1 — — —
Total ¥ 49 ¥ 13

Billions of yen
September 30, 2018

Unfunded Redemption frequency
Fair value commitments®  (if currently eligible)® Redemption notice®

Hedge funds ¥ 16 ¥ — Monthly Same day-90 days
Venture capital funds 2 2 — —
Private equity funds 18 10 — —
Real estate funds 1 2 — —
Total ¥ 37 ¥ 14

() Thecontractualamount of any unfunded commitments Nomura is required to make to the entities in which the investment is
held.

(2) Therange in frequencywith which Nomura can redeeminvestments.

(3) Therange in notice periodrequired to be provided before redemptionis possible.

Hedge funds:

These investments include funds of funds that invest in multiple asset classes. The fair values of these investments are
determined using NAV pershare. Although mostofthese funds canbe redeemed within sixmonths, certain funds cannot be redeemed
within six months due to contractual, liquidity or gatingissues. The redemption period cannotbe estimated for certain suspended or
liguidating funds. Some of theseinvestments contain restrictions againsttransfers of the investments to third parties.

Venture capital funds:

These investments include primarily start-up funds. The fair values ofthese investments are determined using NAV pershare.
Most ofthesefunds cannot be redeemed within sixmonths. The redemption period cannotbe estimated for certain suspended or
liquidating funds. Some oftheseinvestments contain restrictions againsttransfers of the investments to third parties.

Private equity funds:

These investments are made mainly in various sectors in Europe, U.S. and Japan. The fair values of these investments are
determined using NAV pershare. Redemption is restricted formost ofthese investments. Some of these investments contain
restrictions againsttransfers of the investmentsto third parties.

Real estatefunds:

These are investments in commercial and othertypes of real estate. The fair values of these investments are determined using
NAYV pershare. Redemptionis restricted for most of these investments. Some of these investments contain restrictions against
transfers of the investments to third parties.

57



Fair value option for financial assets andfinancial liabilities

Nomura measures certain eligible financial assets and liabilities at fair value throughthe election of the fair value option
permitted by ASC815 “Derivatives and Hedging” (“ASC815”)and ASC 825 “Financial Instruments” (“ASC 825”). When Nomura
elects the fair value option foran eligible item, changes in that item’s fair value are recognized throughearnings. Election of the fair
value optionis generally irrevocable unless an eventoccurs that gives rise to a new basis ofaccounting for thatinstrument.

The financial assets and financial liabilities primarily elected for the fair value optionby Nomura, and the reasons for the
election, are as follows:

Equity method investments reported within Trading assets and private equity investments and Other assets held for capital
appreciationor current income purposes which Nomura generally has an intentionto exit rather than hold indefinitely.
Nomura elects the fairvalue option to more appropriately representthe purpose ofthese investments in these consolidated
financial statements.

Loans reportedwithin Loans andreceivables which are risk managed on a fair value basis and loan commitments related
to loans receivable forwhich the fair value option will be elected upon funding. Nomura elects the fair value optionto
mitigate volatility throughearnings caused by the difference in measurementbasis that otherwise would arise between
loans and the derivatives usedto risk manage those instruments.

Reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements reported within Collateralized agreements and Collateralized financing
which are risk managed on a fair value basis. Nomura elects the fair value option to mitigate volatility through earnings
causedby the difference in measurement basis that otherwisewould arise betweenthe reverse repurchase and repurchase
agreementsandthe derivatives used to risk manage those instruments.

All structured notes issued on orafter April 1, 2008 reported within Short-termborrowings and Long-termborrowings.
Nomura elects the fair value option for those structured notes primarily to mitigate the volatility through earnings caused
by differences in the measurementbasis for structured notes and the derivatives Nomura uses to risk manage those
positions. Nomura also elects the fair value option for certain notes issued by consolidated VIEs for the same purpose and
for certain structured notes issued priorto April 1, 2008. Certain subsidiaries elect the fair value option for structured
loans and straightbonds issued onorafter April 1, 2018.

Financial liabilities reported within Long-term borrowings recognized in transactions which are accounted foras secured
financing transactions under ASC 860. Nomura elects the fair value option for these financial liabilities to mitigate
volatility throughearnings that otherwisewould arise had this electionnot been made. Even though Nomura usually has
little or no continuing economic exposure to the transferred financial assets, they remain on the consolidated balance
sheetsand continue to be carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized through earings.

Interest and dividends arising fromfinancial instruments for which the fair value option has been elected are recognized within
Interest and dividends, Interest expenseor Net gain ontrading.
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The following table presents gains (losses) due to changes in fair value for financial instruments measured at fair value using the
fair value option forthe sixand three months ended September 30, 2017 and 2018.

Billions of yen
Six months ended September 30
2017 2018

Gains / (Losses)®

Assets:
Trading assets and private equity investments®
Trading assets ¥ 0 ¥ 0
Private equity investments 2 1
Loans and receivables 0 Q)
Collateralized agreements® 16 0
Otherassets® 12 )
Total ¥ 30 ¥ 1)
Liabilities:
Short-termborrowings® ¥ (26) ¥ 6
Collateralized financing® @) @)
Long-termborrowings®® (59) 50
Other liabilities® (12) 9
Total ¥ (98) ¥ 64
Billions of yen
Three months ended September 30
2017 2018
Gains / (Losses)®
Assets:
Trading assets and private equity investments®
Trading assets ¥ 0 ¥ 0
Private equity investments 2 1
Loans and receivables 0 @)
Collateralized agreements® 8 0
Otherassets® 5 3
Total ¥ 15 ¥ 3
Liabilities:
Short-termborrowings® ¥ 9 ¥ 29
Collateralized financing® @ @
Long-termborrowings®® (75) 8
Other liabilities® (12) 4
Total ¥ 97) ¥ 40

(1) Includesgainsand losses reported primarily within Net gainon tradingand Revenue—Other in the consolidated statements of
income.

(2) Includesequity investments that would have beenaccounted for under the equity method had Nomura notchosento elect the
fair value option.

(3) Includesreverse repurchase and repurchase agreements.

(4) Includesstructured notes and other financial liabilities.

(5) Includessecured financingtransactions arising fromtransfers of financial assets which did notmeet the criteria for sales
accounting.

(6) Includesunfunded writtenloan commitments.
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As of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, Nomura held an economic interestof 40.14% and 40.52% in American Century
Companies, Inc., respectively. The investment is measured at fair value on a recurring basis through election of the fair value option
and is reported within Other assets—Other in the consolidated balance sheets.

There was no significantimpact on financial assets for which the fair value option was elected attributable to instrument-specific
credit risk.

Nomura calculates the impact of changes in its own creditworthiness on certain financial liabilities for which the fair value
option is elected by DCF valuation techniques using a rate which incorporates observable changes in its credit spread.

The following table presents changes in the valuation adjustment for Nomura’s own credit worthiness applied to certain
financial liabilities for which the fair value optionhas been elected recognized in other comprehensive income duringthe period and
cumulatively, and amounts reclassified to earnings fromaccumulated other comprehensive income on early settlement ofsuch
financial liabilities during the period ended September 30, 2017 and 2018.

Billions of Yen
Six months period ended September 30

2017 2018
Changes recognized as a credit (debit) to other comprehensive income during the period ¥ (11) ¥ 5
Credit (debit) Amounts reclassified to earnings during the period 0 0
Cumulative credit (debit) balance recognized in accumulated other comprehensiveincome

@) 12

Billions of Yen
Three months period ended September 30
2017 2018

Changes recognized as a credit (debit) to other comprehensive income duringthe period ¥ (5) ¥ Q)
Credit (debit) Amounts reclassified to earnings during the period 0 0

As of March 31, 2018, the fair value of the aggregate unpaid principal balance (which is contractually principally protected) of
loans and receivables for which the fair value option was elected was ¥0 billion more than the principal balance ofsuch loansand
receivables. The fair value ofthe aggregate unpaid principal balance (which is contractually principally protected) of long-term
borrowings forwhich the fair value option was elected was ¥58 billion less thanthe principal balance of such long-termborrowings.
There were no loans andreceivables forwhich the fair value option was elected that were 90 days or more pastdue.

As of September 30, 2018, the fair value ofthe aggregate unpaid principal balance (which is contractually principally protected)
of loans andreceivables forwhich thefair value optionwas elected was ¥0 billion more than the principal balance of such loansand
receivables. The fairvalue of the aggregate unpaid principal balance (which is contractually principally protected) of long-term
borrowings forwhich the fair value option was elected was ¥89 billion less thanthe principal balance of such long-termborrowings.
There were no loans and receivables forwhich the fair value option was elected that were 90 days or more pastdue.

Concentrations of creditrisk

Concentrations of credit risk may arise from trading, securities financing transactions and underwriting activities, and may be
impacted by changes in political oreconomic factors. Nomura has credit risk concentrations onbonds issued by the Japanese
Government, U.S. Government, Governments within the European Union (“EU”), their states and municipalities, and their agencies.
These concentrations generally arise fromtaking trading positions andare reported within Trading assets in the consolidated balance
sheets. Government, agency and municipal securities, including Securities pledged as collateral, represented 16% of total assets as of
March 31,2018 and 15% as of September 30, 2018.
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The following tables present geographic allocations of Nomura’s trading assets related to government, agency and municipal

securities. See Note 3“Derivative instruments and hedging activities” for further informationregarding the concentration of credit risk
for derivatives.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018
Japan u.s. EU Other  Total®
Government, agency and municipal securities ¥2394 ¥2,168 ¥1512 ¥ 540 ¥6,614

Billions of yen
September 30, 2018
Japan u.s. EU Other Total®
Government, agency and municipal securities ¥2,208 ¥2,136 ¥1,757 ¥ 608 ¥6,709

(1) Otherthanabove, therewere ¥344 billion and ¥305 billion of government, agency and municipal securities reported within
Other assets—Non-trading debt securities in the consolidated balance sheetsas of March 31, 2018 and September 30 2018,
respectively. These securities are primarily Japanese government, agency and municipal securities.

Estimated fair value of financial instruments notcarriedat fair value

Certain financial instruments are not carried at fairvalue on a recurring basis in the consolidated balance sheets since they are

neither held fortrading purposes nor are elected for the fair value option. These are typically carried at contractualamounts dueor
amortized cost.

The carrying value of the majority of the financial instruments detailed below will approximate fair value since they are short-
termin nature and contain minimal credit risk. These financialinstruments include financial assets reported within Cash and cash
equivalents, Time deposits, Deposits with stock exchanges and other segregated cash, Receivables from customers, Receivables from
other than customers, Securities purchased under agreements to reselland Securities borrowed and financial liabilities reported
within Short-term borrowings, Payables to customers, Payables to other than customers, Deposits received at banks, Securities sold
under agreements to repurchase, Securities loaned and Other secured borrowings in the consolidated balance sheets.

The estimated fair values of other financial instruments whichare longer-termin nature or may contain more than minimal
credit riskmay be different to their carrying value. Financial assets of this type primarily include certain loans whichare reported
within Loans receivable while financial liabilities primarily include long-termborrowings which are reported within Long-term
borrowings.
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The following tables present carrying values, fair values and classification within the fair value hierarchy for certain classes of
financial instrumentofwhich a portion of theending balance was carried at fair value as of March 31,2018 and September 30 2018.

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Time deposits

Deposits with stock exchanges and other segregated cash
Loans receivable®

Securities purchased underagreements to resell
Securities borrowed

Total
Liabilities:
Short-termborrowings
Depositsreceivedat banks
Securities soldunderagreementsto repurchase

Securities loaned
Long-termborrowings

Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Time deposits

Deposits with stock exchanges and other segregated cash
Loans receivable®

Securities purchased underagreementsto resell
Securities borrowed

Total
Liabilities:
Short-termborrowings
Depositsreceivedat banks
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Securities loaned
Long-termborrowings

Total

Billions of yen

March 31, 2018®

Fair value by level

Carrying Fair
value value Level 1  Level 2 Level 3
¥ 2355 ¥ 2355 ¥2355 ¥ — ¥ —
315 315 — 315 —
289 289 — 289 —
2,461 2,461 — 1,946 515
9,854 9,854 — 9,849 5
6,384 6,383 — 6,383 —
¥ 21,658 ¥21,657 ¥2,355 ¥18,782 ¥ 520
¥ 743 ¥ 743 ¥ — ¥ 726 ¥ 17
1,151 1,151 — 1,151 —
14,759 14,759 — 14,756 3
1,524 1,524 — 1,524 —
7,383 7,417 18 6,939 460
¥ 25560 ¥25504 ¥ 18 ¥25,096 ¥ 480
Billions of yen
September 30, 2018
Carrying Fair Fair value by level
value value Level 1  Level 2 Level 3
¥ 2975 ¥ 2975 ¥2975 ¥ — ¥ —
195 195 — 195 —
294 204 — 204 @ —
2,306 2,306 — 1,753 553
15,413 15,413 — 15,402 11
4510 4,509 — 4,509 —
¥ 25693 ¥25,692 ¥2975 ¥22,153 ¥ 564
¥ 980 ¥ 980 ¥ — ¥ 939 ¥ 41
1,183 1,183 — 1,183 —
18,646 18,646 — 18,643 3
1,371 1,371 — 1,371 —
7,694 7,702 13 7,163 526
¥ 29874 ¥29,882 ¥ 13 ¥29,299 ¥ 570

(1) Includesfinancial instruments which are carried at fair value on arecurring basis.

(2) Carrying values are shown after deducting relevant allowances for credit losses.
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Assetsand liabilities measuredat fair value on a nonrecurring basis

In addition tofinancial instruments carried at fair value on a recurring basis, Nomura also measures other financial and non-
financialassetsand liabilities at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, where the primary measurement basis is notfair value. Fairvalue is
only usedin specific circumstances after initial recognition such as to measure impairment.

As of March 31,2018 and September 30, 2018, there were no significant amount ofassets and liabilities which were measured
at fair value on anonrecurring basis.
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3. Derivative instruments andhedging activities:

Nomura uses a variety of derivative financial instruments, including futures, forwards, options and swaps, for both trading and
non-trading purposes.

Derivatives used for trading purposes

In the normal course of business, Nomura enters into transactions involving derivative financial instruments to meet client needs,
for trading purposes, andto reduceits own exposure to loss due to adverse fluctuations in interest rates, currency exchange rates and
market prices of securities. These financial instruments include contractual agreements such as commitments to swap interest payment
streams, exchange currencies or purchaseor sell securities and other financial instruments on specific terms at specific future dates.

Nomura maintains active trading positions in a variety of derivative financial instruments. Most of Nomura’s trading activities
are client oriented. Nomura utilizes a variety of derivative financial instruments as a means of bridging clients’ specific financial needs
and investors’demands in the securities markets. Nomura also actively trades securities and various derivatives to assist its clients in
adjustingtheirrisk profiles as markets change. In performing these activities, Nomura carries an inventory of capital markets
instruments and maintains its access to market liquidity by quoting bid and offer prices to and trading with other market makers. These
activities are essential to provide clients with securities and other capital market products at competitive prices.

Futures and forward contracts are commitments to either purchase or sell securities, foreign currency or other capital market
instruments at a specific future datefora specified price and may be settledin cash orthrough delivery. Foreignexchange contracts
include spot and forward contracts and involve the exchange of two currencies at a rate agreed by the contracting parties. Risks arise
fromthe possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts and frommovements in market prices. Futures
contracts are executed through regulated exchanges which clear and guarantee performance of counterparties. Accordingly, credit risk
associated with futures contracts is considered minimal. In contrast, forward contracts are generally negotiated between two
counterparties and, therefore, are subjectto the performance ofthe related counterparties.

Options are contracts thatgrant the purchaser, fora premium payment, the rightto either purchase orsella financial instrument
at a specified price within a specified period of time or on a specified date fromor to the writer of the option. The writer of options
receives premiums andbears therisk of unfavorable changes in the market price of the financial instruments underlying the options.

Swaps are contractual agreements in which two counterparties agreeto exchange certain cash flows, at specified future dates,
based onan agreed contract. Certain agreements may result in combined interest rate and foreign currency exposures. Entering into
swap agreements may involve the risk of credit losses in the event of counterparty default.

To the extent these derivative financial instruments are economically hedging financial instruments or securities positions of
Nomura, the overallrisk of loss may be fully or partly mitigated by the hedged position.

Nomura seeks to minimize its exposure to market risk arising from its use ofthese derivative financial instruments through

various control policies and procedures, including position limits, monitoring procedures and hedging strategies whereby Nomura
enters into offsetting or other positions in a variety of financial instruments.

64



Derivatives used for non-trading purposes

Nomura’s principal objectives in using derivatives for non-trading purposes are to manage interestrate risk, to modify the
interest rate characteristics of certain financial liabilities, to manage foreign exchange risk of certain foreign currency denominated
debt securities, to manage netinvestmentexposure tofluctuations in foreign exchange rates arising fromcertain foreign operations
and to mitigate equity price risk arising fromcertain stock-based compensation awards givento employees.

Credit risk associated with derivatives utilized for non-trading purposes is controlled and managed in the same way as credit risk
associated with derivatives utilized for trading purposes.

Nomura designates certain derivative financial instruments as fair value hedges of interestrate risk arising fromspecific
financial liabilities and foreign currency riskarising fromspecific foreign currency denominated debt securities. These derivativesare
effective in reducing the risk associated with the exposure being hedged and are highly correlated with changes in the fairvalue and
foreign currency rates of the underlying hedged items, bothat inception and throughout the life of the hedge contract. Changes in fair
value ofthe hedging derivatives are reported together with those of the hedged assets and liabilities through the consolidated
statements of income within Interest expense or Revenue—Other.

Derivative financial instruments designated as hedges of the netinvestmentin foreign operations relate to specific subsidiaries
with non-Japanese Yen functional currencies. When determining the effectiveness of net investmenthedges, the effective portion of
the change in fair value ofthe hedging derivative is determined by changes in spotexchange rates and is reported through NHI
shareholders’ equity within Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Changes in fair value of the hedging derivatives
attributable to changes in the difference betweenthe forward rate and spotrate are excluded fromthe measure of hedge effectiveness
and are reportedin the consolidated statements of income within Revenue—Other.

Concentrations of creditrisk for derivatives

The following tables present Nomura’s significant concentration of exposures tocredit risk in OTC derivatives with financial
institutions including transactions cleared through central counterparties. The gross fair value of derivative assets represents the
maximum amount of loss due to credit risk that Nomura would incur if the counterparties of Nomura failed to performin accordance
with the terms ofthe instrumentsand any collateral or other security Nomura held in relation to those instruments proved tobe ofno
value.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018

Impact of
Gross fairvalueof master netting  Impactof  Net exposure to
derivative assets agreements collateral credit risk
Financial institutions ¥ 13472 ¥ (11,467) ¥ (1,653) ¥ 352

Billions of yen
September 30, 2018

Impact of
Gross fairvalueof master netting  Impactof  Net exposure to
derivative assets agreements collateral credit risk
Financial institutions ¥ 14399 ¥ (12,338) ¥ (1,727) ¥ 334
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Derivative activities

The following tables quantify the volume of Nomura’s derivative activity through a disclosure of notionalamounts, in
comparisonwith the fair value ofthose derivatives. Allamounts are disclosed ona gross basis, priorto counterparty netting of

derivative assetsand liabilities and cash collateral netting against netderivatives.

Derivatives used for tradingandnon-trading purposes®®:

Equity contracts

Interest rate contracts
Credit contracts

Foreign exchangecontracts
Commodity contracts

Total

Derivatives designatedas hedging instruments:
Interest rate contracts

Foreign exchange contracts
Total
Totalderivatives

Derivatives used for tradingandnon-trading purposes®®:

Equity contracts

Interest rate contracts
Credit contracts

Foreign exchangecontracts
Commodity contracts

Total

Derivatives designatedas hedging instruments:
Interest rate contracts

Foreign exchangecontracts
Total
Total derivatives

Billions of yen

March 31, 2018®

Derivative assets Derivative liabilities

Total Notional® Fair value Fair value®
¥ 39,203 ¥ 1,011 1,118
2,940,234 8,072 7,550
31,624 515 425
362,658 5,494 5,087
60,883 1 1
¥ 3,434,602 ¥ 15,093 14,181
¥ 1,184 ¥ 24 1
93 1 —
¥ 1,277 ¥ 25 1
¥ 3,435,879 ¥ 15,118 ¥ 14,182

Billions of yen

September 30, 2018

Derivative assets Derivative liabilities

Total Notional® Fair value Fair value®
¥ 37,310 ¥ 1,159 1,264
2,869,840 7,592 7,064
35,681 589 498
472,140 6,727 6,474
494 1 1
¥ 3,415,465 ¥ 16,068 15,301
¥ 974 ¥ 15 1
92 1 —
¥ 1,066 ¥ 16 1
¥ 3,416,531 ¥ 16,084 ¥ 15,302

(1) Includesthe amountofembedded derivatives bifurcated in accordance with ASC 815.

(2) Eachderivative classificationincludes derivatives referencing multiple risk components. For example, interest rate contracts
include complexderivatives referencinginterest rate risk as well as foreign exchange risk or other factors suchas prepayment
rates. Credit contracts include credit default swaps as well as derivatives referencing corporateand governmentsecurities.

(3) AsofMarch 31,2018 and September 30,2018, the amounts reported include derivatives used for non-trading purposes which
are not designated as fair value or net investmenthedges. These amounts have notbeen separately presented since such amounts

were not significant.

(4) Duetothechanges in ouraccounting policy, certain reclassifications of previously reported amounts have been made to
conformto the currentyear presentation. Pleaserefer to Note 1. “Basis ofaccounting” for further details.

Changes in fair value are recognized either through earnings or other comprehensive income depending on the purpose for

which the derivatives are used.



Offsetting ofderivatives

Counterparty credit risk associated with derivative financial instruments is controlled by Nomura through credit approvals,
limits and monitoring procedures. To reduce therisk of loss, Nomura requires collateral, principally cash collateraland government
securities, for certain derivativetransactions. In certain cases, Nomura may agree forsuchcollateral to be postedto a third-party
custodianundera controlagreement that enables Nomura to take control of such collateral in the event of counterparty default. From
an economic standpoint, Nomura evaluates default risk exposure net of related collateral. Furthermore, OTC derivative transactions
are typically documented under industry standard master netting agreements which reduce Nomura’s credit exposure to counterparties
as they permit the close-outand offset of transactions and collateralamounts in the eventof default of the counterparty. For certain
OTC centrally-cleared and exchange-traded derivatives, the clearing or membership agreements entered into by Nomura provide
similar rights to Nomura in the event of default of the relevant central clearing party orexchange. In orderto supportthe
enforceability of the close-outand offsetting rights within these agreements, Nomura generally seeks to obtainan external legal
opinion.

For certain types of counterparties and in certain jurisdictions, Nomura may enter into derivative transactions which are not
documented undera master netting agreement. Similarly, even when derivatives are documented under suchagreements, Nomura may
not have yetsought evidence, or may not be able to obtain evidenceto determine with sufficient certainty that close-out and offsetting
rights are legally enforceable. This may be the case where relevant local laws specifically prohibit such close-out and offsetting rights,
or where local laws are complex, ambiguous or silent on the enforceability of suchrights. This may include derivative transactions
executed with certain foreign governments, agencies, municipalities, central clearing counterparties, exchanges and pension funds.

Nomura considers the enforceability of a master netting agreement in determining how credit risk arising fromtransactions with
a specific counterparty is hedged, how counterparty credit exposures are calculated and applied to credit limits and the extent and
nature of collateral requirements fromthe counterparty.

Derivative assets and liabilities with the same counterparty documented under a master netting agreement are offset in the
consolidated balance sheets where thespecific criteria defined by ASC210-20 “Balance Sheet—Offsetting”” (“ASC210-20")and ASC
815 are met. These criteria include requirements around the legal enforceability of such close-out and offsetrights under the master
netting agreement. In addition, fair value amounts recognized for the right to reclaimcash collateral (a receivable) and the obligation
to return cashcollateral (a payable) are also offset against net derivative liabilities and netderivative assets, respectively where certain
additional criteria are met.

The following table presents informationabout offsetting of derivatives and related collateralamounts in the consolidated
balance sheets by type of derivative contract, together with the extent to which master netting agreements entered intowith
counterparties, central clearing counterparties or exchanges permit additional offsetting of derivatives and collateral in the event of
counterparty default. Derivative transactions which are notdocumented under a master netting agreement or are documented under a
master nettingagreement forwhich Nomura does not have sufficientevidence of enforceability are not offset in the following table.
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Billions of yen Billions of yen

March 31, 2018© September 30, 2018
Derivative  Derivative  Derivative Derivative
assets liabilities® assets liabilities®
Equity contracts
OTC settled bilaterally ¥ 748 ¥ 769 ¥ 904 ¥ 864
Exchange-traded 263 349 255 400
Interest rate contracts
OTC settled bilaterally 6,938 6,522 6,609 6,095
OTC centrally-cleared 1,142 1,020 987 965
Exchange-traded 16 9 11 5
Credit contracts
OTC settled bilaterally 390 300 406 309
OTC centrally-cleared 125 125 182 188
Exchange-traded — — 1 1
Foreign exchange contracts
OTC settled bilaterally 5,495 5,087 6,728 6,474
OTC centrally-cleared — — — —
Commodity contracts
OTC settled bilaterally — — 0 0
Exchange-traded 1 1 1 1
Totalgross derivative balances® ¥ 15118 ¥ 14,182 ¥ 16,084 ¥ 15,302
Less: Amounts offset in the consolidated balance sheets® (14,094) (13,457) (15,035) (14,481)
Totalnet amounts reported on the face of the consolidated balance sheets® ¥ 1024 ¥ 725 ¥ 1049 ¥ 821
Less: Additionalamounts not offsetin the consolidated balance sheets®
Financialinstruments and non-cash collateral (228) (72) (227) (68)
Net amount ¥ 796 ¥ 653 ¥ 822 ¥ 753
(1) Includesthe amountofembedded derivatives bifurcated in accordance with ASC 815.
(2) Includesallgross derivative assetand liability balances irrespective of whether they are transacted under a master netting

©)

4

©)

(6)

agreement orwhether Nomura has obtained sufficientevidence of enforceability of the master nettingagreement. As of

March 31,2018, the grossbalance of derivative assets andderivative liabilities which are not documented under master netting
agreements orare documented under master netting agreements for which Nomura has notyet obtained sufficientevidence of
enforceability was ¥150billion and ¥276 billion, respectively. As of September 30, 2018, the gross balance of such derivative
assetsandderivative liabilities was ¥197 billion and ¥320billion, respectively.

Represents amounts offset through counterparty netting of derivative assets and liabilities as well as cash collateral netting
against net derivatives under master netting and similar agreements for which Nomura has obtained sufficient evidence of
enforceability in accordance with ASC815. As of March 31, 2018, Nomura offset a total of¥1,201 billion of cash collateral
receivablesagainst netderivative liabilities and ¥1,838 billion of cash collateral payables againstnet derivative assets. As of
September 30, 2018, Nomura offset atotal of¥1,314 billion of cash collateral receivables against net derivative liabilities and
¥1,868 billion of cash collateral payables againstnet derivative assets.

Net derivative assets and netderivative liabilities are generally reported within Trading assets and private equity investments—
Tradingassetsand Trading liabilities, respectively in the consolidated balance sheet. Bifurcated embedded derivatives are
reported within Short-term borrowings or Long-termborrowings depending on the maturity of the underlying host contract.
Represents amounts which are not permitted to be offset on the face of the consolidated balance sheets in accordance with ASC
210-20 and ASC 815 but which provide Nomura with a legally enforceable right of offset in the event of counterparty default.
Amountsrelating to derivativeand collateral agreements where Nomura has not yet obtained sufficient evidence of
enforceability of such offsettingrights are excluded. As of March 31, 2018, atotal of¥167 billion of cash collateral receivables
and ¥391 billion of cash collateral payables, including amounts reported in the table, have not been offset against net derivatives.
As of September 30, 2018, a total of ¥179 billion of cash collateral receivables and ¥486 billion of cash collateral payables,
including amounts reported in the table, have notbeen offset against netderivatives.

During the yearended March 31, 2018, the rules of a specific central clearing house were amended such that daily variation
margin payments and receipts againstspecific types of derivativenow legally represent partial settlement of the derivative rather
than margin. Thesepayments and receipts are accounted for as partial settlement of the derivative rather than cash collateral. In
addition, dueto the changes in ouraccounting policy, certain reclassifications of previously reportedamounts havebeenmade
to conformto the current year presentation. Please referto Note 1. “Basis of accounting” for further details.
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Derivatives used for trading purposes

Derivative financial instruments used for trading purposes, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, are carried at fair value
with changes in fairvalue recognized through the consolidated statements of income within Revenue—Netgain ontrading.

The following table presents amounts included in the consolidated statements of income related to derivatives used for trading
and non-trading purposes by type of underlying derivative contract.

Derivatives used for tradingand non-trading purposes®®:

Equity contracts

Interest rate contracts
Credit contracts

Foreign exchange contracts
Commodity contracts

Total

Derivatives used for tradingandnon-trading purposes®®:

Equity contracts

Interest rate contracts
Credit contracts

Foreign exchangecontracts
Commodity contracts

Total

Billions of yen

Six months ended September 30

2017 2018
¥ 128 ¥ (38)
(266) 40
128 (64)
3 (83)
8 22
¥ 1 ¥ (123)

Billions of yen

Three months ended September 30

2017 2018
¥ 78 ¥ 59
(177) 86
48 (17)
15 (65)
16 7
¥ (20) ¥ 70

(1) Eachderivative classificationincludes derivatives referencing multiple risk components. For example, interest rates contracts
include complexderivatives referencing interest rate risk as well as foreign exchange risk or other factors suchas prepayment
rates. Credit contracts include credit default swaps as well as derivatives referencing corporateand governmentsecurities.

(2) Includesnet gains (losses) on derivatives used for non-trading purposes which are notdesignated as fair value or net investment
hedges. Forthe sixand three months ended September 30,2017 and 2018, theseamounts have not beenseparately presented as

net gains (losses) for these non-trading derivatives were not significant.
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Fairvalue hedges

Nomuraissues Japanese Yen and foreign currency denominated debtwith both fixed and floating interest rates. Nomura
generally enters into swap agreements to convertfixed rate interest payments on its debtobligations to a floating rateand applies fair
value hedge accounting to these instruments.

Derivative financial instruments designated as fair value hedges are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value of the hedging
derivatives are recognized together with those of the hedged liabilities and hedged debt securities in the consolidated statements of
income within Interest expense and Revenue—Other, respectively.

The following table presents amounts included in the consolidated statements of income related to derivatives designated as fair
value hedges by typeofunderlyingderivative contract and the nature ofthehedged item.

Billions of yen

Six months ended September 30

2017 2018
Derivatives designatedas hedging instruments:
Interest rate contracts ¥ 4 ¥ 0
Foreign exchangecontracts 2 —
Total ¥ 6 ¥ 0
Hedged items:
Long-termborrowings ¥ 4) ¥ 0
Non-trading debt securities 2 —
Total ¥ 6) ¥ 0

Billions of yen
Three months ended September 30

2017 2018
Derivatives designatedas hedging instruments:
Interest ratecontracts ¥ 11 ¥ Q)
Foreign exchange contracts 1 —
Total ¥ 12 ¥ @)
Hedged items:
Long-termborrowings ¥ (11) ¥ 1
Non-trading debt securities Q) —
Total ¥ (12) ¥ 1

Net investment hedges

Nomura designates foreign currency forwards, etc., as hedges of certain subsidiaries with significantforeign exchange risks and
applies hedge accounting to these instruments. Accordingly, the effective hedging portion ofthe foreignexchange gains (losses)
arising from the derivative contracts and non-derivative financial products designated as hedges is recognized throughthe
consolidated statements of comprehensive income within Other comprehensive income (loss)—Change in cumulative translation
adjustments, netoftax. This is offsetby the foreign exchange adjustments arising fromconsolidation ofthe relevant foreign
subsidiaries.

The following table presents gains (losses) fromderivatives and non-derivatives designated as net investment hedges included in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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Billions of yen
Six months ended September 30
2017 2018

Hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange contracts ¥ 5 ¥ 3

Total ¥ 5 ¥ 3

Billions of yen

Three months ended September 30
2017 2018

Hedging instruments:
Foreign exchangecontracts ¥ 11 ¥ 0

Total ¥ 11 ¥ 0

(1) Theportion of gains (losses) representing theamount of hedge ineffectiveness and theamount excluded fromthe assessment of
hedge effectiveness are recognized within Revenue—Other in the consolidated statements ofincome. The amount of gains
(losses)was not significant during the sixmonths ended September 30, 2017 and 2018. The amount of gains (losses) was not
significant during the three months ended September 30, 2017 and 2018.

Derivatives containing credit risk related contingent features

Nomura enters into certain OTCderivatives and other agreements containing credit-risk-related contingent features. These
features would require Nomura to postadditional collateral or settle the instrumentuponoccurrence of a credit event, the most
common of which would be a downgrade in the Company’s long-termcredit rating.

The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that are in a liability positionas
of March 31,2018 was ¥406 billion with related collateral pledged of¥314 billion. In the event of a one-notch downgrade to
Nomura’s long-termcredit rating in effect as of March 31, 2018 the aggregate fair value of assets that would have been required tobe
posted as additional collateral or that would have been needed to settle the instruments immediately was ¥3billion.

The aggregatefair value ofall derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that are in a liability positionas
of September 30, 2018 was ¥455 billion with related collateral pledged of ¥352 billion. In the event ofa one-notch downgrade to
Nomura’s long-termcredit rating in effect as of September 30, 2018 the aggregate fair value of assets that would have been required
to be posted asadditional collateral or that would have been needed tosettle theinstruments immediately was ¥8 billion.

Credit derivatives

Credit derivatives are derivative instruments in which one or more oftheirunderlyings are related tothe credit risk ofa
specified entity (or group of entities) oran indexbased onthe credit risk of a group of entities thatexpose the seller of credit
protection to potential loss fromcredit risk related events specified in the contract.

Written credit derivatives are instruments or embedded features where Nomura assumes third party credit risk, either as
guarantor in a guarantee-type contract, or as the party that provides credit protection in an option-type contract, credit default swap, or
any other credit derivative contract.

Nomura enters into credit derivatives as partofits normal trading activities as both purchaser and seller of protection for credit
risk mitigation, proprietary trading positions and for client transactions.

The most significant type of credit derivatives used by Nomura are single-name credit default swaps where settlementofthe
derivative is basedon the credit risk ofasingle third party. Nomura also writes credit derivatives linked to the performance of credit
default indicesand issues other credit risk related portfolio products.

Nomurawould have to performundera credit derivative contract if a credit event as defined in the respective contractoccurs.
Typical credit events include bankruptcy, failure to pay and restructuring of obligations of the reference asset.
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Credit derivative contracts written by Nomura are either cash or physically settled. In cash-settled instruments, once paymentis
made upon an eventofa default, the contractusually terminates with no further payments due. Nomura generally has noright to
assume thereference assets ofthe counterparty in exchange for payment, nor does Nomura usually haveany directrecourse to the
actual issuers of the reference assets to recover the amountpaid. In physically settled contracts, upona default event, Nomura takes
delivery ofthe reference asset in return for payment of the full notionalamount of the contract.

Nomura actively monitorsand manages its credit derivative exposures. Where protectionis sold, risks may be mitigated by
purchasing credit protection fromotherthird parties either on identical underlying reference assets or on underlying referenceassets
with the same issuerwhich would be expectedto behave in a correlated fashion. The mostcommon formofrecourse provisionto
enable Nomurato recover fromthird parties any amounts paid under a written credit derivative is therefore notthroughthe derivative
itself but rather through the separate purchase of credit derivatives with identical or correlated underlyings.

Nomura quantifies the value of these purchased contracts in the following tables in the column titled “Purchased Credit
Protection.” These amounts represent purchased credit protection with identical underlyings to the written credit derivative contracts
which act as a hedge against Nomura’s exposure. To the extent Nomura is required to pay out under the written credit derivative, a
similar amount would generally become due to Nomura under the purchased hedge.

Credit derivatives have a stated notional amount which represents the maximum payment Nomura may be required to make
underthe contract. However, this is generally not a true representation of the amount Nomura will actually pay as in addition to
purchased credit protection, other risk mitigating factors reduce thelikelihood andamount ofany payment, including:

The probability of default: Nomura values credit derivatives taking intoaccountthe probability that the underlying reference
assetwill default and that Nomura will be required to make payments under the contract. Based on historical experience and
Nomura’s assessment of the market, Nomura believes that the probability that all reference assets on which Nomura provides
protection willdefault in a single period is remote. The disclosed notional amount, therefore, significantly overstates Nomura’s
realistic exposure on these contracts.

The recovery value on the underlying asset: In the caseofadefault, Nomura’s liability on a contractis limited to the difference
between the notionalamount andtherecovery value of the underlying referenceasset. While the recovery value on a defaulted asset
may be minimal, this does reduce amounts paid on these contracts.

Nomura holds assets as collateral in relation to written credit derivatives. However, these amounts do not enable Nomura to
recoverany amounts paid under the credit derivative but rather mitigate therisk of economic loss arising froma counterparty
defaulting againstamounts due to Nomura under the contract. Collateral requirements are determined on a counterparty level rather
than individual contract, andalso generally coverall types of derivative contracts rather than just credit derivatives.

The following tables present informationabout Nomura’s written credit derivatives and purchased credit protection with
identicalunderlyings as of March 31,2018 and September 30, 2018.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018

Maximum potential payout/Notional Notional
Years to maturity Purchased
Carrying value Lessthan 1to3 3to5 More than credit

(Asset) /Liability® Total 1 year years years 5 years protection
Single-name credit default swaps ¥ (123) ¥ 9,271 ¥ 2,106 ¥3,780 ¥2,262 ¥ 1,123 ¥ 6,975
Credit default indices (72) 4,842 864 1,300 2,045 633 3,052
Othercredit riskrelated portfolio products 3 306 230 52 17 7 200
Total ¥ (192) ¥14,419 ¥ 32200 ¥5132 ¥4,324 ¥ 1,763 ¥ 10,227
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Billions of yen
September 30, 2018

Maximum potential payout/Notional Notional
Years to maturity Purchased
Carrying value Lessthan 1to3 3to5 More than credit

(Asset) / Liability® Total 1 year years years 5 years protection
Single-name credit default swaps ¥ (64) ¥ 8,740 ¥ 1975 ¥3365 ¥2,390 ¥ 1010 ¥ 6414
Credit default indices (107) 5,180 548 1,271 2,688 673 3,738
Othercredit risk related portfolio products 14 244 168 21 52 3 175
Total ¥ (157) ¥14,164 ¥ 2691 ¥4,657 ¥5130 ¥ 1,686 ¥ 10,327

(1) Carrying value amountsare shownon agross basis prior to cash collateral or counterparty netting. Assetbalances represent
positive fairvalue amounts caused by tightening of credit spreads of underlyings since inception of the credit derivative
contracts.

The following tables present informationabout Nomura’s written credit derivatives by external credit rating of the underlying
asset. Ratingsare based on Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC (“S&P™), orif not rated by S&P, based on Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc. If ratings fromeither of these agencies are not available, theratings are based on Fitch Ratings Ltd. or Japan Credit
Rating Agency, Ltd. For credit default indices, the rating is determined by taking the weighted average of theexternal credit ratings
given foreach ofthe underlying reference entities comprising the portfolio or index

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018
Maximum potential payout/Notional

AAA AA A BBB BB Other _ Total
Single-name credit default swaps ¥A66 ¥028 ¥2,763 ¥3476 ¥1369 ¥ 269 ¥ 9,271
Credit default indices 135 44 1,779 1,949 736 199 4,842
Othercredit risk related portfolio products 16 — 4 68 118 100 306
Total ¥617 ¥972 ¥4546 ¥5493 ¥2,223 ¥ 568 ¥14,419

Billions of yen
September 30, 2018
Maximum potential payout/Notional

AAA  AA A BBB BB  Other®  Total
Single-name credit default swaps ¥494 ¥003 ¥2,411 ¥3,283 ¥1,341 ¥ 308 ¥ 8,740
Credit default indices 22 33 1697 2237 945 246 5,180
Othercredit risk related portfolio products —_ — 1 60 128 55 244
Total ¥516 ¥936 ¥4,109 ¥5580 ¥2414 ¥ 609 ¥14,164

(1) “Other”includescredit derivatives where the credit rating of the underlying reference assetis below investmentgrade orwhere
arating is unavailable.

Derivatives enteredinto in contemplation of sales of financial assets

Nomura enters into transactions which involve boththetransfer of financial assets to a third party counterparty anda separate
agreement with the same counterparty entered into in contemplation of the initial transfer through which Nomura retains substantially
all ofthe exposure to the economic return onthe transferred financial assets throughoutthe termofthe transaction. These transactions
primarily include sales of securities with bilateral OTCtotal return swaps or other derivative agreements which are in-substance total
return swaps. These transactions are accounted for as sales of the securities with thederivative accounted for separately ifthe criteria
for derecognition of thesecurities under ASC 860 are met. Where the derecognition criteria are not met, the transferand separate
derivative are accounted for as a single collateralized financing transaction which is reported within Long-term borrowings—Trading
balances ofsecured borrowings in the consolidated balance sheets.

As of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, there were no outstanding sales with total return swap or in-substance total
return swap transactions accounted for as sales rather than collateralized financing transactions.
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4. Rewvenue from services provided to customers
Rewenues by types of service

The following table presents revenueearned by Nomura fromproviding services to customers by relevant line itemin Nomura’s
consolidated statementofincome forthe sixand three months ended September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen

Six months ended September 30

2018
Commissions ¥ 154,239
Fees frominvestmentbanking 43,078
Asset management and portfolio service fees 125,721
Otherrevenue 29,008
Total ¥ 352,046

Millions of yen

Three months ended September 30

2018
Commissions ¥ 74,783
Fees frominvestmentbanking 19,119
Asset management and portfolio service fees 62,740
Otherrevenue 15,552
Total ¥ 172,194

Amountsreported in Commissions is principally recognized fromTrade executionand clearing services providedto the
customers, andabout half of which is reported in Retail Division and the remaining balance is mainly reported in Wholesale Division.
Feesfrominvestment banking is recognized fromFinancialadvisory services as wellas Underwriting and syndication services
provided tothe customers, and is predominantly reported in Wholesale Divisionand the remaining balance is mainly reported in
Retail Division. Asset management and portfolio service fees is recognized from Asset managementservices provided to the
customers, andis predominantly reported in Asset Management Division and theremaining balance is mainly reportedin Retail
Division. Other is primarily reported in Other segment.

The following table presents summary information regarding the key methodologies, assumptions and judgments used in
recognizing revenue foreach ofthe primary types of service providedto customers, including the nature of underlying performance
obligations within each typeof serviceand whether those performance obligations are satisfied at a pointin time or overa period of
time. For performance obligations recognized over time, information is also providedto explain the nature ofthe inputor output
method used to recognize revenue over time.

Type of service provided to Key revenue recognition policies, assumptions and
customers Overview of key services provided significant judgments
Trade execution andclearing « Buyingand selling ofsecurities ¢ Execution and clearing commissions recognized at a pointin
services on behalfofcustomers time, namely trade date.
¢ Clearing of securitiesand » Commissions recognized net of soft dollar credits provided to
derivatives on behalf of customers where Nomura is acting asagentin providing
customers investment research and similar services to the customer.

74



Type of service provided to
customers

Overview of key services provided

Key revenue recognition policies, assumptions and
significant judgments

Financialadvisory services

or transactions

* Provision offinancial advice

not in connectionwith a

specific forecasted transaction
or transactionssuchas general

corporateintelligence and
similar research

¢ Issuance of fairness opinions.

e Structuringcomplexfinancial

instruments for customers

Asset managementservices ¢ Managementoffunds,
investment trustsand other

investment vehicles

¢ Provision of investment
advisoryservices

* Distribution of fundunits

¢ Providing custodialand
administrative servicesto
customers

Underwriting and syndication ¢
services
on behalf of customers

¢ Distributing securitieson
behalf ofissuers

« Arrangingloan financing for

customers

« Syndicating loan financing on

behalf of customers

Provision of financial advice to
customers in connection with a
specific forecasted transaction

Underwriting of debt, equity

and other financial instruments

Fees contingent on the success of an underlying transaction
are variable considerationrecognized whenthe underlying
transactionhas beencompleted sinceonly at suchpoint is it
probable that a significantreversal of revenuewill not occur.

Retainerand milestonefees are recognized either overthe
period to which they relate orare deferred until
consummation of the underlying transaction dependingon
whetherthe underlying performanceobligation is satisfied at
a pointintime orovertime.

Judgment is required to make this determination with factors
influencing this determination including, butnotlimited to,
whetherthe fee is in connection with an engagement
designed toachieve a specific transaction or outcome for the
customer (suchas the purchase orsale ofa business), the
nature and extentof benefit to be provided to the customer
priorto,and in addition to such specific transactionor
outcome andthe fee structure for the engagement.

Retainerand milestone fees recognized over time are
normally recognized on a straight-line basis over the termof
the contract based on time elapsed.

Managementfees earned by Nomura in connection with
managing a fund, investmenttrust or other vehicle generally
recognized on a straight-line basis based on time elapsed.

Performance-based fees are variable consideration recognized
when the performance metric has been determined since only
atsuch point is it probable thata significant reversal of
revenue willnot occur.

Distribution fees are recognized at a point in time when the
fund units havebeensold to third party investors.

Custodialand administrative fees recognized on a straight-
line basis overtime based on time elapsed.

Underwriting and syndication revenues recognized at a point
in time when the underlyingtransactionis complete.

Commitment fees where drawn down of the facility is
deemed remote recognized onastraight-line basis over the
life ofthe facility based ontime elapsed.

Underwriting and syndication costs recognizedeitheras a
reductionofrevenue oron a gross basis dependingon
whether Nomura is acting as principal oragentforsuch
amounts.

Where revenue is recognized at a pointon time, payments of fees are typically received at the same time as when the
performance obligationis satisfied, or within several days or months after satisfying a performance obligation. In relation to revenue
recognized overtime, payments of fees are received are received every month, threemonths or six months.



The underlying contracts entered into by Nomura in orderto provide the services described above typically do nothave
significant financing components within the contracts either provided to or fromNomura. If such components did exist in a contract,
Nomura has made an accounting policy permitted by ASC 606 “Revenuefrom Contracts with Customers” (“ASC606™) not to adjust
for the effects ofa significant financing component where the financing is effectively fora period of one yearor less. Such contracts
also typically do not contain rights of return or similar features for the customer.

Nomura adopted ASU 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” by modified retrospectiveadoption from April 1,
2018. As aresult of revised principal-versus-agency guidance, Revenue—Commissions and Non-interestexpenses—Commissions and
floor brokerage were decreased by ¥8,640 million and ¥4,061 million as a change in the presentation of certain trade execution
revenues and associated costs froma gross to a net basis in the consolidated statement of income forthe sixmonth ended
September 30, 2018 and the three monthended September 30, 2018, respectively. Impact fromearlier recognition of certain asset
management distribution fees on adoptiondateis noted in Note 1. ““Basis of Accounting’ and.no material impact in consolidated
income statement for the sixmonths ended September 30, 2018.

Otherthan above, therewere no material impacts in our consolidated financial statements.

Customer contract balances

When Nomura orthe customer performs in accordance with the terms of a customer contract, a customer contract asset,
customer contractreceivable or customer contract liability is recognized in Nomura’s consolidated balance sheet.

A customer contractasset represents accrued revenue recognized by Nomura for completing or partially completing a
performance obligation, namely a right of Nomura to receive consideration for providing the service to the customer, which is
conditioned on something other thanthe passage oftime. A customer contractreceivable is an unconditional right of Nomura to
receive consideration in exchange for providing the service. Both customer contract assets and customer contract receivables are
reported in Receivables from Customers within Nomura’s consolidated balance sheet. A customer contract liability is any liability
recognized in connection with a customer contract, including obligations to providerefunds and obligations to provide a servicein the
future forwhich consideration has already beenreceived oris due to be received. Customer contractliabilities are reportedin
Payablesto Customers within Nomura’s consolidated balance sheet.

The following table presents the balances of customer contractreceivables, customer contract assets and customer contract
liabilities in scope of ASC 606 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” as of April 1, 2018 and September 30, 2018. The amount of
Customer contractassets as of April 1, 2018 and September 30,2018 was immaterial.

Millions of yen
April 1, 2018 September 30, 2018
Customer contractreceivables ¥ 68927 ¥ 78,346
Customer contract liabilities® 3,792 3,880

(1) Customercontractliabilities primarily representrise frominvestment advisory services recognized in connectionwith the term
of the contractbased on time elapsed.

The balance of contract liabilities as of April 1, 2018 were recognized as revenueforthe sixmonths ended September 30, 2018.
Nomura recognized ¥1,053 million and ¥307 million of revenue fromperformanceobligations satisfied in previous periods for the six
month ended September 30, 2018 and the three monthended September 30, 2018, respectively.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

As permitted by ASC 606, Nomura has chosen not to disclose informationaboutremaining performance obligations that have
original expected durations of one year or less as of September 30, 2018.

Nomura retains no significant transactions for which individual estimated contract period exceedingoneyear. In addition,
considerations arising fromcontracts with customers do not comprise any significant amount that is not included in transaction price.

Customer contractcosts

As permitted by ASC 340 ““Other Assets and Deferred Costs™”, Nomura has elected to expenseall costs to obtain customer
contracts where suchamounts would be otherwise be expensed within oneyearor less. Asaresult, the amountof deferred costs to
obtain or fulfill customer contracts as of April 1, 2018 and September 30, 2018 were not significant.
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5. Collateralizedtransactions:

Nomura enters into collateralized transactions, including reverse repurchase agreements, repurchase agreements, securities
borrowing transactions, securities lending transactions, other secured borrowings and similar transactions mainly to meet clients’
needs, finance trading inventory positions and obtain securities for settlements.

Reverse repurchase agreements, repurchase agreements, securities borrowing transactions and securities lending transactions are
typically documented under industry standard master netting agreements which reduce Nomura’s credit exposure to counterparties as
they permit the close-out and offsetof transactions and collateralamounts in the event of default of the counterparty. For certain
centrally-cleared reverserepurchase and repurchase agreements, the clearing or membership agreements entered into by Nomura
provide similar rights to Nomura in the eventof default of the relevant central clearing counterparty. In order to support the
enforceability ofthe close-outand offsetting rights within these agreements, Nomura generally seeks to obtainan external legal
opinion.

For certain types of counterparty and in certain jurisdictions, Nomura may enter into reverse repurchase agreements, repurchase
agreements, securities borrowing and securities lending transactions whichare not documented under a master netting agreement.
Similarly, even when these transactions are documented under such agreements, Nomura may not haveyet soughtevidence, or may
not be able to obtain evidence to determine with sufficient certainty that the close-outand offsetting rights are legally enforceable.
This may be the case where relevant local laws specifically prohibit such close-out and offsetting rights, or where local laws are
complex, ambiguousor silent on the enforceability of suchrights. This may include reverse repurchase agreements, repurchase
agreements, securities borrowing and securities lending transactions executed with certain foreign governments, agencies,
municipalities, central clearing counterparties, agent banks and pension funds.

Nomura considers the enforceability of a master netting agreement in determining how credit risk arising fromtransactions with
a specific counterparty is hedged, how counterparty credit exposures are calculated and applied to credit limits and the extent and
nature of collateral requirements fromthe counterparty.

In all of these transactions, Nomura either receives or provides collateral, including Japanese and non-Japanese government,
agency, mortgage-backed, bank and corporate debtsecurities and equities. In most cases, Nomura is permitted to use the securities
received to enter into repurchaseagreements, enter into securities lending transactions or to cover short positions with counterparties.
In repurchase andreverserepurchase agreements, the value of collateral typically exceeds theamount of cash transferred. Collateral is
generally in the formof securities. Securities borrowing transactions generally require Nomura to provide the counterparty with
collateralin the form of cash orother securities. For securities lending transactions, Nomura generally receives collateral in the form
of cash orothersecurities. Nomura monitors the market value of the securities either received fromor provided tothe counterparty.
Additional cash orsecurities are exchanged as necessary, to ensure that such transactions are adequately collateralized throughout the
life ofthe transactions.

Offsetting of certain collateralizedtransactions

Reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase agreements, securities borrowing and lending transactions with the same
counterparty documented under a master nettingagreementare offsetin the consolidated balance sheets wherethe specific criteria
defined by ASC 210-20 are met. These criteria include requirements around the maturity of the transactions, the underlying systems
onwhich the collateral is settled, associated banking arrangements andthe legal enforceability of close-out and offsetting rights under
the master netting agreement.

The following tables present information about offsetting of thesetransactions in the consolidated balance sheets, together with
the extent to which master netting agreements entered into with counterparties and central clearing parties permit additional offsetting
in the eventof counterparty default. Transactions which are notdocumented under a master nettingagreementorare documented
undera master netting agreement for which Nomura does nothave sufficientevidence of enforceability are notoffset in the following
tables.
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Billions of yen
March 31, 2018

Assets Liabilities
Reverse Securities Securities
repurchase borrowing Repurchase lending
agreements  transactions _agreements  transactions
Totalgross balance® ¥ 29975 ¥ 6681 ¥ 34880 ¥ 2130
Less: Amounts offset in the consolidated balance sheets® (20,121) (305)  (20,121) (305)

Totalnet amounts of reported onthe face of the consolidated balance sheets® ¥ 9854 ¥ 6,376 ¥ 14,759 ¥ 1,825
Less: Additionalamounts not offsetin the consolidated balance sheets®

Financial instruments and non-cash collateral (8,657) (5,247)  (11,886) (674)
Cash collateral (33) — 3 —
Net amount ¥ 1164 ¥ 1129 ¥ 2876 ¥ 1151

Billions of yen
September 30, 2018

Assets Liabilities
Reverse Securities Securities
repurchase borrowing Repurchase lending
agreements  transactions _agreements  transactions
Totalgross balance® ¥ 34128 ¥ 4489 ¥ 37361 ¥ 1691
Less: Amounts offset in the consolidated balance sheets® (18,715) — (18,715) —

Totalnet amounts of reported onthe face of the consolidated balance sheets® ¥ 15413 ¥ 4489 ¥ 18646 ¥ 1691
Less: Additionalamounts not offsetin the consolidated balance sheets®

Financial instruments and non-cash collateral (13,524) (3,515)  (13,576) (1,522)

Cash collateral 4 — — —
Netamount ¥ 1885 ¥ 974 ¥ 5070 ¥ 169
() Includesallrecognized balances irrespective of whether they are transacted under a master netting agreement or whether

&)

©)

)

Nomura has obtained sufficientevidence of enforceability of the master nettingagreement. Amounts include transactions
carried at fair value through election ofthe fair value option. As of March 31, 2018, the gross balance of reverse repurchase
agreements and repurchase agreements which were not transacted under master netting agreements or are documented under
master netting agreements for which Nomura has not yet obtained sufficient evidence of enforceability was ¥1,039 billion and
¥2,827 billion, respectively. As of March 31, 2018, the gross balance of securities borrowing transactions and securities lending
transactions which were not transacted under master netting agreements or are documented under master netting agreements for
which Nomura has not yet obtained sufficient evidence of enforceability was ¥1,049 billion and ¥177 billion, respectively. As of
September 30, 2018, the gross balance of reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase agreements which were nottransacted
under master netting agreements or are documented under master netting agreements for which Nomura has notyet obtained
sufficient evidence of enforceability was ¥923 billion and ¥4,133billion, respectively. As of September 30, 2018, the gross
balance of securities borrowing transactions and securities lending transactions which were nottransacted under master netting
agreements orare documented under master nettingagreements forwhich Nomura has notyet obtained sufficientevidence of
enforceability was ¥890 billion and ¥153 billion, respectively.

Represents amounts offset through counterparty netting under master netting and similar agreements for which Nomura has
obtained sufficientevidence of enforceability in accordancewith ASC 210-20. Amounts offsetincludetransactions carried at
fair value through election of the fair value option.

Reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowing transactions are reported within Collateralized agreements—Securities
purchased under agreements to resell and Collateralized agreements—Securities borrowed in the consolidated balance sheets,
respectively. Repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions are reported within Collateralized financing—Securities
sold under agreements to repurchaseand Collateralized financing—Securities loaned in the consolidated balance sheets,
respectively. Amounts reported under securities lending transactions also include transactions where Nomura lends securities
and receives securities thatcan be sold or pledged as collateral. Nomura recognizes thesecurities receivedat fair value and a
liability for the same amount, representing the obligation to return those securities. The liability is reported within Other
liabilities in the consolidated balancesheets.

Representsamounts which are not permitted to be offset on the face of the balance sheet in accordance with ASC 210-20 but
which provide Nomura with the right of offset in the eventof counterparty default. Amounts relating to agreements where
Nomura has not yetobtained sufficient evidence of enforceability of such offsetting rights are excluded.
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Maturity analysis of repurchase agreements andsecurities lending transactions

The following table presentsan analysis of the total carrying value of liabilities recognized in the consolidated balance sheets
for repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions by remaining contractual maturity ofthe agreement as of March 31,
2018 and September 30, 2018. Amounts reported are shown priorto counterparty netting in accordance with ASC 210-20.

Billions of yen

March 31, 2018

Overnight Up to 30-90 Greater

and open® 30 days days 90 days — 1 year than 1 year Total
Repurchaseagreements ¥ 13237 ¥17,789 ¥2,099 ¥ 1415 ¥ 340 ¥34,880
Securities lending transactions 1,495 227 182 156 70 2,130
Total gross recognized liabilities® ¥ 14,732 ¥18,016 ¥2,281 ¥ 1571 ¥ 410 ¥37,010

Billions of yen
September 30, 2018

Overnight Up to 30-90 Greater

and open® 30days days 90 days—1year thanlyear  Total
Repurchaseagreements ¥ 14,056 ¥18,495 ¥2587 ¥ 1,880 ¥ 343 ¥37,361
Securities lendingtransactions 1,086 212 145 178 70 1,691
Total gross recognized liabilities® ¥ 15142 ¥18,707 ¥2,732 ¥ 2,058 ¥ 413 ¥39,052

(1)
)

Open transactions do not havean explicit contractual maturity date andare terminable on demand by Nomura or the

counterparty.

Repurchaseagreements and securities lending transactions are reported within Collateralized financing—Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase and Collateralized financing—Securities loaned in the consolidated balance sheets, respectively.
Amounts reported for securities lending transactions also include transactions where Nomura lends securities and receives
securitiesthatcan be sold or pledged as collateral. Nomura recognizes the securities received at fair value and a liability for the
same amount, representing the obligation to returnthose securities. The liability is reportedwithin Other liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets. The total gross recognized liabilities reported for repurchase agreements andsecurities lending
transactions are consistentwith the total gross balances reported in the offsetting disclosures above.
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Securitiestransferredin repurchase agreements andsecurities lending transactions

The following table presentsan analysis of the total carrying value of liabilities recognized in the consolidated balance sheets
for repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions by class of securities transferred by Nomura to counterparties as of
March 31,2018 and September 30,2018. Amounts reported are shown prior to counterparty netting in accordance with ASC 210-20.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018

Securities

Repurchase lending

agreements  transactions Total
Equities and convertible securities ¥ 187 ¥ 1556 ¥ 1,743
Japanese government, agency and municipal securities 980 306 1,286
Foreign government, agency and municipal securities 27,818 135 27,953
Bank and corporate debt securities 2,334 34 2,368
Commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”) 2 — 2
Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS™)® 3421 — 3421
Collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”) and other 130 — 130
Investment trust funds and other 8 99 107
Total gross recognized liabilities® ¥ 34880 ¥ 2,130 ¥37,010

Billions of yen
September 30, 2018

Securities

Repurchase lending

agreements  transactions Total
Equities and convertible securities ¥ 109 ¥ 1,369 ¥ 1,478
Japanese government, agency and municipal securities 1,407 — 1407
Foreign government, agency and municipal securities 28,389 34 28423
Bank and corporate debt securities 2,455 91 2,546
Commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”) 14 — 14
Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS™)® 4,863 — 4,863
Collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”) and other 109 — 109
Investment trust funds and other 15 197 212
Total gross recognized liabilities® ¥ 37,361 ¥ 1,691 ¥39,052

(1) Includes¥3,351billion as of March 31, 2018 and ¥4,752 billion as of September 30, 2018 of U.S. governmentsponsored agency
mortgage pass-throughsecuritiesand collateralized mortgage obligations

(2) Repurchaseagreementsand securities lending transactions are reported within Collateralized financing—Securities sold under
agreementsto repurchase and Collateralized financing—Securities loaned in the consolidated balance sheets, respectively.
Amounts reported for securities lending transactions also include transactions where Nomura lends securities and receives
securitiesthatcan be sold or pledged as collateral. Nomura recognizes the securities receivedat fair value and a liability for the
same amount, representing the obligation to returnthose securities. The liability is reported within Other liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets. The total gross recognized liabilities reported for repurchase agreements and securities lending
transactions are consistentwith the total gross balances reported in the offsetting disclosures above.

Collateral receivedby Nomura

The following table presents thefair value of securities received as collateral, securities borrowed with collateraland securities
borrowed without collateral, which Nomura is permitted to sell or repledge, and the portionthathas been sold or repledged as of
March 31,2018 and September 30, 2018.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018

The fair value of securities received as collateral, securities borrowed as collateraland
securities borrowed without collateral where Nomura is permitted by contract or customto

sellor repledge the securities ¥ 48,434 ¥ 49,097
The portion ofthe above that has beensold (reported within Trading liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets) orrepledged 40,420 39,742
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Collateral pledged by Nomura

Nomura pledges firm-owned securities to collateralize repurchase transactions, other secured financings and derivative
transactions. Pledged securities that can be sold or repledged by the transferee, including Gensaki Repo transactions, are reported in
parentheses as Securities pledged as collateral within Trading assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

The following table presents the carryingamounts of financial assets recognized in the consolidated balance sheets whichhave
been pledgedas collateral, primarily to stock exchanges and clearing organizations, withoutallowing the secured party the right to sell
or repledge themby type of asset as of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen
March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018

Trading assets:

Equities and convertible securities ¥ 156,429 ¥ 155,946
Government and government agency securities 956,089 1,258,903
Bank and corporate debt securities 65,864 94,324
Commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”) 1 1
Residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”) 2,618,336 3,627,573
Collateralized debt obligations (“CDO”) and other® 30,497 7,175
Investment trust funds and other 7,689 13,544

¥ 3,834,905 ¥ 5,057,466

Non-trading debt securities ¥ 23,566 ¥ 1,032
Investments in and advances to affiliated companies ¥ 12,042 ¥ 12,506

(1) Includes CLOs and ABS suchas those secured on credit card loans, auto loans and student loans.

The following table presents the carryingamount of financial and non-financial assets recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets, otherthanthose disclosed above, which are subject to lien as of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen
March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018

Loans and receivables ¥ 15573 ¥ 28,442
Trading assets 1,456,140 1,451,973
Office buildings, land, equipmentand facilities 5,585 144
Non-trading debt securities 192,046 142,277
Other 112 69

¥ 1,669,456 ¥ 1,622,905

Assetsin the above table were primarily pledged for secured borrowings, including other secured borrowings, collateralized
borrowings of consolidated VIEs, trading balances of secured borrowings, and derivative transactions.
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6. Non-trading securities:

As Nomuradisposed ofthe interest in its insurance subsidiary, thereare no unrealized gains and losses of non-trading securities
recognized in other comprehensiveincome as of March 31 and September 30, 2018.

Forthe six months ended September 30, 2017, non-trading securities of ¥14,398 million were disposed of resultingin
¥393 million of realized gains and¥365 million of realized losses. Total proceeds received fromthese disposals were ¥14,426 million.

Forthe three months ended September 30, 2017, non-trading securities of ¥8,683 million were disposed of resultingin
¥274 million of realized gains and¥365 million of realized losses. Total proceeds received fromthese disposals were ¥8,592 million.

Related gains and losses were computed using theaverage method. Forthe sixmonths ended September 30,2017 and
September 30, 2018, there were no transfers of non-trading securities to trading assets.

Where the fair value of non-trading securities held by the insurance subsidiary has declined below amortized cost, theseare
assessed to determine whether thedeclinein fair value is other-than-temporary in nature. Nomura considers quantitativeand
qualitative factors including the length of time and extent to which fair value has been less thanamortized cost, the financial condition
and near-termprospects of the issuerand Nomura’s intentand ability to hold the securities fora period of time sufficient to allow for
any anticipated recovery in fair value. If an other-than-temporary impairment loss exists, for equity securities, the security is written
down to fairvalue, with the entire difference between fair value and amortized cost recognized within Revenue—Other in the
consolidated statements ofincome. For debt securities, an other-than-temporary impairment loss is also recognized within Revenue—
Other in the consolidated statements of income if Nomura intends to sell the debt security or it is more likely than not thatNomura
will be required to sellthe debt security beforerecovery of amortized cost. IfNomura does not intend to sellthe debt security and it is
not more likely than not that Nomura will be required to sell the debt security, only thecredit loss componentofan other-than-
temporary impairment loss is recognized through earnings and any non-credit loss component recognized within Other comprehensive
income (loss).

Forthe six and three months ended September 30, 2017, other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized for the certain non-
trading equity securities were ¥19million and ¥19million. The amount of credit loss component of other-than-temporary impairment
losses recognized for the certain non-trading debtsecurities were ¥29million and ¥nil. Other-than-temporary impairment losses related
to the non-credit loss component recognized for the certain non-trading debtsecurities within Other comprehensive income (loss)
were not significant. Other gross unrealized losses of non-trading securities were considered temporary.
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7. Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities:
Securitizations

Nomura utilizes special purpose entities (“SPEs ") to securitize commercial and residential mortgage loans, governmentagency
and corporatesecurities and other types of financial assets. Those SPEs are incorporated as stock companies, Tokumei kumiai (silent
partnerships), Cayman special purpose companies (“SPCs”) or trust accounts. Nomura’s involvement with SPEs includes structuring
SPEs, underwriting, distributingandselling debt instruments and beneficial interests issued by SPEs to investors. Nomura accounts
for the transfer of financial assets in accordance with ASC 860. This statementrequires that Nomura accounts for the transfer of
financialassets as a sale when Nomura relinquishes control over the assets. ASC 860 deems controlto be relinquished whenthe
following conditions are met: (a) the assets have been isolated fromthe transferor (evenin bankruptcy or other receivership), (b) the
transfereehasthe rightto pledge orexchangethe assets received, or if the transferee is an entity whose sole purpose is to engage in
securitization or asset-backed financing activities, the holders of its beneficial interests have the right to pledge orexchange the
beneficial interests, and (c) the transferor has notmaintained effective control over the transferred assets. Nomura may retain an
interest in the financial assets, including residual interests in the SPEs. Any such interests are accounted for at fair value and reported
within Tradingassets in Nomura’s consolidated balance sheets, with the change in fair value reported within Revenue—Netgain on
trading. Fairvalue for retained interests in securitized financial assets is determined by using observable prices; orin cases where
observable prices are not available for certain retained interests, Nomura estimates fair value based on the presentvalue of expected
future cash flows using its best estimates of the key assumptions, including forecasted credit losses, prepayment rates, forward yield
curves anddiscountrates commensurate with the risks involved. Nomura may also enter into derivative transactions in relation to the
assetstransferred toan SPE.

As notedabove, Nomura may have continuing involvement with SPEs to which Nomura transferred assets. Forthe sixand three
months ended September 30, 2017, Nomura received cash proceeds from SPEs in new securitizations of ¥56 billion and ¥24 billion,
respectively, and theassociated gain (loss) on sale was not significant. For the sixand three months ended September 30, 2018,
Nomura received cash proceeds from SPES in new securitizations of¥121 billion and ¥69 billion, respectively, and the associated gain
(loss) on sale was not significant. For the sixand three months ended September 30, 2017, Nomura received debtsecurities issued by
these SPEs with an initial fair value of¥842 billion and ¥433 billion, respectively, and cashinflows fromthird parties onthe sale of
those debtsecurities of ¥503 billion and ¥235 billion, respectively. For the sixand three months ended September 30, 2018, Nomura
received debtsecurities issued by these SPEs with an initial fair value of¥846 billion and ¥368 billion, respectively, andcash inflows
fromthird parties on the sale ofthose debt securities of ¥674 billion and ¥257 billion, respectively. The cumulative balance of
financial assets transferred to SPEs with which Nomura has continuing involvement was ¥4,918 billion and ¥5,081 billion as of
March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively. Nomura’s retained interests were ¥288 billion and ¥260 billion, as of March 31,
2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively. Forthe sixand three months ended September 30,2017, Nomura received cash flows of
¥34 billion and ¥19 billion, respectively, fromthe SPEs on the retained interests held in the SPEs. Forthe sixand three months ended
September 30,2018, Nomura received cashflows of¥10billion and ¥5billion, respectively, fromthe SPEs on the retained interests
held in the SPEs.

Nomura did not provide financial support to SPEs beyond its contractual obligations as of March 31, 2018 and September 30,
2018.

83



The following tables present the fair value of retained interests which Nomura has continuing involvementin SPEs and their
classification in the fair value hierarchy, categorized by the type of transferred assets.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018

Investment
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total grade  Other
Government, agency and municipal securities ¥ — ¥ 288 ¥ — ¥288 ¥ 288¥ O
Bank and corporate debt securities — — — — —_ —
CMBS and RMBS — — 0 0 0 0
Total ¥ — ¥ 288 ¥ 0 ¥288 ¥ 288¥ O
Billions of yen
September 30, 2018
Investment
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total grade  Other
Government, agency and municipal securities ¥ — ¥ 260 ¥ — ¥260 ¥ 260¥ O
Bank and corporate debt securities — — — — —_ -
CMBS and RMBS — — 0 0 0 0
Total ¥ — ¥ 260 ¥ 0 ¥260 ¥ 260¥ 0

As of September 30, 2018, predominantly all of the retained interests held by Nomura were valued using observable prices.

The following table presents thetype and carrying value of financial assets included within Trading assets which have been
transferredto SPEs but whichdo notmeet the criteria for derecognitionunder ASC 860. These transfers are accounted foras secured
financing transactions and generally reported within Long-term borrowings. The assets are pledged as collateral of the associated
liabilities and cannotbe removed unilaterally by Nomura andthe liabilities are non-recourse to Nomura.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018

Assets
Trading assets
Equities ¥ 1 ¥ —
Debt securities 20 5
CMBS and RMBS — —
Loans 1 14
Total ¥ 22 ¥ 19
Liabilities
Long-termborrowings ¥ 21 ¥ 19
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Variable Interest Entities

In the normal course ofbusiness, Nomura acts as a transferor of financial assets to VIEs, and underwriter, distributor, and seller
of repackaged financial instruments issued by VIESs in connection with its securitizationand equity derivative activities. Nomura
retains, purchases andsells variable interests in VIES in connectionwith its market-making, investingand structuring activities.

If Nomura has an interestin a VIE that provides Nomura with control over the most significant activities of the VIE and the
right to receive benefits or the obligationto absorb losses thatcould be significant to the VIE, Nomura is the primary beneficiary of
the VIE and must consolidate theentity, provided that Nomura does not meet separatetests confirming thatit is acting as a fiduciary
for otherinterestholders. Nomura’s consolidated VIEs include those that were created to market structured securities to investors by
repackaging corporate convertible securities, mortgages and mortgage-backed securities. Certain VIEs used in connection with
Nomura’s aircraft leasing business as well as other purposes are consolidated. Nomura also consolidates certain investment funds,
which are VIEs, and forwhich Nomura is the primary beneficiary.

The power to make the most significant decisions may take a number of different forms in different types of VIEs. For
transactions such as securitizations, investment funds, and CDOs, Nomura considers collateral management and servicing to represent
the power to make the most significant decisions. Accordingly, Nomura does notconsolidate such types of VIEs for which it does not
actas collateral manager or servicer unless Nomura has the right toreplace the collateral manager or servicer or to require liquidation
of the entity.

Formany transactions, suchas where VIEs are used for re-securitizations of residential mortgage-backed securities, there are no
significant economic decisions made on an ongoing basisand no single investor has the unilateral ability to liquidate the VIE. In these
cases, Nomura focuses its analysis ondecisions made priorto the initial closing of the transaction, and considers factors such as the
nature of the underlying assets held by the VIE, the involvement of third party investors in the designofthe VIE, the size of initial
third party investment and the amount and level of any subordination of beneficial interests issued by the VIE which will be held by
Nomura and third party investors. Nomura has sponsored numerous re-securitization transactions and in many cases has determined
that it is not the primary beneficiary on the basis that control over the most significant decisions relating to these entities are shared
with third party investors. In some cases, however, Nomura has consolidated such VIEs, for example, where it was determined that
third party investors were notinvolvedin the design of the VIEs, including where thesize of third party investment was not significant
atinception ofthe transaction.
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The following table presents the classification of consolidated VIES” assets and liabilities in these consolidated financial
statements. Most oftheseassets and liabilities are related to consolidated SPEs which securitize corporate convertible securities,
mortgages and mortgage-backed securities. The assets ofa consolidated VIE may only be usedto settle obligations of that VIE.
Creditors do nottypically have any recourse to Nomura beyondthe assets held in the VIEs.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018

Consolidated VIE assets

Cashand cash equivalents ¥ 23 ¥ 18
Trading assets
Equities 712 698
Debt securities 436 449
CMBS and RMBS 4 84
Investment trust fundsand other 12 9
Derivatives 20 18
Private equity investments 2 1
Office buildings, land, equipmentand facilities 25 15
Other 66 62
Total ¥ 1,300 ¥ 1,354

Consolidated VIE liabilities
Trading liabilities

Derivatives ¥ 22 ¥ 21
Borrowings

Short-termborrowings 124 149

Long-termborrowings 829 804

Other 2 2

Total ¥ 977 ¥ 976

Nomura continuously reassesses its initial evaluation of whether it is the primary beneficiary ofa VIE based oncurrent facts and
circumstancesas long as it has any continuing involvement with the VIE. This determinationis based uponan analysis of the design
of the VIE, including the VIE’s structure and activities, the power to make significant economic decisions held by Nomura and by
other parties, and the variable interests owned by Nomura and other parties.

Nomuraalso holds variable interests in VIEsS where Nomura is not the primary beneficiary. Nomura’s variable interests in such
VIEs include seniorand subordinated debt, residual interests, and equity interests associated with commercial and residential
mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securitizations and structured financings, equity interests in VIEs which were formed
primarily to acquire high yield leveraged loans and other lower investment grade debtobligations, residual interests in operating leases
for aircraft held by VIEs, and loans and investments in VIES that acquire operating businesses.
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The following tables present the carryingamount of variable interests of unconsolidated VIEs and maximum exposure to loss
associated with these variable interests. Maximumexposure to loss does not reflect Nomura’s estimate of the actual losses that could
result fromadverse changes, nor does it reflect the economic hedges Nomura enters into toreduce its exposure. The risks associated
with VIEs in which Nomura is involved are limited to the amount recorded in the consolidated balance sheets, the amountof
commitments and financial guarantees and the notionalamount of the derivative instruments. Nomura believes the notionalamount of
derivative instruments generally exceeds theamount of actual risk.

Trading assets and liabilities
Equities
Debt securities
CMBS and RMBS
Investment trust funds and other
Derivatives
Private equity investments
Loans
Other
Commitments to extend credit and other guarantees

Total

Trading assets and liabilities
Equities
Debt securities
CMBS and RMBS
Investment trust funds and other
Derivatives
Private equity investments
Loans
Other
Commitments to extend credit and other guarantees

Total

Billions of yen
March 31, 2018

Carrying amountof  Maximum exposure
variable interests to loss to

Assets Liabilities unconsolidated VIEs

¥ 3B Y — ¥ 35
110 — 110
2,775 — 2,775
174 — 174

13 — 13
455 — 455
17 — 17
— — 7
¥ 3579 ¥ — ¥ 3,650

Billions of yen
September 30, 2018

Carrying amount of
variable interests

Maximum exposure
to loss to
Assets Liabilities unconsolidated VIEs

¥ 2 ¥ — ¥ 26
111 — 111
3,617 — 3,617
179 — 179
13 — 13
513 — 513
13 — 13

— — 109

¥ 4472 ¥ — ¥ 4,581
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8. Financing receivables:

In the normal course of business, Nomura extends financing to clients primarily in the form of loans and collateralized
agreements suchas reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowing transactions. These financing receivables are recognized
as assetsonNomura’s consolidated balance sheets and providea contractual right to receive money either on demandoron future
fixed ordeterminable dates.

Collateralized agreements

Collateralized agreements consistof reverse repurchase agreements reported as Securities purchased under agreements to resell
and securities borrowing transactions reportedas Securities borrowed in the consolidated balance sheets, including those executed
under Gensaki Repo agreements. Reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowing transactions principally involvethe buying
of governmentand governmentagency securities fromcustomers under agreements that also require Nomura to resell these securities
to thosecustomers, or borrowing these securities with cash collateral. Nomura monitors the value of the underlying securities on a
daily basis to therelated receivables, including accrued interest, and requests or returns additional collateral when appropriate.
Reverse repurchase agreements are generally recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at the amount for which the securities were
originally acquired with applicable accrued interest. Securities borrowing transactions are generally recognized in the consolidated
balance sheetsat the amountof cash collateraladvanced. No allowancefor credit losses is generally recognized against these
transactions due to thestrictcollateralization requirements.

Loansreceivable

The key types of loans receivable recognized by Nomura are loans at banks, short-termsecured margin loans, inter-bank money
market loans and corporate loans.

Loans at banks include both retailand commercial secured and unsecured loans extended by licensed banking entities within
Nomura such as TheNomura Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. and Nomura Bank International plc. For both retailand commercial loans
securedby real estate or securities, Nomura is exposedto therisk ofa decline in the value ofthe underlying collateral. Loans at banks
also include unsecured commercial loans provided to investment banking clients for relationship purposes. Nomura is exposedto risk
of default of the counterparty, although these counterparties usually have high credit ratings. Where loans are secured by guarantees,
Nomurais also exposedto the risk of default by the guarantor.

Short-termsecured margin loans are loans providedto clients in connection with securities brokerage business. These loans
provide fundingfor clients in order to purchase securities. Nomura requests initial margin in the form ofacceptable collateral
securities or deposits againstthese loans and holds the purchased securities as collateral through the life of the loans. Ifthe value of
the securities declines by more than specified amounts, Nomura can make additional margin calls in order to maintain a specified ratio
of loan-to-value (“LTV”) ratio. For these reasons, the risk to Nomura of providing these loans is limited.

Inter-bank money market loans are loans tofinancial institutions in the inter-bank money market, where overnightand intra-day
financingsare traded through money market dealers. The risk to Nomura of making these loans is not significant as only qualified
financial institutions can participate in these markets andthese loans are usually overnightorshort-termin nature.

Corporate loans are primarily commercial loans provided to corporate clients extended by non-licensed banking entities within
Nomura. Corporate loansinclude loans secured by real estate or securities, as well as unsecured commercial loans providedto
investment banking clients for relationship purposes. The riskto Nomura of making these loans is similar to those risks arisingfrom
commercial loans reportedin loans at banks.

In addition tothe loans above, Nomura has advances to affiliated companies which are loans providedto related parties of
Nomura. As these loans are generally not secured, Nomura is exposed to the risk of default of the counterparty.
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The following tables present a summary of loans receivable reported within Loans receivable or Investments in and advances to
affiliated companies in the consolidated balance sheets by portfolio segment.

Millions of yen
March 31, 2018

Carried at Carried at
amortizd cost fair value® Total

Loans receivable

Loans at banks ¥ 491559 ¥ — ¥ 491559

Short-termsecured margin loans 429,075 — 429,075

Inter-bank money market loans 1,385 — 1,385

Corporate loans 986,347 554,137 1,540,484
Totalloans receivable ¥ 1908,366 ¥ 554,137 ¥ 2,462,503
Advances to affiliated companies — — —
Total ¥ 1908,366 ¥ 554,137 ¥ 2,462,503

Millions of yen
September 30, 2018

Carried at Carried at
amortizd cost fair value® Total

Loans receivable

Loans at banks ¥ 505844 ¥ — ¥ 505,844

Short-termsecured margin loans 335,607 5,210 340,817

Inter-bank money market loans 2,048 — 2,048

Corporate loans 862,736 596,654 1,459,390
Totalloans receivable ¥ 1,706,235 ¥ 601,864 ¥ 2,308,099
Advances to affiliated companies — — —
Total ¥ 1,706,235 ¥ 601,864 ¥ 2,308,099

(1) Includesloansreceivable and loancommitments carried at fair value through election of the fair value option.

There were no significantpurchases norsales of loans receivable duringthesixand the three months ended September 30, 2017.
During the same period, there were no significant reclassifications of loans receivable to trading assets.

There were no significantpurchases norsales of loans receivable during thesixand the three months ended September 30, 2018.
During the same period, there were no significant reclassifications of loans receivable to trading assets.

Allowance for credit losses

Managementestablishes an allowance for credit losses againstloans carried at amortized cost which reflects management’s best
estimate of probable losses incurred. The allowance for credit losses againstloans, which is reported in the consolidated balance
sheetswithin Allowance for doubtful accounts, comprises two components:

*  Aspecificcomponent for loans which havebeenindividually evaluated for impairment; and

* Ageneralcomponent for loans which, while not individually evaluated for impairment, have beencollectively evaluated
for impairment based on historical loss experience.

The specific componentofthe allowance reflects probable losses incurred within loans which havebeenindividually evaluated
for impairment. A loan is defined as being impaired when, based on currentinformation and events, it is probable thatallamounts due
accordingto the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected. Factors considered by management in determining
impairment include an assessmentofthe ability of borrowers to pay by considering various factors such asthe nature ofthe loan, prior
credit loss experience, current economic conditions, the current financial situation ofthe borrower andthefair value of any underlying
collateral. Loans thatexperience insignificant paymentdelays or insignificant payment shortfalls are not classified as impaired.
Impairment is measured on aloan by loan basis by adjusting the carryingvalue ofthe loan to either the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interestrate, the loan’s observable market price, or the fair value ofthe collateral if
the loan is collateral dependent.
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The general componentofthe allowance is for loans not individually evaluated for impairment and includes judgment about
collectability based on available information at the balance sheet date and the uncertainties inherentin those underlying assumptions.
The allowance is based on historical loss experienceadjusted for qualitative factors suchas current economic conditions.

While management has based its estimate of the allowance for credit losses againstloans onthe best informationavailable,
future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary as a result of changes in the economic environmentor variances betweenactual
results andoriginal assumptions.

Loans are charged-off when Nomura determines that the loans are uncollectible. This determination is based on factors suchas
the occurrence of significant changes in the borrower’s financial position such that the borrower canno longer pay the obligationor
that the proceeds fromcollateral will not be sufficient to pay theloans.

The following tables present changes in the total allowance for credit losses for the sixand three months ended September 30,
2017 and 2018.

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30, 2017
Allowance for credit losses against loans

Short-term  Inter-bank Allowance for Total
secured money Advances to receivables allowance for
Loans margin market Corporate affiliated other than doubtful
at banks loans loans loans companies  Subtotal loans accounts
Opening balance ¥ 968 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 473 ¥ 0 ¥ 1441 ¥ 2,110 ¥ 3,551
Provision forlosses 101 — — (26) — 75 292 367
Charge-offs — — — — 0 0 — 0
Other® — — — 3 — 3 (135) (132)
Ending balance ¥ 1,069 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 450 ¥ — ¥ 1519 ¥ 2,267 ¥ 3,786

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30, 2018
Allowance for credit losses against loans

Short-term  Inter-bank Allowance for Total
secured money Advances to receivables allowance for

Loans margin market Corporate affiliated other than doubtful

at banks loans loans loans companies  Subtotal loans accounts
Opening balance ¥ 1,140 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 417 ¥ — ¥ 1557 ¥ 1957 ¥ 3,514
Provision forlosses 1 360 — — — 361 23 384
Charge-offs (94) — — 0 — (94) 118 24
Other® 0 12 — 28 — 40 2 42
Ending balance ¥ 1,047 ¥ 372 ¥ — ¥ 445 ¥ — ¥ 1864 ¥ 2,100 ¥ 3,964

Millions of yen
Three months ended September 30, 2017
Allowance for credit losses against loans

Short-term  Inter-bank Allowance for Total
secured money Advances to receivables allowance for
Loans margin market Corporate affiliated other than doubtful
at banks loans loans loans companies  Subtotal loans accounts
Opening balance ¥ 969 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 447 ¥ 0 ¥ 1416 ¥ 2,190 ¥ 3,606
Provision forlosses 100 — — 1 — 101 200 301
Charge-offs — — — — 0 0 — 0
Other® — — — 2 — 2 (123) (121)
Ending balance ¥ 1069 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 450 ¥ — ¥ 1519 ¥ 2,267 ¥ 3,786
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Millions of yen
Three months ended September 30, 2018
Allowance for credit losses against loans

Short-term  Inter-bank Allowance for Total
secured money Advances to receivables allowance for

Loans margin market Corporate affiliated other than doubtful

at banks loans loans loans companies  Subtotal loans accounts
Opening balance ¥ 1,141 ¥ 218 ¥ — ¥ 434 ¥ — ¥ 1793 ¥ 1,926 ¥ 3,719
Provision for losses — 138 — 0 — 138 12 150
Charge-offs (94) — — 0 — (94) 159 65
Other® 0 16 — 11 — 27 3 30
Ending balance ¥ 1,047 ¥ 372 ¥ — ¥ 445 ¥ — ¥ 1864 ¥ 2,100 ¥ 3,964

(1) Includesthe effectofforeign exchange movements.

The following tables present theallowance for credit losses against loans and loans by impairment methodology and type of
loans as of March 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen
March 31, 2018

Short-term Inter-bank
Loans at  secured margin money Corporate
banks loans market loans loans Total
Allowance by impairment methodology
Evaluated individually ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 417 ¥ 417
Evaluated collectively 1,140 — — 0 1,140
Totalallowance for credit losses ¥ 1140 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 417 ¥ 1557
Loans by impairment methodology
Evaluated individually ¥ 2800 ¥ 162,017 ¥ 1,385 ¥978,501 ¥1,144,703
Evaluated collectively 488,759 267,058 — 7,846 763,663
Totalloans ¥491559 ¥ 429,075 ¥ 1,385 ¥986,347 ¥1,908,366
Millions of yen
September 30, 2018
Short-term Inter-bank
Loans at  secured margin money Corporate
banks loans market loans loans Total
Allowance by impairment methodology
Evaluated individually ¥ — ¥ 372 ¥ — ¥ 445 ¥ 817
Evaluated collectively 1,047 — — — 1,047
Totalallowance forcredit losses ¥ 1047 ¥ 372 ¥ — ¥ 445 ¥ 1864

Loans by impairment methodology
Evaluated individually ¥ 4311 ¥ 154707 ¥ 2,048 ¥854,291 ¥1,015,357
Evaluated collectively 501,533 180,900 — 8,445 690,878

Total loans ¥505,844 ¥ 335607 ¥ 2,048 ¥862,736 ¥1,706,235
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Nonaccrualand past due loans

Loans which are individually evaluated as impaired are assessed for nonaccrual status in accordance with Nomura’s policy.
When itis determined to suspend interest accrual as a result of an assessment, any accrued but unpaid interest is reversed. Loans are
generally only returned to an accrual status if the loan is brought contractually current, i.e. all overdue principaland interest amounts
are paid. In limited circumstances, a loan which has notbeen brought contractually current willalso be returnedto an accrual status if
all principaland interestamounts contractually dueare reasonably assured of repayment within a reasonable period of time or there
has been asustained period of repaymentperformance by the borrower.

As of March 31, 2018, the amount of loans which were on a nonaccrual status was not significant. The amountofloans which
were 90 days pastdue was notsignificant.

As of September 30, 2018, the amount of loans which were on a nonaccrual status was not significant. Theamount of loans
which were 90 days past duewas not significant.

Once aloan is impaired and placed onanonaccrual status, interest income is subsequently recognized using the cash basis
method.

Loan impairment andtroubled debt restructurings

In the ordinary course of business, Nomura may choose to recognize impairment and also restructure a loan classified as held
for investment either because of financial difficulties of the borrower, or simply as a result of market conditions or relationship
reasons. A troubled debtrestructuring (“TDR”) occurs when Nomura (as lender) foreconomic or legal reasons related to the
borrower’s financial difficulties grantsa concessionto the borrower that Nomura would not otherwise consider.

Any loan beingrestructured undera TDRwill generally already be identified as impaired with an applicable allowance for
credit losses recognized. If not (for example if the loan is collectively assessed for impairment with other loans), therestructuring of
the loan undera TDRwill immediately result in the loan as being classified as impaired. An impairment loss for a loan restructuring
undera TDRwhich only involves modification of the loan’s terms (rather than receipt of assets in full or partial settlement) is
calculated in the same way as any otherimpaired loan. Assets received in full or partial satisfaction ofaloan in a TDR are recognized
at fair value.

As of March 31, 2018, the amount of loans which were classified as impaired but againstwhich no allowance for credit losses
had been recognized was not significant. For impaired loans with a related allowance, the amountof recorded investment, the total
unpaid principal balance andthe related allowance was notsignificant.

As of September 30, 2018, the amount of loans which were classified as impaired but againstwhich no allowance for credit
losses had beenrecognized was notsignificant. For impaired loans with a related allowance, the amountofrecorded investment, the
totalunpaidprincipal balanceand the related allowance was notsignificant.

The amounts of TDRs which occurred during thesixand three months ended September 30, 2017 and 2018 were not significant.

Credit quality indicators

Nomurais exposed tocredit risks deriving froma decline in the value of loans ora default caused by deterioration of
creditworthiness or bankruptcy of the obligor. Nomura’s risk management framework for such credit risks is based on arisk
assessment through an internal rating process, in depth pre-financing credit analysis of each individual loan and continuous post-
financing monitoring of obligor’s creditworthiness.

The following tables present an analysis of each class of loans notcarried at fair value using Nomura’s internal ratings or
equivalentcredit quality indicators applied by subsidiaries as of March 31,2018 and September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen

March 31, 2018

AAA-BBB BB-CCC CC-D Others®W Total
Secured loans at banks ¥152,137 ¥106,385 ¥ — ¥ 46,948 ¥ 305,470
Unsecured loans at banks 186,089 — — — 186,089
Short-termsecured margin loans — — — 429,075 429,075
Unsecured inter-bank money market loans 1,385 — — — 1,385
Secured corporate loans 273,894 701,761 — 3,555 979,210
Unsecured corporate loans — — — 7,137 7,137
Total ¥613505 ¥808,146 ¥ — ¥ 486,715  ¥1,908,366
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Millions of yen
September 30, 2018

AAA-BBB BB-CCC CCD Others® Total
Secured loans at banks ¥ 155,293 ¥116,569 ¥ — ¥ 49,043 ¥ 320,905
Unsecured loans at banks 182,067 — — 2,872 184,939
Short-termsecured margin loans — — — 335,607 335,607
Unsecured inter-bank money market loans 2,048 — — — 2,048
Secured corporate loans 330,969 521554 — 3961 856,484
Unsecured corporate loans — 659 — 5,593 6,252

Total

¥ 670,377 ¥638,782 ¥ — ¥397,076 ¥1,706,235

(1) Relateto collateralized exposures where a specified ratio of LTV is maintained.

The following table presents a definition of each ofthe internal ratings used in the Nomura Group.

Rating Range

Definition

AAA

AA

A

BBB

BB

CCcC

CC

Highest credit quality. An obligor or facility has extremely strong capacity to meet its financial commitments. ‘AAA
range.” is the highestcredit rating assigned by Nomura. Extremely low probability of default.

Very high credit quality category. An obligor or facility has very strong capacity to meet its financial commitments. Very
low probability of default butabovethatof ‘AAArange.’

High credit quality category. Anobligor or facility has strong capacity to meet its financial commitments but is somewhat
more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions thanthose in higher-rated
categories. Low probability of default buthigherthanthat of ‘AA range.’

Good credit quality category. An obligor or facility has adequate capacity to meet its financial commitments. However,
adverseeconomic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity to meet its
financial commitments. Mediumprobability of default but higher than that of ‘A range.’

Speculative credit quality category. An obligor or facility is less vulnerable in the neartermthan other lower-ratings.
However, it faces major ongoing uncertainties and exposure to adverse business, financial, or economic conditions which
could lead to the inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitments. Mediumto high probability of default but higher
than that of ‘BBBrange.’

Highly speculative credit quality category. Anobligor or facility is more vulnerable thanthose rated ‘BB range’, but the
obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments. Adverse business, financial, or economic conditions
will likely impair the issuer’s orobligor’s capacity or willingness to meet its financial commitments. High probability of
default-more thanthatof ‘BB range.’

Substantial credit risk. An obligor or facility is currently vulnerable, and is dependent upon favorable business, financial,
and economic conditions to meet its financial commitments. Strong probability of default — more than that of ‘Brange.’

An obligororfacility is currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment (default category).
An obligor or facility is currently extremely vulnerable to nonpayment (default category).

Failure of an obligorto make paymentsin full and on time of any financial obligations, markedly disadvantageous
modification to a contractual termcompared with the existing obligation, bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership,
liquidation or other winding-up or cessation of business of an obligor or other similar situations.

Nomura reviews internal ratings at least oncea year by using available credit information of obligors including financial
statements and other information. Internal ratings are also reviewed more frequently for high-risk obligors or problematic exposures
and any significantcredit event of obligors will trigger an immediate credit review process.
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9. Leases:
Nomura as lessor

Nomura leases office buildingsandaircraft in Japan and overseas. These leases are classified as operating leases andtherelated
assetsare statedat cost, net ofaccumulated depreciation, except for land, which is stated at cost in the consolidated balance sheets and
reported within Other assets—Office buildings, land, equipmentandfacilities.

The following table presentsthetypes ofassets which Nomura leases under operating leases as of March 31, 2018 and
September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen

March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018
Accumulated Net carrying Accumulated Net carrying
Cost depreciation amount Cost depreciation amount
Real estate® ¥ 3,053 ¥ (1,657) ¥ 1396 ¥ 3034 ¥ (1,694) ¥ 1,340
Aircraft 24,989 (54) 24,935 14,654 (141) 14,513
Total ¥28,042 ¥ (1,711) ¥ 26,331 ¥ 17,688 ¥ (1,835) ¥ 15,853

(1) Cost,accumulated depreciationand net carrying amounts include amounts relatingto real estate utilized by Nomura.

Nomura recognized rental income of ¥957 million and ¥592 million for the sixand three months ended September 30, 2017,
respectively, and ¥1,285 million and ¥566 million for the sixand three months ended September 30,2018, respectively. Theseare
included in the consolidated statements of income within Revenue—Other.

The future minimum lease payments to be received onnon-cancellable operating leases as of September 30, 2018 were
¥15,055 million and these future minimum lease payments to be receivedare scheduled as below:

Millions of yen
Years of receipt

Less than 1to2 2t03 3to4 4t05 More than
Total 1 year years years years years 5 years
Minimum lease paymentsto be
received ¥ 15,055 ¥ 1412 ¥ 1412 ¥ 1412 ¥ 1407 ¥ 1347 ¥ 8,065

Nomura as lessee

Nomura leases its office space, certainemployees’ residential facilities and other facilities in Japan and overseas primarily under
cancellable operating lease agreements which are customarily renewed upon expiration. Nomura also leases certain equipment and
facilities in Japan and overseas under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. Rental expenses, net of sublease rental income, for
the sixand three months ended September 30, 2017 were ¥22,550 million and ¥11,050 million, respectively, and forthe sixand three
months ended September 30, 2018 were ¥22,387 million and ¥11,332 million, respectively.

The following table presents future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases with remaining terms
exceeding one yearas of September 30, 2018:

Millions of yen
September 30, 2018

Total minimum lease payments ¥ 118,902
Less: Sublease rentalincome (11,466)
Net minimum lease payments ¥ 107,436

The future minimum lease payments aboveare scheduled as belowas of September 30, 2018:

Millions of yen
Years of payment

Less than lto2 2to 3 3to4 4105 More than
Total 1 year years years years years 5 years
Minimum lease payments ¥ 118902 ¥ 16245 ¥ 15312 ¥ 11569 ¥ 8735 ¥ 8071 ¥ 58970
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Nomura leases certain equipment and facilities in Japan and overseas under capital leaseagreements. If the lease is classified as
a capital lease, Nomura recognizes it at the lower of the fair value or present value of minimum lease payments, which is reported
within Other Assets—Office buildings, land, equipment and facilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The amount of capital lease
assetsas of March 31, 2018 and September 30,2018 were ¥28,653 million and ¥27,247 million, respectively and accumulated
depreciationsonsuch capital lease assets as of March 31,2018 and September 30, 2018 were ¥8,791 million and ¥7,971 million,
respectively.

The following table presents future minimum lease payments under capital leases as of September 30, 2018:

Millions of yen
September 30, 2018
Total minimum lease payments ¥ 44,409
Less: Amount representing interest (26,798)
Present value of net minimum lease payments ¥ 17,611
The future minimum lease payments aboveare scheduled as belowas of September 30, 2018:
Millions of yen
Years of payment
Less than lto2 2t03 3to4 4105 More than
Total 1 year years years years years 5 years
Minimum lease payments ¥ 44409 ¥ 3,763 ¥ 3,849 ¥ 3,879 ¥ 3,877 ¥ 3,875 ¥ 25,166

Certain leases contain renewal options or escalation clauses providing for increased rental payments based upon maintenance,
utilities and taxincreases.

10. Other assets—Other / Other liabilities:

The following table presents components of Other assets—Other and Other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets as of
March 31,2018 and as of September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen

March 31, September 30,
2018 2018

Otherassets—Other:
Securities received as collateral ¥ 301,072 ¥ 319,939
Goodwill and other intangible assets 99,455 104,285
Deferred taxassets 16,135 20,255
Investments in equity securities for other than operating purposes 192,819 200,028
Prepaid expenses 14,561 17,230
Other 284,092 281,455

Total ¥ 908,134 ¥ 943,192
Other liabilities:
Obligation to returnsecurities receivedas collateral ¥ 301,072 ¥ 319,939
Accruedincome taxes 34,181 28,135
Otheraccrued expenses and provisions 448,423 366,829
Other 166,858 162,943

Total ¥ 950,534 ¥ 877,846
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11. Earnings per share:

A reconciliation of the amounts and the numbers usedin the calculation of net income attributable to NHI shareholders per share
(basic and diluted) is as follows:

Millions of yen
except per share data
presented in yen

Six months ended September 30

2017 2018

Basic—

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders ¥ 108,706 ¥ (6,010)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 3,630,324,525 3,394,856,369

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders per share ¥ 30.79 ¥ (1.77)
Diluted—

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders ¥ 108,664 ¥ (6,045)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 3,598,185,304 3,390,540,890

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders per share ¥ 30.20 ¥ (1.78)

Millions of yen
except per share data
presented in yen
Three months ended September 30
2017 2018

Basic—

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders ¥ 51,850 ¥ (11,233)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 3,5626,321,204 3,394,584,313

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders per share ¥ 1470 ¥ (3.31)
Diluted—

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders ¥ 51,825 ¥ (11,251)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 3,586,187,615 3,389,189,961

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders per share ¥ 1445 ¥ (3.32)

Net income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders is adjusted to reflect the decline in Nomura’s equity share of earnings of
subsidiaries and affiliates for the sixand the three months ended September 30,2017 and 2018, arising from options to purchase
common shares issued by subsidiaries and affiliates.

The weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) reflects the increase in
potential issuance of common shares arising fromstock-based compensation plans issued by the Company, which would have
minimal impact on EPS for the sixand the three months ended September 30, 2017.

The weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) reflects the decrease in
potential issuance of common shares arising fromstock-based compensation plans issued by the Company, which would have
minimal impact on EPS for the sixand the three months ended September 30, 2018.

Antidilutive stock options to purchase 10,483,100 common shareswere notincluded in the computation of diluted EPS for the
six and the three months ended September 30, 2017, respectively. Antidilutive stock options to purchase 99,204,100 common shares
were not included in the computation of diluted EPS for the sixand the three months ended September 30, 2018, respectively.
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12. Employee benefit plans:

Nomura provides various pension plans and other post-employmentbenefits which cover certain employees worldwide. In
addition, Nomura provides health care benefits to certain active and retired employees through its Nomura Securities Health Insurance

Society.

Net periodic benefit cost

The net periodic benefit costofthe defined benefit plans of Japanese entities’ includes the following components.

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of net actuarial losses
Amortization of prior service cost

Net periodic benefit cost

Service cost

Interest cost

BExpected return on plan assets
Amortization of net actuarial losses
Amortization of prior service cost

Net periodic benefit cost

Millions of yen

Six months ended September 30

2017 2018
¥ 5018 ¥ 5,429
1,129 1,090
(3,033) (3,034)
2,003 1,915
(530) (530)
¥ 4587 ¥ 4,870

Millions of yen

Three months ended September 30

2017 2018
¥ 2,393 ¥ 2,702
564 545
(1,517) (1517)
1,001 957
(265) (265)
¥ 2176 ¥ 2,422

Nomura also recognized net periodic benefit cost of plans other than Japanese entities’ plans, which are not significant.
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13. Income taxes:
Forthe six months ended September 30, 2017, the difference betweentheeffective statutory taxrate of 31% and the effective
taxrate of 30.4% was mainly due to non-taxable revenuewhereas non-deductible expenses increased the effectivetaxrate.

Forthe three months ended September 30, 2017, the difference betweenthe effective statutory taxrate of 31% and the effective
taxrate of 35.4% was mainly due to non-taxable revenuewhereas non-deductible expenses increased the effectivetaxrate.

Forthe six months ended September 30, 2018, the difference betweentheeffectivestatutory taxrate of 31% and the effective
taxrate of 117.9% was mainly due to non-deductible expenses whereas non-taxable revenue decreased the effective taxrate.

Forthe three months ended September 30, 2018, the difference betweenthe effective statutory taxrate of 31% and the effective
taxrate of 2,077.8% was mainly due to non-deductible expenses whereas non-taxable revenue decreased the effective taxrate.

14. Other comprehensive income (loss):

Changesin accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30, 2017

Other
comprehensive  Reclassifications out of
Balance at income (loss) accumulated other Net change
beginning before comprehensive during the Balance at
of year reclassifications income (loss)® period end of period

Cumulative translationadjustments ¥ 47767 ¥ 9,860 ¥ (26) ¥ 9834 ¥ 57,601
Pension liability adjustment (41,020) (712) 1,075 363 (40,657)
Net unrealized gain on non-trading securities 20,344 971 104 1,075 21,419
Own credit adjustments 6,561 (9,270) (69) (9,339) (2,778)
Total ¥ 33652 ¥ 849 ¥ 1,084 ¥ 1933 ¥ 35585

(1) Reclassifications out ofaccumulated other comprehensiveincome (loss) were not significant.

Millions of yen
Six_months ended September 30, 2018

Other
comprehensive  Reclassifications out of
Balance at income (loss) accumulated other Net change
beginning before comprehensive during the Balance at
of year reclassifications income (loss)® period end of period

Cumulative translation adjustments ¥ (15,596) ¥ 54,170 ¥ 6,962 ¥ 61,132 ¥ 45536
Pension liability adjustment (47,837) 1,172 85 1,257 (46,580)
Net unrealized gain on non-trading securities® — — — — —
Own credit adjustments 4,077 3,319 21 3,340 7,417
Total ¥ (59,356) ¥ 58,661 ¥ 7,068 ¥ 65729 ¥ 6,373

() Changeincumulative translation adjustments, net of taxin other comprehensiveincome (loss) for six months ended
September 30, 2018 includes reclassification adjustment of ¥6,956 million for loss due to substantially complete liquidation of
an investment in a foreign entity. The adjustment is recognized in Non-interest expenses-Other.

(2) SeeNote 6 “Non-trading securities” for furtherinformation. As Nomura disposed of the interest in its insurance subsidiary,

there are no unrealized gains and losses of non-trading securities recognized in other comprehensive income as of March31and
September 30, 2018.
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Millions of yen
Three months ended September 30, 2017

Other
comprehensive  Reclassifications out of

Balance at income (loss) accumulated other Net change

beginning before comprehensive during the Balance at

of period reclassifications income (loss)® period end of period
Cumulative translationadjustments ¥ 50,369 ¥ 7,258 ¥ (26) ¥ 7232 ¥ 57,601
Pension liability adjustment (42,626) 1,437 532 1,969 (40,657)
Net unrealized gain on non-trading securities 21,650 (448) 217 (231) 21,419
Own credit adjustments 1,695 (4,463) (10) (4,473) (2,778)
Total ¥ 31,088 ¥ 3,784 ¥ 713 ¥ 4497 ¥ 35585

(1) Reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were notsignificant.

Millions of yen
Three months ended September 30, 2018

Other
comprehensive  Reclassifications out of

Balance at income (loss) accumulated other Net change

beginning before comprehensive during the Balance at

of period reclassifications income (loss) ¥ period end of period
Cumulative translationadjustments ¥ 16,263 ¥ 22,368 ¥ 6,905 ¥ 29273 ¥ 45536
Pension liability adjustment (47,117) 494 43 537 (46,580)
Net unrealized gain on non-trading securities® — — — — —
Own credit adjustments 8,307 (924) 34 (890) 7,417
Total ¥ (22,547) ¥ 21,938 ¥ 6,982 ¥ 28920 ¥ 6,373

(1) Changein cumulative translation adjustments, net of taxin other comprehensive income (loss) for three months ended
September 30, 2018 includes reclassificationadjustment of¥6,956 million for loss due to substantially complete liquidation of
an investment in a foreign entity. The adjustment is recognized in Non-interest expenses-Other.

(2) SeeNote 6 “Non-tradingsecurities” for further information. As Nomura disposed of the interest in its insurance subsidiary,
there are no unrealized gains and losses of non-trading securities recognized in other comprehensive income as of March31and
September 30, 2018.
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15. Commitments, contingencies and guarantees:
Commitments—
Credit andinvestment commitments

In connection with its bankingand financing activities, Nomura provides commitments to extend credit which generally have
fixed expiration dates. In connectionwith its investmentbanking activities, Nomura enters into agreements with clients under which
Nomura commits to underwrite securities that may be issued by the clients. The outstanding commitments under these agreements are
included below in commitments to extend credit.

Nomura has commitments to invest in various partnerships and other entities and also has commitments to provide financing for
investments relatedto these partnerships. The outstanding commitments under these agreements are included below in commitments
to invest.

The following table presentsa summary of the key types of outstanding commitments provided by Nomura.

Millions of yen

March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018
Commitments to extend credit ¥ 965,942 ¥ 1,076,827
Commitments to invest 13,273 15,336

As of September 30, 2018, these commitments had the following maturities:

Millions of yen
Years to Maturity

Total
contractual  Less than 1to3 3to5 More than
amount 1 year years years 5 years
Commitments to extend credit ¥1,076,827 ¥320,018 ¥142,428 ¥193,573 ¥ 420,808
Commitments to invest 15,336 1,799 — 373 13,164

The contractualamounts of these commitments to extend credit represent theamounts at risk but only if the contracts are fully
drawn upon, should the counterparties default, and assuming thevalue of any existing collateral becomes worthless. The total
contractualamountofthese commitments may not represent future cash requirements since the commitments may expire without
being drawn upon. The credit risk associated with these commitments varies depending onthe clients’ creditworthiness andthe value
of collateral held. Nomura evaluates each client’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. Theamount of collateral obtained, if
deemed necessary by Nomura upon extension of credit, is based on credit evaluation of the counterparty.

Contingencies—
Investigations, lawsuitsand other legal proceedings

In the normal course of business as a global financial services entity, Nomura is involved in investigations, lawsuits and other
legal proceedings and, as a result, may suffer loss fromany fines, penalties or damages awarded against Nomura, any settlements
Nomura choosesto make to resolve a matter, and legaland other advisory costs incurred to support and formulate a defense.

The ability to predict the outcome of theseactions and proceedings is inherently difficult, particularly where claimants are
seeking substantial or indeterminate damages, where investigations and legal proceedings are at an early stage, where the matters
presentnovel legal theories orinvolvea large number of parties, or which take place in foreign jurisdictions with complexorunclear
laws.

The Company regularly evaluates each legal proceedingand claimon a case-by-case basis in consultation with external legal
counselto assess whether an estimate of possible loss or range of loss canbe made, if recognition of a liability is not appropriate. In
accordancewith ASC450 “Contingencies” (“ASC450”), the Company recognizes a liability for this risk of loss arising on each
individual matterwhen a loss is probable and theamount of suchloss orrange of loss canbe reasonably estimated. The amount
recognized asa liability is reviewed at least quarterly and is revised when further information becomes available. If these criteria are
not met foran individual matter, such as if an estimated loss is only reasonably possible rather than probable, no liability is recognized.
However, where a material loss is reasonably possible, the Company will disclose details of the legal proceeding or claimbelow.
Under ASC450 an event is defined as reasonably possible if the chance ofthe loss to the Company is more than remote but less than
probable.
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The most significant actions and proceedings against Nomura are summarized below. The Company believes that, based on
current information available as of the date of these consolidated financial statements, the ultimate resolution of these actions and
proceedings will not be material to the Company’s financial condition. However, an adverse outcome in certain of these matters could
have a material adverse effecton theconsolidated statements ofincome or cash flows in a particular quarter or annual period.

For certain of the significantactions and proceedings described below, the Company is currently able to estimate theamount of
reasonably possible loss, orrangeofreasonably possible losses, in excess of amounts recognized as a liability (if any) against such
cases. These estimates are based on currentinformation available as ofthe date of these consolidated financial statements and include,
but are not limited to, the specificamount of damages or claims against Nomura in each case. As of November 14, 2018, for those
caseswhere an estimate of the range of reasonably possible losses canbe made, the Company estimates that thetotal aggregate
reasonably possible maximum loss in excess ofamounts recognized as a liability (if any) againstthese cases is approximately
¥35 billion.

For certain othersignificantactions and proceedings, the Company is unable to provide an estimate of thereasonably possible
loss orrange of reasonably possible losses because, among other reasons, (i) the proceedings are at such an early stage there is not
enoughinformationavailable to assess whether the stated grounds for the claimare viable; (ii) damages have not been identified by
the claimant; (iii) damages are unsupported and/or exaggerated; (iv) there is uncertainty as to the outcome of pending appeals or
motions; (v) there are significant legal issues to be resolved thatmay be dispositive, such as theapplicability of statutes of limitations;
and/or (vi) there are novel or unsettled legal theories underlying the claims.

Nomurawill continue to cooperate with regulatory investigations andto vigorously defend its positionin the ongoingactions
and proceedings set out below, as appropriate.

In January 2008, Nomura International plc (“NIP””) was served with atax notice issued by the taxauthorities in Pescara, Italy
alleging breaches by NIP ofthe U.K -Italy Double Taxation Treaty of 1998 (“Tax Notice”). The alleged breaches relateto payments
to NIP of tax credits on dividends on Italian shares. The TaxNotice not only denies certain payments to which NIP claims to be
entitled but alsoseeks reimbursementof approximately EUR 33.8 million, plus interest, already refunded. NIP continues vigorously to
challenge the Pescara TaxCourt’s decisions in favor of the local taxauthorities.

In October2010and June 2012, two actions were broughtagainst NIP, seeking recovery of payments allegedly made to NIP by
Fairfield Sentry Ltd. and Fairfield Sigma Ltd. (collectively, “Fairfield Funds”), which are now in liquidationand were feeder funds to
Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC (in liquidation pursuantto the Securities Investor Protection Act in the U.S. since
December 2008) (“BLMIS™). The first suit was broughtby theliquidators of the Fairfield Funds. It was filed on October 5, 2010 in the
Supreme Court ofthe State of New York, but was subsequently removedto the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern
District of New York, where it is presently pending. The second suit was brought by the Trustee for the liquidation of BLMIS
(“Madoff Trustee”). NIP was added as a defendantin June 2012 when the Madoff Trustee filed an amended complaintin the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York. In November 2016, the United States Bankruptcy Courtgranteda
motion to dismiss the Madoff Trustee’s claim. The Madoff Trustee has appealed the decision to the United States Court of Appeals for
the Second Circuit. Both actions seek to recover approximately $35 million.

In April 2011, the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston (“FHLB-Boston”) commenced proceedings in the Superior Court of
Massachusetts against numerous issuers, sponsors and underwriters of residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”), and their
controlling persons, including Nomura Asset Acceptance Corporation (“NAAC”), Nomura Credit & Capital, Inc. (“NCCI”), Nomura
Securities International, Inc. (“NSI”) and Nomura Holding America Inc. (“NHA”). The actionalleges that FHLB-Boston purchased
RMBS issued by NAAC forwhich the offering materials contained untrue statements or omitted material facts concerningthe
underwriting standards used by the original lenders and the characteristics ofthe loans underlying the securities. FHLB-Boston seeks
rescissionofits purchases or compensatory damages pursuantto state law. FHLB-Boston alleges that it purchased certificates in four
offerings issued by NAAC n the original principalamountofapproximately $406 million.
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In September 2011, the Federal Housing Finance Agency (“FHFA”), as conservator for the government sponsored enterprises,
Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“GSEs”), commenced proceedings in the
United States District Court for the Southern Districtof New York against numerous issuers, sponsors and underwriters of RMBS, and
their controlling persons, including NAAC, Nomura Home Equity Loan Inc. (“NHEL”), NCCI, NSI and NHA (the Company’sU.S.
subsidiaries). The action alleged that the GSEs purchased RMBS issued by NAAC and NHEL forwhich the offering materials
contained untrue statements or omitted material facts concerning the underwriting standards used by the original lenders and the
characteristics ofthe loans underlying the securities. FHFA alleged thatthe GSEs purchased certificates in seven offerings in the
original principalamount of approximately $2,046 million and soughtrescission of its purchases. The case was tried before the Court
beginning March 16, 2015 and closingarguments were completedon April 9, 2015. On May 15, 2015, the Court issued a judgment
and orderedthe defendants to pay $806 million to the GSEs upon the GSEs’ delivery ofthe certificates at issue to the defendants. The
Company’s U.S. subsidiaries appealed thedecisionto the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit and agreed, subject to
the outcome ofthe appeal, to a consentjudgment for costs and attorneys’ fees recoverable under theblue sky statutes at issuein the
maximum amount of $33 million. On September 28,2017, the Second Circuit affirmed the judgmentofthe district court. On
March 12,2018, the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries filed a petition for certiorarito the U.S. Supreme Court. On June 25, 2018, the U.S.
Supreme Court denied the petition for certiorari. The judgment has beensatisfied and the proceedings have since been discontinued.

In November 2011, NIP was servedwith a claim filed by the Madoff Trusteein the United States Bankruptcy Court forthe
Southern District of New York. This is a clawback action similar to claims filed by the Madoff Trusteeagainst numerous other
institutions. The Madoff Trustee alleges that NIP received redemptions fromthe BLMIS feeder fund, Harley International (Cayman)
Limited in the sixyears priorto December 11, 2008 (the date proceedings were commenced against BLMIS) and that these are
avoidable andrecoverable underthe U.S. Bankruptcy Code and New York law. In November 2016, the United States Bankruptcy
Court granteda motion to dismiss the Madoff Trustee’s claim. The Madoff Trustee has appealed the decision to the United States
Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit. The amountthatthe Madoff Trustee is currently seeking to recover fromNIP is
approximately $21 million.

In March 2013, Banca Monte dei Paschidi Siena SpA (“MPS”)issued a claimin the Italian Courts against (1) two former
directors of MPS and (2) NIP. MPS alleged that the former directors improperly caused MPS to enter into certain structured financial
transactions with NIP in 2009 (“Transactions™)andthat NIP acted fraudulently and was jointly liable for the unlawful conduct of
MPS’s formerdirectors. MPS claimed damages of not lessthan EUR 1.142 billion.

In March 2013, NIP commenced a claim against MPS in the English Courts. The claimwas for declaratory relief confirming
that the Transactions remained valid and contractually binding. MPS filed and served its defence and counterclaimto these
proceedings in March2014. MPS alleged in its counterclaimthat NIP was liable to make restitution ofanet amount of approximately
EUR 1.5 billion, and soughtdeclarations regarding theillegality and invalidity of the Transactions.

On September 23, 2015, NIP entered into a settlement agreement with MPS to terminate the Transactions. NIP believes thatthe
Transactions were conducted legally and appropriately, and does notacceptthe allegations made against it or admit any wrongdoing.
Taking into account the views of relevant European financial authorities and the advice provided by external experts, NIP considered
it to be in its best interests to reach a settlement in relation to this matter. As part of the agreement, the Transactions were unwound at
a discountof EUR 440 million in favourof MPSand the civil proceedings between MPS and NIP in Italy and England, respectively,
will no longerbe pursued. Pursuant to the settlement agreement MPS and NIP applied to the Italian Courtsto discontinue the
proceedings brought by MPS against NIP. These proceedings havesince beendiscontinued.

In July 2013, a claim was also issued against the same former directors of MPS, and NIP, by the shareholder group Fondazione
Monte dei Paschidi Siena (“FMPS”). The grounds of the FMPS claimare similar to those onwhich the MPS claimwas founded. The
level of damages soughtby FMPS is not less than EUR 315.2 million.

In January 2018, a claim before the Italian Courts broughtby two claimants, Alken Fund Sicav (on behalf of two Luxembourg
investment funds Alken Fund European Opportunities and Alken Fund Absolute Return Europe) and Alken Luxembourg S.A (the
funds’ management company) was served on NIP. The claim is made againstNIP, MPS, four MPS former directors anda member of
MPS’s internal audit board, and seeks monetary damages of approximately EUR 434 million on the basis ofallegations similarto
those made in the MPS and FMPS claims, as wellas non-monetary damages in an amount left to be quantified by the Judge.

In April 2013, an investigation was commenced by the Public Prosecutor’s office in Siena, Italy, into various allegations against
MPS and certain of its former directors, including in relation to the Transactions. Theinvestigation was subsequently transferred to the
Public Prosecutor of Milan. On April 3, 2015, the Public Prosecutor’s office in Milan issued a notice concluding its preliminary
investigation. The Public Prosecutor was seekingto indict MPS, three individuals fromMPS’s former management, NIP and two NIP
individuals for,among others, the offences of false accounting and market manipulation in relation to MPS’s previous accounts. The
preliminary hearing at which the court considered whether or not to grant theindictment concluded on October 1, 2016, the Judge
ordering the trial ofall individuals and banks involved except for MPS (which entered intoa plea bargaining agreement with the
Public Prosecutor). The trial commenced in December 2016 and is currently ongoing.
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Additionally, NIP was served by the Commissione Nazionale per le Societa e la Borsa (“CONSOB?”, the Italian financial
regulatory authority) with a notice commencing administrative sanction proceedings for market manipulation in connection with the
Transactions. In relation to the Transactions, the noticenamed MPS, three individuals fromMPS’s former management and two
former NIP employees as defendants, whereas NIP was named only in its capacity as vicariously liable to pay any fines imposed on
the former NIP employees. On May 22,2018 CONSOB issued its decision in which it levied EUR 100,000 fines in relation to each of
the two NIP former employeesas wellas revocations ofthe Italian law integrity requirement to performcertain corporate functions of
three and sixmonths respectively. NIP is vicariously liable to pay the fines imposed on its formeremployees. NIP has paid the fines
and appealed the decisionto the Milan Court of Appeal.

In January 2016, the Municipality of Civitavecchia in Italy (“Municipality”) commenced civil proceedings againstNIP in the
local courts in Civitavecchia. The Municipality’s claimrelated to derivatives transactions entered into by the Municipality between
2003 and 2005. The Municipality allegedthat NIP failed to comply with its duties under an advisory agreementand sought to recover
approximately EUR 35 million in damages. On December 20,2017, NIP entered into a settlement agreementwith the Municipality
pursuantto which the Municipality withdrew its proceedings against NIP. The proceedings havesince been discontinued.

In June 2016 and August2016, Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited (“NIHK”) and Nomura Special Investments
Singapore Pte Limited (“NSIS”) were respectively served with a complaint filed in the Taipei District Court against NIHK, NSIS and
certain individuals by Cathay United Bank, Co., Ltd., Taiwan Cooperative Bank Ltd., Chang Hwa Commercial Bank Ltd., Taiwan
Business Bank Ltd., KGI Bank and Hwatai Bank Ltd. (collectively, “Syndicate Banks”). The Syndicate Banks’ complaint relates to a
$60 million syndicated termloan to a subsidiary of Ultrasonic AGthat was arranged by NIHK, and made by Syndicate Banks together
with NSIS. The Syndicate Banks’ allegations in the complaint include allegations that NIHK failed to comply with its fiduciary duties
to the lendersas thearranger ofthe loan and the Syndicate Banks seek to recover approximately $48 million in damages and interest.

In March 2017, certain subsidiaries of American International Group, Inc. (“AlG”) commenced proceedings in the District
Court of Harris County, Texas against certain entities and individuals, including NSI, in connectionwith a 2012 offering of
$750 million of certain project finance notes, of which $92 million allegedly were purchased by AIG. AlG alleges violations ofthe
Texas Securities Act based on material misrepresentations and omissions in connection with the marketing, offering, issuanceand sale
of the notes and seeks rescission of the purchases or compensatory damages.

Various authorities continue to conductinvestigations concerning the activities of NIP, other entities in the Nomura Group and
other parties in respect of government, supranational, sub-sovereignandagency bonds. NIP and other entities in the Nomura Group
are also defendants to a consolidated class action complaint filed in the United States District Court forthe Southern District of New
York alleging violations of U.S. antitrust law related to the alleged manipulation of the secondary trading market for supranational,
sub-sovereignandagency bonds. The Company, NIP and NSl have been served with a similar class actioncomplaintfiled in the
Toronto Registry Office of the Federal Court of Canadaalleging violations of Canadian competition law.

In September 2017 and November 2017, NIHK and NSIS were respectively served with a complaint filed in the Taipei District
Court againstNIHK, NSIS, China Firstextile (Holdings) Limited (“FT’") and certain individuals by First Commercial Bank, Ltd., Land
Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd., Chang Hwa Commercial Bank Ltd, Taishin International Bank, E.Sun Commercial Bank, Ltd., CTBC Bank
Co., Ltd., Hwatai Bank, Ltd. and Bank of Taiwan (collectively, “FT Syndicate Banks”). The FT Syndicated Banks’ complaintrelates
to a $100 million syndicated termloan facility to borrower FT that was arranged by NIHK, and made by the FT Syndicate Banks
togetherwith NSIS. The FT Syndicated Banks’ allegations in the complaint include tortclaims under Taiwan law against the
defendants. The FT Syndicated Banks seek to recover approximately $68 million in damages and interest.

In July 2018, a former Italian counterpartyfiled a claim against NIP in the Civil Court of Rome relating to a derivative
transactionentered into by the parties in 2006, and terminated in 2009. The claim alleges that payments by the counterparty to NIP of
approximately EUR 165 million were made in breach of Italian insolvency law, and seeks reimbursement of those payments.

Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. (“NSC”) is the leading securities firm in Japan with approximately 5.32 million clientaccounts.
Accordingly, with a significant number of client transactions, NSC is from time to time party to various Japanese civil litigation and
other dispute resolution proceedings with clients relating to investment losses. These include an action commenced in October 2014
by a corporate client concerning transactions conducted between 2006 and 2012, in which assertions such as the assertionthatNSC
was in breach of its duty of explanation at thetime the trading contracts were entered into were made and compensation of damages in
the amount of ¥2,143 million is being soughtfor damages such asthe amountof losses.
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On February 8, 2018, for an action commenced in April 2013 by a corporateclient seeking ¥10,247 million in damages for
losses on currency derivative transactions and the pre-maturity cash out or redemption of 11 series of equity-linked structured notes
purchased fromNSC between 2005 and 2011, NSC entered into a settlement agreementwith such client. The proceedings havesince
been discontinued.

In February 2018, a determinationwas made that there would be an early redemption ofthe NEXT NOTES S&P500 VIX Short-
Term Futures Inverse Daily Excess Return IndexETN (“Product”), and with respectto matters suchas losses thatoccurreddueto this
early redemption for clients who purchased the Product, in terms of claims such as mediation procedures before the Non-Profit
Organization, Financial Instruments Mediation Assistance Center (FINMAC) and lawsuits (*Claims™), where there hasbeen an
indication ofadecisionthat NSC has a certain amount of responsibility, NSC has been carryings outcompensation of losses on this
basis. Currently, a considerable number of clients have filed Claims and it is expected thatit will be necessary to continue to carry out
compensation of losses on the basis of the Claim for the purpose of resolving this matter.

The United States Department of Justice (“*DOJ”), led by the United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of New
York, informed NHA; NAAC; NCCI; NHEL; NSI; Nomura America Mortgage Finance, LLC; and Nomura Asset Capital
Corporation; (the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries) that it was investigating possible civil claims against the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries
underthe Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act of 1989 focusingon RMBS the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries
sponsored, issued, underwrote, managed, or offered during 2006 and 2007. The Company’s U.S. subsidiaries cooperated with the
investigation and on October 15,2018, the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries reached a settlement with DOJ pursuantto which the U.S.
subsidiaries paid $480 million to resolve the matter. On the consolidated statements of income for the Year Ending March 31, 2019,
approximately ¥20billion incurred by the settlement, was reserved at Non-interest expenses—Other.

The United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and the DOJ have been investigating past activities of several
former employees of NSl in respect of the commercial and residential mortgage-backed securities transactions. The SEC has indicated
it will institute proceedings focusing on NSI’s supervision of certain formeremployees and NSl intends, in connectionwith such
proceedings, to agree to disgorgement and/or restitution relating to some of the transactions in issue.

Other mortgage-related contingenciesin the U.S.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries in the U.S. securitized residential mortgage loans in the formof RMBS. These
subsidiaries did not generally originate mortgage loans, but purchased mortgage loans fromthird-party loan originators (“originators™).
In connection with such purchases, these subsidiaries received loan level representations fromthe originators. In connection with the
securitizations, the relevantsubsidiaries provided loan level representations and warranties of the type generally described below,
which mirror the representations the subsidiaries received fromthe originators.

The loan level representations made in connectionwith the securitization of mortgage loans were generally detailed
representations applicable to each loan and addressed characteristics of the borrowers and properties. The representations included, but
were not limited to, information concerning theborrower’s credit status, the loan-to-value ratio, the owner occupancy status of the
property, the lien position, the fact that the loan was originated in accordance with the originator’s guidelines, and thefact thatthe
loan was originated in compliance with applicable laws. Certain ofthe RMBS issued by the subsidiaries were structured with credit
protection providedto specified classes of certificates by monoline insurers.

The relevant subsidiaries have received claims demanding the repurchase of certain loans fromtrustees of various securitization
trusts, made at the instance of one or more investors, or from certificate insurers. The total original principal amount of loans for
which repurchase claims were received by the relevant subsidiaries within sixyears of each securitization is $3,203 million. The
relevant subsidiaries summarily rejected any demand for repurchase received after theexpiration of the statute of limitations
applicable to breach of representation claims. For those claims received within sixyears, the relevantsubsidiaries reviewed each claim
received, and rejected those claims believedto be without merit or agreed to repurchase certain loans for those claims thatthe relevant
subsidiaries determinedto have merit. In several instances, following the rejection of repurchase demands, investors instituted actions
throughthetrustee alleging breach of contract. The breach of contract claims thatwere brought within the six-year statute of
limitations for breach of contract actions have survived motions to dismiss. These claims involvesubstantial legal, as well as factual,
uncertainty and the Company cannot provide an estimate of reasonably possible loss at this time, in excess ofthe existing reserve.

Cyber security incident

In June 2018, a foreign Nomura subsidiary experienced a cyber incident that resulted in the unauthorized access to certain of its
systems including client information. An internal investigation to assess and remediate the incidentand informthe appropriate
authorities of its occurrencewas immediately launched andis currently ongoing. Asaresult of this incident, Nomura may suffer
financial loss throughreputational damage, legal liability and enforcement actions and through the cost of additional resources to both
remediate this incident andalsoto enhanceand strengthen cybersecurity of other Nomura group companies. As the extent and
potential magnitude of this incident have yet to be determined, the Company cannot provide an estimate of the reasonably possible
loss in respect of this matter.
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Guarantees—

In the normal course of business, Nomura enters into various guarantee arrangements with counterparties in the formof standby
letters of credit and other guarantees, which generally havea fixed expiration date.

In addition, Nomura enters into certain derivative contracts that meet the accounting definition of a guarantee, namely derivative
contracts thatcontingently require a guarantor to make paymentto a guaranteed party based on changes in an underlyingthat relate to
an asset, liability orequity security held by a guaranteed party. Since Nomura does not track whether its clients enter into these
derivative contracts for speculative or hedging purposes, Nomura has disclosed below information aboutderivative contracts that
could meet the accounting definition of guarantees.

Forinformation about the maximum potentialamountof future payments that Nomura could be required to make under certain
derivatives, thenotionalamountof contracts has been disclosed. However, the maximum potential payout for certain derivative
contracts, suchas written interestrate caps and written currency options, cannot be estimated, as increases in interest or foreign
exchange rates in the future could be theoretically unlimited.

Nomura records all derivative contracts at fair value on its consolidated balance sheets. Nomura believes the notional amounts
generally overstate its risk exposure. Since the derivative contracts are accounted for at fair value, carrying valueis considered the best
indication of payment and performancerisk forindividual contracts.

The following table presents information on Nomura’s derivative contracts that could meet the accounting definitionofa
guarantee and standby letters of credit and other guarantees.

Millions of yen

March 31, 2018 September 30, 2018
Maximum Maximum
Potential Potential
Payout/ Payout/
Carrying Notional Carrying Notional
value Total value Total
Derivative contracts®® ¥4,023,893 ¥260,885,770 ¥4,396,614 ¥271,246,276
Standby letters of credit and other guarantees® 92 5,189 90 5,823

(1) Creditderivativesare disclosed in Note 3. “Derivative instruments and hedging activities” and are excluded fromderivative
contracts.

(2) Derivative contracts primarily consist of equity, interest rateand foreign exchange contracts.

(3) Theamountsofcollaterals held in connection with standby letters of credit and other guarantees are ¥2,559 million and
¥2,735 million as of March 31,2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively.

The following table presents maturity informationon Nomura’s derivative contracts that could meet the accounting definition of
a guaranteeand standby letters of credit and other guarantees as of September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen
Maximum Potential Payout/Notional
Years to Maturity

Carrying Less than 1to3 3to5 More than
value Total 1 year years years 5 years
Derivative contracts ¥4,396,614 ¥271,246,276 ¥83,662,531 ¥79,164,073 ¥34,956,982 ¥73,462,690
Standby letters of credit and other guarantees 90 5,823 2,004 3 3,815 1
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16. Segmentand geographic information:

Operating segments—

Nomura’s operating managementand management reporting are prepared based on the Retail, the Asset Management, and the
Wholesale segments. Nomura structures its business segments based uponthe nature of its main products andservices, its client base

and its management structure.

The accounting policies for segment informationfollow U.S. GAAP, except forthe impact of unrealized gains/losses on
investments in equity securities held for operating purposes, which under U.S. GAAP are included in Income (loss) before income

taxes, but excluded fromsegmentinformation.

Revenues and expenses directly associated with each business segment are included in the operating results of each respective
segment. Revenues and expenses that are notdirectly attributable to a particular segment are allocated to each respective business
segment orincludedin “Other”, based upon Nomura’s allocation methodologies as used by management to assess each segment’s

performance.

Business segments’ results are shownin the following tables. Net interest revenueis disclosed because managementviews
interest revenue net of interestexpense for its operating decisions. Business segments’ information on total assets is not disclosed
because management does not utilize such information for its operating decisions and therefore, it is not reported to management.

Six months ended September 30, 2017
Non-interest revenue

Net interest revenue

Net revenue

Non-interest expenses

Income (loss) before income taxes
Six months ended September 30, 2018
Non-interest revenue

Net interest revenue

Net revenue

Non-interest expenses

Income (loss) before income taxes

Three months ended September 30, 2017
Non-interest revenue
Net interest revenue

Net revenue
Non-interest expenses

Income (loss) before income taxes

Three months ended September 30, 2018
Non-interest revenue

Net interest revenue

Net revenue

Non-interest expenses

Income (loss) before income taxes

Millions of yen

Asset Other

Retail Management Wholesale (Incl. elimination) Total
¥ 200,633 ¥ 64,749 ¥ 270461 ¥ 115,733 ¥ 651,576
2,837 (1,234) 67,818 (11,416) 58,005
203,470 63,515 338,279 104,317 709,581
153,031 29,477 295,943 73,383 551,834
¥ 50439 ¥ 34038 ¥ 42336 ¥ 30,934 ¥ 157,747
¥ 174522 ¥ 52302 ¥ 236,662 ¥ 56,651 ¥ 520,137
4,021 (1,532) 48,288 (16,931) 33,846
178,543 50,770 284,950 39,720 553,983
146,403 31,574 287,459 75,373 540,809
¥ 32140 ¥ 19196 ¥ (2509) ¥ (35,653) ¥ 13174

Millions of yen
Asset Other

Retail Management Wholesale (Incl. elimination) Total
¥ 100,360 ¥ 36,061 ¥ 123126 ¥ 58,514 ¥ 318,061
1,426 (643) 35,837 (5,904) 30,716
101,786 35,418 158,963 52,610 348,777
76,239 14,950 141,980 35,285 268,454
¥ 25547 ¥ 20468 ¥ 16,983 ¥ 17,325 ¥ 80,323
¥ 83857 ¥ 25455 ¥ 121965 ¥ 29,514 ¥ 260,791
1,853 (774) 25,695 (3,5532) 23,242
85,710 24,681 147,660 25,982 284,033
73,494 15,768 142,745 50,448 282,455
¥ 12216 ¥ 8913 ¥ 4915 ¥ (24,466) ¥ 1578

Transactions between operating segments are recorded within segment results on commercial terms and conditions and are

eliminated in “Other.”
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The following table presents themajor components of Income (loss) beforeincome taxes in “Other.”

Millions of yen

Six_months ended September 30

2017 2018
Net gain (loss) related to economic hedging transactions ¥ (96) ¥ (29,825)
Realized gain on investments in equity securities held for operating purposes 387 52
Equity in earnings of affiliates 15,430 15,155
Corporate items 1,751 (26,201)
Other® 13,462 5,166
Total ¥ 30,934 ¥ (35,653)

Millions of yen
Three months ended September 30

2017 2018
Net gain related to economic hedging transactions ¥ 558 ¥ (16,018)
Realized gain on investments in equity securities held for operating purposes 344 7
Equity in earnings of affiliates 8,408 8,536
Corporate items 1,597 (23,719)
Other® 6,418 6,728
Total ¥ 17,325 ¥ (24,466)

(1) Includesthe impact of Nomura’s own creditworthiness.

The table below presents reconciliations of the combined business segments’ results included in the preceding table to Nomura’s
reported Netrevenue, Non-interest expenses and Income before income taxes in the consolidated statements of income.

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30

2017 2018
Net revenue ¥ 709581 ¥ 553,983
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments in equity securities held for operating purposes 2,735 936
Consolidated netrevenue ¥ 712316 ¥ 554,919
Non-interest expenses ¥ 551834 ¥ 540,809
Unrealized gain on investments in equity securities held for operating purposes — —
Consolidated non-interest expenses ¥ 551834 ¥ 540,809
Income before income taxes ¥ 157,747 ¥ 13,174
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments in equity securities held for operating purposes 2,735 936
Consolidated income before income taxes ¥ 160,482 ¥ 14,110
Millions of yen
Three months ended September 30
2017 2018

Net revenue ¥ 348,777 ¥ 284,033
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments in equity securities held for operating purposes 2,716 (1,111)
Consolidated netrevenue ¥ 351493 ¥ 282,922
Non-interest expenses ¥ 268454 ¥ 282,455
Unrealized gain on investments in equity securities held for operating purposes — —
Consolidated non-interest expenses ¥ 268454 ¥ 282,455
Income before income taxes ¥ 80,323 ¥ 1,578
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments in equity securities held for operating purposes 2,716 (1,111)
Consolidated income before income taxes ¥ 83,039 ¥ 467
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Geographic information—

Nomura’s identifiable assets, revenues and expenses are generally allocated based on the country of domicile ofthe legal entity
providing the service. However, because of the integration of the global capital markets and the corresponding global nature of
Nomura’s activities and services, it is not always possible to make a precise separation by location. Asaresult, various assumptions,
which are consistentamongyears, have been made in presenting the following geographic data.

The table below presents a geographic allocation of Net revenueand Income (loss) beforeincome taxes fromoperations by
geographic areas, and long-lived assets associated with Nomura’s operations. Net revenue in “Americas” and “Europe” substantially
represents Nomura’s operations in the U.S. and the U.K., respectively. Net revenue and Long-lived assets have been allocated based
on transactions with external customers while Income (loss) before income taxes have beenallocated based on the inclusion of
intersegment transactions.

Millions of yen
Six months ended September 30

2017 2018
Net revenue®:
Americas ¥ 120,012 ¥ 95,033
Europe 91,922 69,801
Asiaand Oceania 32,344 19,916
Subtotal 244,278 184,750
Japan 468,038 370,169
Consolidated ¥ 712,316 ¥ 554,919
Income (loss) before income taxes:
Americas ¥ 6,414 ¥ (23,260)
Europe 891 (16,799)
Asiaand Oceania 9,012 201
Subtotal 16,317 (39,858)
Japan 144,165 53,968
Consolidated ¥ 160,482 ¥ 14,110
Millions of yen
Three months ended September 30
2017 2018
Net revenue®:
Americas ¥ 54250 ¥ 41,931
Europe 47,991 34,181
Asiaand Oceania 15,262 10,423
Subtotal 117,503 86,535
Japan 233,990 196,387
Consolidated ¥ 351,493 ¥ 282,922
Income (loss) before income taxes:
Americas ¥ (1,460) ¥ (21,576)
Europe (1,354) (11,634)
Asiaand Oceania 3,665 1,033
Subtotal 851 (32,177)
Japan 82,188 32,644
Consolidated ¥ 83,039 ¥ 467

(1) Thereis norevenue derived fromtransactions with a single major external customer.
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Long-lived assets:

Americas

Europe

Asiaand Oceania
Subtotal

Japan

Consolidated

2. Other

Millions of yen

March 31, 2018

September 30, 2018

¥ 117323 ¥ 124,270
67,010 68,250

8,613 11,766

192,946 204,286
231,003 224,187
¥ 423949 ¥ 428,473

On October 31, 2018, the Board of Directors resolvedto pay the dividend based on therecord date of September 30, 2018 to

shareholders registered as of September 30, 2018.

a. Totaldividendbased onthe record date of September 30, 2018
b. Dividend based onthe record date of September 30, 2018 pershare
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[Translation]
Quarterly Review Report of Independent Auditor
November 14, 2018

The Board of Directors
Nomura Holdings, Inc.

Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC

Noboru Miura
Certified Public Accountant
Designatedand EngagementPartner

Toyohiro Fukata
Certified Public Accountant
Designatedand EngagementPartner

Toru Nakagiri
Certified Public Accountant
Designated and EngagementPartner

Kenjiro Tsumura
Certified Public Accountant
Designated and EngagementPartner

We have performeda quarterly review of the quarterly consolidated financial statements of Nomura Holdings, Inc. (the
“Company”)included in Financial Information section for the three-monthand six-month periods ended September 30, 2018 within
the fiscal period from April 1, 2018 to March 31,2019, which comprise the quarterly consolidated balance sheet, the quarterly
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows, and therelated notes, pursuantto the
requirement ofthe rule specified in Article 193-2, Section 1 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act.

Management’s Responsibility for the Quarterly Consolidated Financial Statements

Managementis responsible for the preparationand fair presentation of the quarterly consolidated financial statements in
accordancewith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (see Note 1to the quarterly consolidated
financial statements) pursuant to Article 95 of “Regulations Concerning the Terminology, Forms and Preparation Methods of
Quarterly Consolidated Financial Statements”, and for designingand operating such internal controlas management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the quarterly consolidated financial statements that are free frommaterial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to independently express a conclusion onthe quarterly consolidated financial statements based on our
quarterly review. We conducted our quarterly review in accordance with quarterly review standards generally accepted in Japan.

A quarterly review ofthe quarterly consolidated financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of management and
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, applying analytical and other quarterly review procedures. A quarterly
reviewis substantially less in scopethan an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.

We believe that we have obtained the evidence to providea basis for our conclusion.

Auditor’s Conclusion

Based on our quarterly review, nothing has come to our attentionthat causes us to believethatthe quarterly consolidated
financial statements referred to abovedo not presentfairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Nomura
Holdings, Inc. andits consolidated subsidiaries as of September 30, 2018, and the consolidated results of their operations for the three-
month and six-month periods then ended and cash flows for the six-month periodthen ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (see Note 1to the quarterly consolidated financial statements).
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Conflicts of Interest

We have no interest in the Company which should be disclosed underthe provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act.

*1. Aboveis an electronic versionofthe original Quarterly Review Report of Independent Auditor and the Company maintainsthe
originalreport.
*2.  XBRL datais not includedin the scope ofthe quarterly review.

(Note)

This is an English translation of the Japanese language Quarterly Review Report of Independent Auditor issued by Emst &
Young ShinNihon LLC in connectionwith the limited procedures applied on the quarterly consolidated financial statements of
Nomura Holdings, Inc., preparedin Japanese, for the three-month and six-month periods ended September 30, 2018 within the fiscal
period fromApril 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019. Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC have not appliedany such procedures nor have they
performed an audit on the English language version of the quarterly consolidated financial statements for the above-mentioned period
which are included in this report on Form6-K.
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Exhibit 2
Confirmation Letter

1 [Appropriateness of Quarterly Securities Report]

Koji Nagai, Group Chief Executive Officer, and Takumi Kitamura, Chief Financial Officer, have confirmed thatthe quarterly
securities reportof Nomura Holdings, Inc. for the three months ended September 30, 2018 is appropriate under the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act.

2 [Special Comments]
Thereis no special comment to be stated.
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Exhibit 3
Capitalization and Indebtedness

The following table sets forth,on aU. S. GAAP basis, the consolidated capitalization and indebtedness of Nomura Holdings,

Inc. (“NHI”) as of September 30, 2018. There has beenno material change in NHI’s capitalizationandindebtedness since
September 30, 2018.

Millions of yen
September 30, 2018
Short-termborrowings ¥ 980,269
Long-termborrowings 7,694,241
NHI shareholders’ equity:
Common stock
Authorized—6,000,000,000 shares as of September 30, 2018
Issued—3,643,562,601 shares as of September 30, 2018

Outstanding—3,382,481,612 shares as of September 30, 2018 594,493

Additional paid-in capital 681,058

Retained earnings 1,681,445

Accumulated other comprehensiveincome (loss) 6,373

Total NHI shareholders’ equity before treasury stock 2,963,369
Common stockheld in treasury, at cost-261,080,989 shares as of September 30, 2018 (162,592)

Total NHI shareholders’ equity 2,800,777

Noncontrolling interests 45,233

Totalequity 2,846,010

Total capitalization and indebtedness ¥ 11,520,520

NHI enters into various guarantee arrangements in the formof standby letters of credit and other guarantees with third parties. The
amount of potential future payments under these guarantee contracts outstanding was ¥5,823 million as of September 30, 2018.
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